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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR'’S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 9, 1997

ROBERT A. BITTENBENDER
SECRETARY
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

To the Governor, Lieutenant Governor, the Honorable Members of the General Assembly and the
Citizens of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania:

This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
represents our continued commitment to sound and effective fiscal management and to complete
financial reporting based on nationally recognized standards. This CAFR, which includes the
Commonwealth’s independently audited general purpose financial statements as of and for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, will provide you and the financial community with all the
information required to fully assess the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations
and the management of its financial resources.

Pennsylvania’s economy performed quite well during 1996 and the first half of 1997. During the
- fiscal year ended June 1997, the number of jobs in the state grew 2.0 percent over the previous
twelve months, a growth rate that was above the national rate for the same period. The
significance of this achievement is highlighted by the ranking of Pennsylvania among the states —
in the first quarter of 1996 Pennsylvania’s employment growth rate was zero and it ranked 49*
among the states. In the first quarter of 1997, the number of jobs grew by 2.3 percent and
Pennsylvania ranked 20" among the states. More jobs brought faster growing personal income.
For the four quarters ended with the first quarter of 1997, personal income in Pennsylvania rose at
a rate of over 6 percent. This healthy advance contributed to a 6.1 percent increase in General
Fund tax revenue for fiscal year 1996-97 due to similar increases in collections for the personal
income tax and the sales and use tax. While it is anticipated that national and Pennsylvania
economic growth will not maintain the pace experienced during the 1996-97 fiscal year,
expectations are for continued economic growth, though at a rate below 2 percent and for
conditions in Pennsylvania to remain close to the national average.

On a budgetary basis, the Commonwealth’s General Fund ended the 1996-97 fiscal year with a
$591.4 million unreserved/undesignated fund balance prior to reserving $189 million for transfer
to the Tax Stabilization Reserve (Rainy Day)} Fund. The increase of available reserves in the Tax
Stabilization Reserve Fund and the unreserved/undesignated fund balance was one of the major
factors in the actions taken by two bond rating agencies to increase the Commonwealth’s general
obligation bond rating in October 1997. This was the first increase in that rating since 1986 and
the first time since 1968 that all ratings were in the “AA” category.

Economic development continues to be a long-term commitment of the Commonwealth as
evidenced by the significant amount of funds appropriated for loans and grants to employers.
Among these loans and grants was $35 million transferred from the General Fund to the Ben
Franklin/Industrial Resource Centers Partnership, to create jobs through the development and
application of technology and advanced production techniques. Also, $15 miilion of loans and
grants for infrastructure development of industrial sites were made from the General Fund. The
Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund provided $19 million in low interest loans for machinery
and equipment purchases and the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority provided $33
million in loans to local industrial development agencies to stimulate economic activity. The new



Opportunity Grants program funded by the General Fund, provided $25 million for grants to
attract and retain businesses.

The Small Business First Fund combined three existing funds to streamline loans for small
businesses.

Tax cuts enacted for the General Fund during the past two years resulted in 1996-97 fiscal year
savings of $214.8 million for Pennsylvania taxpayers through reductions in the corporate net
income, capital stock and franchise, inheritance, insurance premium and other tax rates. Also a
$15 million tax credit program for businesses creating new jobs was enacted.

In addition, Pennsylvania is working to create jobs in other ways. The Commonwealth
recognizes that success begins with a well-trained work force and provided funding from the
General Fund for customized job training and supported the opportunity to capitalize on the
global marketplace to operate and expand Pennsylvania's international trade in the amounts of
$15 million and $4.4 million, respectively.

The Commonwealth continued its commitment to its communities by providing $18.6 million
from the General Fund, for the Housing and Redevelopment program to rebuild neighborhoods
and to rehabilitate low income housing, and additional funds to expand local tourism efforts.

Education is essential to Pennsylvania’s future. The General Fund provided nearly $3.4 billion
to our public schools through the Basic Education Funding program. Total funding for basic
education was just over $5.7 billion, including funding for special education, pupil transportation,
teacher retirement and social security, and special programs to address the needs of economically
and educationally challenged students. In addition, over $1.5 billion was provided for higher
education institutions and students.

The Commonwealth began a planned three-year technology initiative known as Project Link to
Learn. This initiative will help bring the giobal computer resources into Pennsylvania's
classrooms. Over $40 miliion in first-year funding was provided for the acquisition of computers
and network connections. This will allow schools to participate in advances in computing and
communications. This three-year initiative will provide for the development of the community-
based Pennsylvania Education Network.

In the Department of Corrections, efforts continued to meet the need for additional correctional
facilities. Construction continued on a new 1,096 bed correctional facility in southeastern
Pennsylvania. Over $60 million was committed for cell block additions that will provide 2,200

more beds at five existing correctional institutions.

During the 1996-1997 fiscal year several major laws were enacted that created new programs or
modified existing programs. The following summarizes some of these changes:

— Act 1996-111 provided for a nonrecurring transfer of $5 million from the State Stores
Fund to the Children’s Health Fund for the Children’s Health Insurance Program.

— Act 1996-134 amended the Lotiery Law to include changes to the Pharmaceutical
Assistance Contract for the Elderly (PACE) program to: a) increase PACE eligibility
levels, and b) enact a new program entitled PACENET for people whose incomes are
above the eligibility levels for the basic program. It also permits lottery winners of over
$1 million the option of receiving their prize payment in one lump sum rather than
through an annuity.
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— Act 1996-189 amended the Unemployment Compensation Act to further provide for the
determination of contribution rates and employer reserve accounts. This Act provides for
the relief of any benefit changes to an employer that are caused by a cessation of business
of eighteen months or less due to a disaster defined as fire, flood or other physical
occurrence, beyond the employer’s control, caused naturally or accidentally.

— Act 1997-3 increased the amount of tax on gasoline and petroleum products, dedicated a
portion of the sales tax for public transportation assistance, increased vehicle registration
fees and revised the formula for distribution of funds which support local road
maintenance. Most of the increased revenue will be used for highway construction and
maintenance at either the state or local level.

— Act 1997-23 amended the Job Enhancement Act to establish the Export Financing
Program within the Small Business First Fund. The Export Financing Program will
provide necessary capital to0 Pennsylvania’s small businesses in the form of loans
guaranteed by the Export-Import Bank to finance export trade. It also amended the
Family Savings Account Program which is a matching grant program established to help
eligible individuals or families save for education, purchase of a home, participation in an
entrepreneurial activity or enroll a saver’s child in day care to enable the saver to
participate in job training, any work-related activity or educational program.

The Commonwealth initiated a comprehensive welfare reform program based on individual and
family self-sufficiency. The program incorporates the changes made by Congress in passage of
the Personal Responsibility and Work Opportunity Reconciliation Act and those changes
authorized by the Pennsylvania General Assembly in Act 35 of 1996. The program provides time
limited cash assistance for families and other supports to enable individuals to get and keep a job.
Federal support includes two new block grants: Temporary Assistance to Needy Families and
Child Care Development. State and Federal expenditures for these programs amounted to $8.8
billion in the 1996-97 fiscal year. Approximately 40 percent of the total cost of assistance to the
economically needy is funded by the General Fund, with the balance provided by the Federal
government. A Medical Assistance Intergovernmental Transfer provided additional funds
totaling $694 million during the 1996-97 fiscal year.

In summary, the general purpose financial statements show that commitment to fiscal discipline
has resulted in continued financial improvements, allowed the Commonwealth 1o lower taxes, and

to continue funding programs that provide equity in education, enhance economic development
and meet critical human service needs.

Sincerely,
Robert A. Bittenbender

Secretary
Office of the Budget
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR’S OFFICE
HARRISBURG

December 9, 1997

HARVEY C. ECKERT
DEPUTY SECRETARY FOR COMPTROLLER OPERATIONS
OFFICE OF THE BUDGET

Dear Secretary Bittenbender:

It is my privilege to present this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) on the operations of the Commonwealth
of Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. This report, which includes the General Purpose Financial
Statements {GPFS), was prepared by the Office of the Budget, Comptroller Operations, pursuant to the power vested in the
Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code and delegated to the Secretary of the Budget by Executive Crder No.
1984-3, October 11, 1984.

The financial statements contained in this CAFR were prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as prescribed in pronouncements by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). They were
jointly audited by the elected Auditor General of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and Emst & Young LLP, a nationally
recognized public accounting firm. Their Independent Auditors” Report, expressing an unqualified opinion on the GPFS, is
included in this financial report.

I believe the financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects; that they are presented in a manner designed to
fairly set forth the Commonwealth’s financial position, results of operations, and changes in the fund balances as measured
by the financial activity of its various fund types; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the Governor, the Members of
the General Assembly, the public, and the financial community to gain a full understanding of the Commonwealth’s
operations and financial affairs have been included. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Office of the Budget.

In addition to the GPFS, which provide an overview of the Commonwealth’s financial position and operating resulis by
fund type, this CAFR includes: combining financial statements presenting information by fund; supporting schedules; certain
narrative information describing individual funds; and statistical tables presenting financial, economic, social and
demographic data about the Commonwealth. The CAFR was prepared in accordance with standards established by the
Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) and will be submitted to the GFOA to
determine 1ts eligibility for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

THE FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth) is a primary government. The
primary government, or PG, includes all publicly elected members of the exccutive, legislative and judicial branches of the
Commonwealth. The PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards and organizations which are not
legally separate. In addition to the PG, the financial reporting entity inciudes blended and discretely presented component
units. Component units include all legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially accountable, and other
organizations for which the nature and significance of their refationship with the PG are such that exclusion would cause the
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The criteria used to define financial accountability include appointment
of a voting majority of an organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the PG to impose its will on that organization
or (2) the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the
PG. Fiscal dependency is also considered.
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Based upon the financial accountability criteria, all of the following organizations, as discussed in Note A of the Notes to
Financial Statements, are included in the financial reporting entity as discretely presented component units, except the State
Employes” Retirement System, which is included in the Commonwealth’s primary government as a blended component unit:

Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership —Governmental Fund

Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority—Governmental Fund
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority—Governmental Fund
Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority—Proprietary Fund
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission—Proprietary Fund

Public School Employes’ Retirement System——Fiduciary Fund

State Employes’ Retirement System—Pension Trust Fund

State Public School Buiiding Authority—Governmental Fund

State System of Higher Education—College and University Funds

BUDGETARY CONTROLS AND ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS

The annual budget of the Commonwealth is comprised of separate appropriations to individual agencies for their specific
programs, purposes, special outlays and/or operating expenditures. Budgetary control is exercised at the agency level by
appropriation and by allocations to major categories of expenditure within each appropriation. Major expenditure categories
include personnel services, operational expenses, fixed assets, subsidies and grants, debt service and fixed charges. An
encumbrance system is used to effect budgetary control at the appropriation and allocation levels.

Encumbrances represent the estimated amount of expenditures that are expected to be incurred when purchase orders
issued are filled and contracts and other commitments entered into are performed. They serve to reserve that part of an
appropriation until the actual Habilities are incurred and to ensure that funds committed (encumbered) and expended do not
exceed the total amounts appropriated and/or allocated. Section 621 of the Administrative Code provides that unencumbered
appropriated funds shall automatically lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in the new fiscal year.
Encumbered appropriations are carried forward into the new fiscal year. They are reported in the Commonwealth’s
governmental funds as reservations of fund balance as distinguished from unreserved fund balance. Funds reserved for
appropriations carried forward may be expended until October 31 of the new fiscal year at which time any remaining
balances must be lapsed, except amounts for encumbered items being litigated or arbitrated or otherwise extended for some
other reason with approval of the Secretary of the Budget. In no event, however, can an encumbrance carried forward from
one fiscal year be extended beyond the end of the next fiscal year except for a litigated item.

Accounting records of most departments under the Govemnor’s jurisdiction are maintained on a centralized accounting
system. The operations of this system are directed and supervised by the Office of the Budget, Comptroller Operations.
Separate accounting systems are maintained by the Department of Transportation for the Motor License Fund; the Liguor
Control Board for the State Stores Fund; and the Department of Labor and Industry, Office of Employment Security, for the
payment of unemployment compensation benefits. The Treasury Department, the Department of the Auditor Genera), and the
Legislature and Judiciary, likewise, maintain separate accounting systems.

The accounts of the Commonwealth’s governmental fund types are maintained on a budgetary basis by fund, agency and
appropriation. Revenues are recorded at the time cash is received. Expenditures are recorded at the time payment requisitions
and invoices are submitted to the Treasury Department for payment. At the fiscal year end, both revenues and expendltures
are adjusted to reflect appropriate accruals for financial reporting in conformity with GAAP.

Within the accounting systems, internal controls effectively provide reasonable assurance that financial transactions are
executed in accordance with prior authorizations, that assets are protected from unauthorized use or disposition, and that the
financial records are reliable for the purposes of preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability. All
department records are reconciled monthly with the Treasury Department’s records of cash disbursements and the
Department of Revenue’s records of cash receipts,
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THE GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GPFS)

Although the Commonwealth plans and manages its financial affairs on a budgetary basis, it also prepares GPFS in
conformity with GAAP applicable to governments. These financial statements differ from those prepared on a budgetary
basis in that generic funds are combined by fund types and the financial information is presented on the basis of accounting
principles applicable to each fund type. Accordingly, governmental, expendable trust, and agency funds are reported on the
modified accrual basis of accounting; proprietary and pension trust funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. The
College and University Funds are reported on the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with the accounting guidance and
reporting practices applicable to governmental colleges and universities, as outlined in the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants Industry Audit Guide, Audits of Colleges and Universities, and pronouncements issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board.

In measuring financial position and operating results on the modified accrual basis of accounting, as compared to the
budgetary basis, revenues are generally recognized when they become measurable and available to finance current
obligations, as opposed to when cash is received. Expenditures are generaily reported when goods and services are received
and a liability incurred, rather than when cash is disbursed. Due to these differences, the Commonwealth’s GPFS as of a
fiscal year end include amounts which actually will not be received or disbursed until a future date. Such amounts are
necessarily based on management’s best assessment and evaluation of available financial data at the time the financial
statements are prepared. They include revenues due the Commonwealth, net of credits and refunds, and accounts payable and
accrued expenditures for which a liability has been incurred as of the fiscal year end.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

Pennsylvania has shared in the benefits of continued modest national economic growth. The nation completed its sixth
consecutive year of economic expansion that has brought the economic growth differential between the Middle Atlantic
Region and the United States to the lowest level in a decade. Within this region (PA, NY, NJ} over the last year,
Pennsylvania has had the best performance as represented by its 2 percent growth in jobs. The expansion of jobs increased
total employment to a new record level during this fiscal year. More jobs brought faster growing wage and salary income for
state residents, which resuited in increased housing and retail sales.

As of June 30, 1997, national economic growth was expanding at an annual rate of 3.6 percent. Continuation of that
growth rate is not anticipated during the second half of calendar year 1997. The predicted slowing of economic egrowth is not
expected to be concentrated in any sectors as consumption, business investment, and government purchases move slightly
slower to a more sustainable growth rate. Without the shift to a more sustainable growth rate, the potential for a rising
inflation rate increases significantly. Any evidence of increasing inflation will cause the Federal Reserve Board to increase
interest rates in an effort to reduce inflation. The effort to keep interest rates under control will likely cause economic
activity to slow and may possibly end the economic expansion that began in 1991.

THE GENERAL FUND

The General Fund, the Commonwealth’s largest fund, is the focal point of any assessment of Pennsylvania’s financial
position. It accounts for all revenues and receipts which are not required by law to be accounted for or deposited elsewhere
and for the major portion of Commonwealth expenditures. Tax receipts, principally personal and corporate income and sales
and use taxes, constitute approximately 62.8 percent of the General Fund budgetary basis revenues. Major fund expenditures
are for general government, protection of persons and property, public heaith and welfare, public education, conservation of
natural resources, economic development, transportation and debt service on all obligations except those incurred for
highway or other special revenue fund purposes. A comparison of how the Commonwealth has operated within its adopied
General Fund budget, as amended, is presented in the “Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis),” included in the GPFS.

Budgetary Basis: At June 30, 1997, the Commonwealth reported an unreserved/undesignated fund balance (budgetary
basis) of $402.7 million in the General Fund. This compares 10 2 budgetary basis fund balance of $158.5 million, as restated,
at June 30, 1996. The budgetary basis fund balance for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 was the result of revenue
collections totaling $26,149.6 million less appropriation authorizations totaling $25,835.7 million, less other net financing
uses totaling $69.7 million. Included in the $25,835.7 million appropriation authorizations are $164.3 million of state
supplemental appropriations and $207.0 million in federal supplemental appropriations authorized during the fiscal year.
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The following table shows the General Fund’s actnal year end unreserved/undesignated fund balance and increases or
decreases (expressed in millions) on a budgetary basis at the end of the five most recent fiscal years:

Unreserved/
Undesignated Increase
At June 30 Fund Balance (Decrease)
1993 214.9 206.1
1994 302.2 87.3
1995 (Restated) 437.0 134.8
1996 (Restated) 158.5 (278.5)
1997 4027 2442

Modified Accrual Basis: At June 30, 1997 the Commonwealth’s General Fund reported a fund balance of $1,364.9
million, an increase of $729.7 million from the $635.2 million fund balance at June 30, 1996. Total assets increased by
$563.4 million to $4,268.5 million. Liabilities decreased $166.5 million to $2,903.6 million. These changes and others are
reflected in the General Fund summary comparative balance sheet that follows,

General Fund

Summary Comparative Balance Sheets (GAAP Basis)
(Expressed in Millions)

Increase
June 30, 1997  June 30, 199 (Decrease)
Assets
Cash and temporary iNVeStMENtS .....cvvvvrvveerirnesreesmriesenresnennns § 1,779.9 $1,1554 $ 6245
Receivables, et ... ... e 941.0 8749 66.1
Due from other funds/component units/governments.............. 1,184.3 1,274.9 {90.6)
Food Stamp COUPONS oo eeiee e e e eeae e e eneraeeaanea 3586 391.6 {33.0)
Other 85818 ....ouieieee et eeneas 4.7 8.3 (3.6)
TOLA] ASSELS. ...ttt e s et et $ 42685 § 3,705.1 $ 35634
Liabilities
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities....................... $ 19205 $1,9244 § (G5)
Due to other funds/component units/governments................... 602.2 739.1 (136.9)
Deferred TEVEMUE. ... cer e ctee et e st s s rae e s s 380.9 406.4 (25.5)
Total LiabilIties ..o 2,903.6 3,069.9 (166.3 )
Fund Balance
RESEIVED .ttt et 3452 2534 91.8
; Unreserved: '
: DESIGNALED -.evvererrrerreemcee e resereran s e s sesbanassns 8324 381.8 450.6
Undesignated ... e e 187.3 - 187.3
Total Fund Balance ..., 1,364.9 635.2 739.7
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance ..o, $ 4,268.5 $ 3,705.1 § 5634
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GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNCTIONS — MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

The Commonwealth’s governmental fund types include the General Fund, the Special Revenue Funds, which includes the
Motor License Fund, the Debt Service Funds and the Capital Projects Funds. These funds account for most general operating
revenues and expenditures. Their combined fund balances at June 30, 1997 increased by $914.6 million to $2,900.9 million
from a $1,986.3 million balance at the beginning of the fiscal year. Unreserved/undesignated fund balances at June 30, 1997
amount to $699.2 million as compared to a $378.2 million unreserved/undesignated find balance a year ago. Comparative
summaries of general governmental revenues by source and expenditures by function (expressed in millions) follow.

General Governmental Revenues by Source. Revenues of the Commonwealth’s General, Special Revenue, Debt Service
and Capital Projects Funds totaled $32,0673 million. This represents a 3.7 percent increase over the previous year. Taxes
constituted 56.6 percent of general governmental revenues; intergovernmental revenues, primarily Federal funds, censtituted
29.6 percent.

Fiscal Years Ended
[ Increase

Revenue Source June 30, 1997 June 30, 1996 {Decrease)
Taxes... $ 18,168 § 17,220 5 948
Llcenses and fees 804 796 3
Intercovemmental 9,499 9,517 (18)
" Charges for sales and services . 1,517 1,312 205
INVESTMENE IMCOMIE ..o e e e et eeeaeesrmeereeeenvsresserssenressanreerees 175 153 22
Lottery receipts ... 1,723 1,699 24
Lease rental prmcxpal and mterest .............................................. 2 2 -
Other ........ et ieteieteeseenateieeeeeeesseemeemeesreesceteisesiatesaeessseestesstessranns 185 227 (42)
 TOLAl REVEIUES evnveeeeveeeeereeeeereeeseesseeeseseeseeeneseseeermeesesaenesensannens $  32.073 $ 30926 $ 1,147

Charges for sales and services increased $205 million primarily because of increased departmental revenues for services
provided to other departments and the public.

Tax revenue increased $948 million due primarily to an increase in employment and an improvement in the economic
condition of the Commonwealth.

,_‘—“ Fiscal Years Ended —j
Increase

Taxes by Type June 30,1997 June 30, 1996 (Decrease)
Personal INCOMIE ... .veeeeeieecee et ee e st s vassne s s reerres o $ 5,606 $ 5,165 iy 441
5ales ANA USE ittt st 6,198 3,736 462
Corporation ..........ccoceveecicevrecnca. PO TRO U OSRORO 3,612 3,688 (76)
Liguid FUels ..o, 762 730 32
L0113 U VOOV VORIV PYUTURTORTOT 1.990 1.901 89
Total TaX REVEIIE ... ettt es e s srs e rersssraneeres s rrnnes $ 13.168 $ 17.220 $ 948
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General Governmental Expenditures by Function. Expenditures of the Commonwealth’s General, Special Revenue, Debt
Service and Capital Projects Funds totaled $30,797 million, an increase of $230 million over the previous year. Of the total
amount expended, public health and welfare accounted for 45.2 percent, public education for 24.0 percent and transportation

for 9.5 percent.
Fiscal Years Ended
Increase

Expenditure Function June 30, 1997 June 30, 1996 (Decrease)
General GOVEITITIENT .......cuvieeiieeie e reeeseninas e s ese s asenanasees $ 2469 § 2,631 5  (162)
Protection of persons and property .....ooceeeeeeieeeceeiceceeeeeeee, 2,462 2,345 117
Public health and welfare .........cooooovieeeeeeee e, 13,907 13,651 256
PublC edUCAHION. .......ooeoieeieieeeeteect e e e e 7,397 7.418 (21 )
Conservation of natural TESOUTCES .....oveeeereeenreeeeceereeceeeeceeeeeeeas 369 349 20
Economic development and assistance ........... s 300 285 15
TTANSPOITALION .ocv ettt e e e s : 2,913 2,832 81
Capital outlay ......ooooviie s 254 319 (65 )
Debt service:

Principal TELITEIMBL. ..co.eeoireenreer et crce e s sae s renns 438 448 (16 )

Interest and fiscal charges.......cocovrvercvnre v e 288 289 (1)

Total eXpenditlres. ......oeeeeeeiieieee et $ 30,797 $ 30,567 b 230

Expenditures for public health and welfare increased by $256 million or 1.9 percent over the previous fiscal year.
Increases in financial support to the economically needy, aid to families with dependent children, and medical assistance
comprise a portion.of the public health and welfare expenditure increase.

Expenditures for protection of persons and property increased by $117 million or 5.0 percent over the previous fiscal
year, due mainly to increased incarceration expenditures for the Department of Corrections.

Expenditures for general government decreased $162 million or 6.2 percent primarily because of a reduction in the
estimated expenditures for self-insurance liabilities.

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS— GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The discretely presented component unit governmental fund type includes the Pennsylvania Higher Educational
Facilities Authority, the Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership, the Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority and the State Public School
Building Authority. Their combined fund balances at June 30, 1997 decreased $28.9 million to $345.0 million from a $373.9
million balance at the beginning of the fiscal year.

Revenues of the component unit governmental funds totaled $257.9 million at June 30, 1997. Lease rental principal and
interest revenue of $217.8 million represents 84.5 percent of total revenues.

Expenditures of the component unit governmental funds totaled $491.8 million at June 30, 1997. Of the total amount
expended, debt service principal and interest expenditures were $214.9 million or 43.7 percent of total expenditures and
capital outlay was $230.4 million or 46.8 percent.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The constitution of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania permits the incurrence of debt, without approval of the
electorate, for capital projects specifically authorized in a capital budget. Capital project debt outstanding cannot exceed one
and three quarters (1.75) times the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in all funds during the previous five fiscal
vears. The certified constitutional debt limit at August 29, 1997 was $34.3 billion. Outstanding capital project debt at August
29, 1997 amounted to $3.7 billion.

In addition to constitutionally authorized capital project debt, the Commonwealth may incur debt for electorate approved
programs, such as economic revitalization, land and water development, and water facilities restoration; and for special
purposes approved by the General Assembly, such as disaster relief.

The total general obligation bond indebtedness outstanding at June 30, 1997 was $4,842 million. Total debt service

transfers paid from General Fund and Motor License Fund appropriations during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997
amounted to $781.5 million.
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During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1998 the Office of the Budget projects general obligation bond issuances
amounting to $495.5 million, a decrease of $56 million as compared to actual bond issuances of $551.5 million during the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. This forecast reflects the need to make investments in the Commonwealth’s capital
infrastructure, particularly prisons, highway bridges, mass transportation and water supply systems. Debt principal
retirements of $435 million are forecast during fiscal 1998. The table that follows shows total outstanding long-term
indebtedness for general obligation bonds (expressed in millions) at the end of the seven most recent fiscal years.

Outstanding
At June 30 Bond Indebtedness
1991 4,788
1992 4.874
1993 5,041
1994 5,100
1995 5,041
1996 5,062
1997 4,842

In addition to general obligation bonds, the Commonwealth issues tax anticipation notes to meet operating cash needs
during certain months of the fiscal year. Tax anticipation notes may be issued only for the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund. They may not exceed 20 percent of the funds’ estimated revenues for the year, and must mature during the
fiscal year in which they are issued. Cash shortages occur during the fiscal year because tax receipts, unlike cash
disbursements, are concentrated in the fourth quarter of the fiscal year.

During the fiscal year ending June 30, 1998, total General Fund revenues and budgeted expenditures, including Federal
funds, are expected to increase by .7 percent and 3.7 percent, respectively. As a result of tax changes and expenditure patterns
that are likely to affect the cash receipts flow, the Commonwealth anticipates issuance of $225 million in General Fund tax
anticipation notes during the 1997-98 fiscal year. General Fund tax anticipation notes or commercial paper issuances
(expressed in millions) during the five most recent fiscal years are shown below. Motor License Fund tax anticipation notes
were not issued for the periods shown and are not expected to be issued in the future.

Amount Issued

Fiscal Year For the Account as a Percent of

Issue Ended of the General Fund

June 30 General Fund Tax Revenues
1994 § 400 3
1995 600 4
1996 500 5
1997 550 3
1998 (Estimated) 225 1

CASH MANAGEMENT

The Treasury Department is required by the Commonwealth’s Fiscal Code to deposit Commonwealth monies, excluding

certain component units, in state depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue. Amounts deposited are not
required to be segregated by fund.
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In addition, the Treasury Department is empowered to invest Commonwealth monies that are in excess of daily needs of the
various Commonwealth Funds. Virtually all excess amounts are invested in the Treasury Short-Term Investment Pool
(STIP). The STIP includes the following types of investments, with related weighted average maturity and percent of total
STIP investments at June 30, 1997:

Weighted Average
Maturity
Investment Type {days) Percent
Commercial Paper (Moody’s Prime One Rating or Equivalent) .........occoceiiiieeiciece 14 44
United States Treasury and Agency ObHatIONS ......ocviivieieeieieieire e 337 88
Repurchase AQrERmIEnTS. . ... oo e cea e enm e v e eme e e o eme e e 3 71.5
Certificates Of DEPOSIE .....occeuiie e ccc et e e e e e 197 2.6
Corporate Bonds and NOTES ..o rrns e see e s srsaeeranecs 2,094 0.5
L0 71 VTS 166 6.2

100.0

Total STIP mvestments amounted to over $4.5 billion at June 30, 1997. Almost all STIP investments are reported as
‘temporary investments by participating Funds. The STIP eamed $221 million during the fiscal year, at an average yield of
5.53 percent.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Commonwealth maintains ongoing training and information programs to reduce risks associated with employe
injury and negligence, contract compliance, tort liabilities and property losses. As more fully described at Note O to the
financial statements, the Commonwealth became self-insured for employe disability and medical claims on July 1, 1983. The
Commonwealth is also self-insured for annuitant medical’hospital benefits and tort liabilities, including automobile, employe
and transportation-related claims. Reserves have been established to fund self-insured claims. Third-party coverage is
obtained for property losses in excess of $1 million per occurrence, to a limit of $100 million per occurrence. Coverage for
property losses less than $1 million or more than $100 million is maintained through the Commonwealth’s self-insurance
program.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

Proceeds of general obligation bonds are generally accounted for in the capital projects funds. Completed projects and
construction in progress at the fiscal year end are accounted for as assets and are capitalized in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group. Construction in progress at June 30, 1997 amounted to $373 million. Authorized but unissued general
obligation bonds at June 30, 1997 totaled $17.6 billion.

PROPRIETARY, FIDUCIARY AND COLLEGE AND UNIVERSITY FUNDS
Primary Government

The Commonwealth’s enterprise funds, Proprietary Fund Types, are used to account for revolving loan programs for
economic development, for sales of alcoholic beverages and to provide for workers’ compensation. Commonwealth
enterprise funds reported total retained earnings at June 30, 1997 of $122.3 million, which represents a decrease of $30.4
million from the $152.7 million retained earnings, reported the previous year.

Fiduciary type funds, including expendable trust funds and a pension trust fund, reported total fund balance of $21,543
million, compared to $19,136 million in the previous year. Tota! fund balances of the expendable trust funds increased $259
million over the previous fiscal year, for total fund balances of $3,050 million at June 30, 1997. The State Employes’
Retirement System, the pension trust fund, reported a fund balance of $18,492 million, an increase of $2,147 million from the
previous year. The fund balance is completely reserved for pension benefits.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The discretely presented proprietary fund component units account for a turmpike system, loans for improving water and
sewer systems, higher education and housing assistance. These discretely presented component units all reported retained
earnings at June 30, 1997, totaling $1,887 million, which represents an increase of $82 million from the $1,805 million
retained earnings reported the previous year.

The Public School Employes’ Retirement Systern, a fiduciary type fund component unit, pension trust fund, reported a
fund balance of $39,386 million at June 30, 1997, which represents a $5,656 million increase over the $33,730 million
previous fiscal year fund balance.

The total fund equity for the College and University funds, used to account for the State System of Higher Education, a
discretely presented component unit, at June 30, 1997 was $329 million, compared to $296 million at June 30, 1996.
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS

General fixed assets of the Commonwealth are those used in the performance of general governmental functions. The
fixed assets of the proprietary and the fiduciary fund types and the College and University Funds are not included in the
General Fixed Assets Account Group, except for certain real property used by the SSHE. General fixed assets as of June 30,
1997 amounted to $4,409 million at actual or estimated historical cost. Depreciation is not recognized for the
Commonwealth’s general fixed assets. Infrastructure assets, consisting primarily of highways, roads and bridges, are not
reported in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. Both of these practices are in conformity with GAAP.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

The audit of the GPFS, evidenced by the Independent Auditors® Report submitted herewith, was performed jointly by the
Department of the Auditor General and the independent public accounting firm of Emst & Young LLP. It was performed
pursuant to the authority vested in the Auditor General and the Governor under Section 402 of the Fiscal Code of 1929 and in
the Governor under Section 701 of the Administrative Code of 1929.

The Fiscal Code provides that the Department of the Auditor General shall make all audits of transactions after their
occurrence, which may be necessary, in connection with the administration of the financial affairs of the government of the

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and that it shall be the duty of the Governor to make such audits of the affairs of the
Department of the Auditor General.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Fmance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFQA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996. This represents the eleventh consecutive year the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has received this award.

To merit a certificate of achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report which conforms to GFOA standards and satisfies both generally accepted
accounting principles and applicable legal requirements. A certificate of achievement is valid for a period of one year only.

We believe the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania as of and for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 1997 conforms to the GFOA standards and we are submitting it to the GFOA to deterntine its eligibility
for a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

In conclusion, I wish to express my appreciation to the staff of the various Commonwealih agencies whose time and
dedicated effort made this report possible and, at the same time, to reaffirm my commitment to you 1o maintain the highest
standards of accountability in financial reporting to the citizens of the Commonwealth.

Sincerely,

\S1¥y

Harvey C. Eckert
Deputy Secretary for Comptroller Operations
Office of the Budget
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG LLP

& Central Pennsylvania Practice |

Commenwealth of Pennsylvania Commerce Court, Suite 200
N 2601 Market Place
Depariment of the Auditor General Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17110-9359
Harrisburg, PA 17120-06018

Independent Auditors’ Report -

The Honorable Tom Ridge, Governor
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

1

o

We have jointly audited the general purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth of )
Pennsylvania (commonwealth) as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, as listed in the

accompanying table of contents. These general purpose financial statements are the responsibility i}

of the Commonwealth’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these o
financial statements based on our audit. We did not jointly audit the financial statements of

certain component units, which represent 79 percent of total assets of the Trust and Agency o
Funds, 100 percent of the revenues of the Pension Trust Fund, and 100 percent of the discretely L
presented component units. The financial statements of these component units were audited by
other auditors, including Ernst & Young LLP acting separately, whose reports thereon have been .
furnished to us and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for }
those component units, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. Emst & Young LLP .
has audited separately 4 percent of total assets and 5 percent of total revenues of the discretely
presented component units.

We conducted our audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether i
the general purpose financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes i
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the general

purpose financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and o
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement L
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable

basis for our opinion. i

As discussed in Notes F and O, the insurance loss liability of the State Workmen’s Insurance
Fund, an Enterprise Fund, and the Commonwealth’s workers’ compensation self-insurance
liabilities, which are recorded in the Commonwealth’s General Fund and General Long-Term
Obligations Account Group, are based on actuarial analysis of historical experience adjusted to
estimate the impact of Act 44 and Act 57 and changes in claims management practices adopted
by Commonwealth management. These factors should be considered when evaluating the
reported liabilities.
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Int our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the general purpose financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania at June 30, 1997, and the results of its operations and the cash
flows of its Proprietary Funds for the fiscal year then ended, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note B, the Commonwealth adopted certain new accounting pronouncements.

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole. The combining financial statements and schedules listed in the
accompanying table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the general purpose financial statements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the general
purpose financial statements and, in our opinion, based on our audit of the reports of other
auditors, is fairly presented in all material respects in relation to the general purpose financial
statements taken as a whole.

We did not audit the data included in the introductory and statistical sections of this report and,
therefore, express no opinion thereon.

bt Gusey, gy gt

November 14, 1997
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
All Governmental Fund Types, Expendable Trust Funds and

i
B ]
i
o

Discretely Presented Component Units For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
;"ﬁi
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA E}i‘
(Expressed in Thousands)
Total Total
Fiduciary {Memorandum {Memorandum T
Governmental Fund Types Fund Type Only} QOnly) }
Special Debt Capital Expendable Primary Component Reporting i
General Revenue Service Projects Trust Government Units Entity
REVENUES: L
TAXES . errseemereerememeeseseressraees . 516502772 S 1630274 3 - 5 35535 8§ 5,880 5 18,174,461 $ - 5§ 18174461 i ]
Unemployment taxes.. - - - - - 1,555,866 1,553,866 . - 1,555,866 e
License and fees.. 164,189 640,240 - - 98,703 903,132 - 903,132
Intergovernmentak... 8,469,358 1023250 - 6,475 63,180 9,562,263 484 9,562,747 .-
Charges for sales and service: 1,302,115 202,544 - 11,868 - 1,516,527 9,965 1,526,492 E
Investment iNCOME..........ivrnes 97,323 64,304 2,454 10,523 192,827 367,43t 20,031 387,462 f‘
Lottery revenues - 1,722,358 - - - 1,722,558 - 1,722,558 .
Lease renta) principal and interest............... - - 2,159 - - 2,159 217,836 219,995
Other....... et st pate s seaeenas 99,702 85003 728 - 465 185,898 9,608 195,506 3
TOTAL REVENUES ....coovvnvrecvirmrennns 26,635,459 5.368,173 3,341 64,401 1916921 33.990,293 257,924 34,248,219 ;
EXPENDITURES: -
Current;
General government... 969,809 1,497,867 - 1,070 6,753 2,475,499 - 2,475,499 oy
Protection of persons and property 2,430,269 26,369 - 5,388 66,140 2,528,166 7.442 2,535,608 !
Public health and welfare... 13,245,591 661.576 - - 1,555.913 15,463,080 - 13.463.080 ’ j
Public education " 7,397,080 194 - - - 1,397,274 3.570 7.400,844 S
Conservation of natural resources.............. 116.935 209228 - 43,284 - 369,467 - 369,467
Economic development and assistance 244098 20,020 - 36,192 - 300,310 35.56% 335,879 £
Transportation..... 311,648 2,507.288 - 93,647 - 2,912,583 - 2.912,583
Capital outlay... 2,804 33,285 - 210,669 - 253,758 230.350 484,108
Debt service:
Principal retirement . - 437,880 - - 437,880 64,517 502,397
Interest and fiscal charges. 17834 = 270,024 8 13.013 300879 . 180343 4513222 ]
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ...cccocoemnerenen __ 24.743,088 4955827 707904 390258 1641819 32438896 451791 32930687 !
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) o
EXPENDITURES .....coooiiicnvsnmmnsnraner 1892371 412346 (702.563) 275,102 1,551,399 (233.,867) 1,317,532
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES): : 1
Bond proceeds... . 5.928 - 185,701 . 189,629 165,680 335,309 ;
Refunding bond proceeds...... - - - 364,783 - - 364,785 75,530 440,315 b
Operating transfers in—Note H 121,494 266391 781.845 - - 1,168,730 197,551 1.367,281
Operating transfers out—Note H {664.252) (435,859) (1,129 {149) (15.271) (1,116,660} (197,551} (1.314,211) o
Operating transfers from primary , !
government—dote H.......coooneemerrrcerrennen. - - . - - - 35,200 35.200 P
Operating transfers to component Lok
units—Note H... (717.517) - - - - (717.517) - (717317}
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.... B - (364,785) - - (364.785) (71.332) (436,137} p:
Capital lease and installment purchase 5
U - ST R - 5283 L
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) C(16L197y 780716 185,552 (15.271) _ (469,533) 205058 {264.477) -
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES I
AND OTHER USES..... 633,036 251.149 78.153 (340.305) 239.831 1.081,864 (28.809) 1.053,055
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1996— ' )
NOTE Cooorveee e eeessisemsosnensss s snsenens 635,182 1.095.604 37,8715 217,669 2.790.609 4,776,939 373.850 5.150,789 P
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS— L
NOTE Heoevveeee s eeeememeensenseees sisarsssnas 96682 (4112 - - - 92570 - 92370 L

FUND BALANCES JUNE 30, 1997 .......... 5 1364900 5§ 1342641 S 116028 3§ 77.364 S 3.050440 § 3951.373 8 343.041 § 6206414

—— See notes to financial statements, —




COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCES-

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (BUDGETARY BASIS)

General and Budgeted Special Revenue Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Generat Fund Budgeted Special Revenue Funds
Vatiance Variance
Favorable Favorable
Budpget Actual {Unfavprable} Budpet Actual {Unfavorable)
REVENUES:
State Programs:
Taxes, net of reflnds.......ocoueerereeeicrainns . $ 15,861,900 5 16.418.108 $ 556,268 S 1018228 S 1,053,157 5 34,929
Lottery receipts...ocrerreneenn - - - 906,515 928,259 21,744
Liquor store profits transfer 50,000 50.000 - - - -
Licenses and fees.................. 72,400 72,830 430 499,700 519,578 19,878
Fines, penalties and interest... 23,400 32,017 8,617 - - -
Departmental services 1,368,487 1,368,487 - 43,589 43,589 -
Miscellaneous................. 196,800 207,539 10.739 89,252 96,298 7.046
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS. ..o 17,572,987 18,149,641 376,054 2,557,284 2,640,881 83,597
Federal Programs 8,671,339 8,000,602 _ (870.737) 751,648 718,852 {12,796)
TOTAL REVENUES ... rereneaeen 26,244,326 26,149,643 {94083 3,288,952 3,359,733 70,801
EXPENDITURES:
State Programs:
General government, 1,482,898 1,478,703 4.195 335,131 313,748 19,383
Prozection of persons and property 2,118,478 2,075,663 42,813 256,085 253330 755
Public health and welfare................. 6,341,791 6,527,011 14,780 612,936 599.288 13,648
Publie edutation. ....cvveeine e 7332775 7.325.410 7,363 1,498 1,279 219
Conservation of natural resources.. 108,935 108,855 80 - - -
Economic development and assistance. 234,345 234,345 - - - -
Transportation...... 297,569 285.148 kA 1,247.165 1,245,692 r4is
TOTAL STATE PROGRAMS.... 17,916,791 17,835,135 81,636 2.652.815 2617337 35478
Federal Programs 8.671.339 8,000,602 670737 731.648 o T18gs2 12,796
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ... 26,988,130 __25.835.737 o 752393 3,384.463 3.336,189 43
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES...... . {(343.804) 313506 - 657710 {95.331) 23.544 119.075
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Prior-year lapses 118977 118,977 - 40453 40433 ‘ -
Transfer to Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund - (188.708) (188,708) - - -
Increase in budgeted revenue . ..._576054 . - R (576.034) . B0127 e {80127y
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ... L. 895081 (6973 0 (764.762) ...j0580 404355 (80.127)
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
: AND OTHER USES —NOTE M. 331,227 244,175 (107.052) 25.049 63.997 38,948
| UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS), AS
RESTATED, JULY 1, 1996 — NOTE C...orreee o 158503 158.503 . - B 285.306 283306 -
UNRESERVED/UNDESIGNATED FUND
BALANCES (BUDGETARY BASIS)
JUNE 3{, 1997 $ 509730 S £02,678 5 (107.052) 5 310,355 S 349303 $ 38,948

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES
All Proprietary Fund Types and Discretely Presented Component Units
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 306, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLYANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
Proprietary Fund Types {Memorandum Total
Only) (Memorandum
Internal Primary Component Only)
Enterprise Service Government: Units Reporting Entity
OPERATING REVENUES:
5185 ANG SEIVICES .ouve i sies e cecsaemsasssessrmsmsbesmaesressnars 5 1,014,908 $ 119,030 5 1,133,931 ) 813,451 g 1,947,382
120,587 - 120,587 83,065 203.652
4,783 - 4,783 329,078 333,861
o 186 o 35 221 15,036 15,257
1140457 119065 1,256,522 1,240.630 . 2.500.152
OPERATING EXPENSES:

Cost of sales and services... 1,040,057 106,033 1,146,050 956,931 2,103,021

Interes? expense 16,709 - 16,709 307,434 324,143

Depreciation 6,053 8,195 14,248 169,946 184,194

Provision for imcollectible accounts.. 17,851 3 17,859 26,467 44,326

Lo 1P 8- 1487795

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES.....oo e o 1,080.818 114236 1,195,054 1.461.425 2636479
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)....co e eeseeeecean 99639 48 edd408 0 (220.795) o (156.327)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment income.. 3,606 859 6,465 26,194 32,639

Interest expense 27 (26) (33) (54,426} (54,479

Oit company franchise tax.. - - - 42313 42,313

Other....... L 342 o1 6.243 6966

NONOPERATING REVENUES. NET.oveurncriirnn. 5,76G 20.524 27.459

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING

TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS...... 6.204 o 71603 (200471) (128.868)
OPERATING TRANSFERS:

Operating transfers in—Note H 4.122 - 4,122 B 4.122

Operating wansfers out—Note H... (37,192) - (37.192) - (57.192)

Operating transfers from primary g zovernment—NoteH - - - 283830  283.830

OPERATING TRANSFERS., NET...comrerreecmeiioes = 33070y 230,760
INCOME BEFORE
EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS. ..o 12.329 6.204 18.533 83.359 101.892
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt........... - - = 789 - (789
NET INCOME ....oovvenriree e vee et ecemcessestsseseesnisnons 12.329 6.204 18.533 82.570 101,103
RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES,

JULY 1, 1996 152.665 53,254 205919 1,804,567 2,010,486
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS...occneeeeeeee. {42.710) . - _ @ny - ) (42.710)
RETAINED EARNINGS/FUND BALANCES,

JUNE 30, 1997 S 122.284 S 59.438 $ 181,742 5 1.887.137 S 2.068.87%

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
All Proprietary Fund Types and
Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Total
(Memorandum Total
Proprietary Funds Only} ) (Memorandum
Internal Primary Component Only)
Enterprise Service Government Units | Reporting Entity
CASHFLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (1088)..c..o..cerveemncn.. . - S5 39,639 5 4,829 5 64,468 $ (220,795)  $ {156,327}
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 6,053 8,195 14,248 169,946 184,194
Provision for uncollectible accounts 17,851 8 17,859 26,467 44,326
Nonoperating revenues.. 244 6 250 6.445 6,695
Reclassification of i mvestment [ To) 11T (120,587} - (320,587) (83,063) (203,652)
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables ...t e sbns 100,857 16 100,873 (740,423} (639,552)
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds.. (339) (715) (1.254) 172 (1 082)
Increase in due from primary government...... - - - (23) )
(Increase) decrease in due from companent unit - 159 159 (138)
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments.. (30) (133) (183) 9,805 9, 6')2
(Increase) decrease in inventory.. . {9,393) 495 (9.097) 84 {9.013)
(Increase) decrease in other current assets. (143) 328 685 399 1,284
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable and accrued liabilities.. 1,851 {806) 1,045 36,016 37,061
Decrease in due to other funds..... {3.203) {331) (3.336) (172) {3,708)
1 Decrease in due to primary government.. - - - (3.624) {3.624)
‘ Increase in due to component units......... - - - 138 138
Increase {decrease) in due to other governments... 16 6 22 {4.362) {4.340)
Increase {decrease) in deferred revenue.. (26.812) 125 (26.687) 2911 (23,776)
Increase in insurance [oss liability........... 11.456 - 11,456 - 11,456
Increase in obligations under securities lending. - 253,574 - 253,574 - 253514
Increase {decrease) in other current Habilities......covveerveroeieieeeee et e {13.333) - ) {15.333) o 18005 2aAn
TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS ..ottt ee st sesimns s e vieneren 215,460 7834 233394 ) (561.221) (337.927)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES............... 375,009 o 12863 287.762 (782,016) (494.254)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net borrowings under advances from other funds.. 3,000 - 3.000 - 3.000
Proceeds from issuance of debt obligations. - - - 6035.858 605,858
Principat paid on debt obligations..... {338} (1.410) (1.766} (354.807) {356,573}
Interest paid on debt cbligations [eX)] (24) (51) - (513
Operating wansfers in.. 4122 - 4,122 - 4,122
Operating transfers from pnmarv covermnment.. - - - 283.830 285.830
Operating transfers out.. (57.192) - (57.192) - (57,192}
Increase in contributed capi 3973 o . 39873 _ - 38
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES......o oottt sttt ssis et s e - (46.480) _(L434) . (47.914) 534881 - 486,967
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal paid on debt obligations... - - - (27,334} (27.334)
Interest paid on debt cbligations.... - {2) {2 (54,426 (34.428)
Increases in contributed capital..... 36.568 36,568 233,967 290,535
Deereases in contributed capital... (176.847) (32 ) (176,879 (113.401} (290.280)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets.... (4368} {13.403) {17.971) (189.350) {207.521)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets..... . 2670 2.670 - 2,670
Qil company franchise tax..... - - - 42313 42313
Residual equity wransfer in 119 - 119 - 119
. Residual equity ransfer OUL. ..o e (42.829) N - (a8 - (32.829)
: NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES............ (167.337) . (10.767) a3y (108.231) (286.555)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:;
Purchase of investments. (2.763,190) (67.149) {2.830.33%) (17.463.126) {20.293.465)
Proceeds from sate of maturities of investments. 2.375.212 66.226 2641438 17.679.058 20,320,496
INVestment iCOME.....ooveee e 126,193 B39 127,052 104259 2536.311
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES................ _ (61.785) Lsn (61,849 323,191 261.342
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (723) 398 (325) (32.175) (32.300)
CASH. JULY L 1996t s sr s s st srsasssat s st e sessnesseens } 7937 ) ws B 98.780 ) 107.002
CASH, JUNE 30, 199700000 . | 7.214 S 683 S 7.897 $ 656605 S 74.502

There were no material investing, capital or financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal vear.

— See notes 1o financiat siatements. —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS
Pension Trust Fund For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA L
{Expressed in Thousands)

State
Employes’
Retirement !

System :

ADDITIONS: | :

Net appreciation in fair value of INVESIMEMTS ..o s 5 1915391
PenSiON COMETIDUIIONIS. ... oot et erees e e m e rec et st e b bbb s e ceb s avsrasa e sara b s b oh 583,483 1
TV SHTIEIIE TICOMIE . 1t vuiviisriurrsrssrressrsererrerseamessanseamassemessemsamsassseres sassesansessraneneessensns smmens suenssucnmesrncasniores 593,939

TOTAL ADDITIONS 3,092,813

DEDUCTIONS: i

BENETIt PAYIMIENS. . 1oeceetrecece e eceeiecteeese e ettt sesete s e e e o s ne e bener bbb bbb 018.218 { N
REFUNGS OF CONETIDULIONS. 1+ vveevereaereeersceees e esssseoses s eereessesesssosssessss s remssesoemes s seeseseessamessroesn e 10,126 P

AQIINISITALIVE EXPIBIISES. 1. 1evurrearesesnrserssssemnsssemmamrsscoeessseemsemeas sesesimstssssesas sressnssnssssssssessessassasamsesemssns

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 943.406

T ITLETEASE. 1111 veereescecesesememseeemmssssrasastsseresssas s soss e aess sas s st pemessmsnssesesessmmssaremeeeseebetasse et ek aesnbenseratsenarn 2,149,407 ’

Fund balance reserved for pension benefits: .
JANUARY 1, 1996, AS RESTATED - NOTE C..ocoviviiii e 16.342.309 E )
DECEMBER 31, 1996 5 18492216 .

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINED BALANCE SHEET

Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1997
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)
Collepe Total
Fiduciary and (Memorandum
Governmental Proprietary Fund - University Only)
Funds Funds Note 1 Funds Component Uniis
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:
Cash—Note D. e 8 675 S 42,882 S - 8 33,079 S 76,636
Cash with fiscal agents—Note D 354 23,723 - - 24,077
Terporary investments—iNote D_. 214,682 1,973,160 970,751 161,431 3,320,064
Long-term investments—Note D... 161,683 144,666 44,023,027 344,150 44 673,526
Receivable, net:
Accounts... 10 17,926 - 34,303 52,239
Accrued i mterest 2,155 78,409 210,608 - 291,172
Notes and ]oans——Note G 399 5,747,892 - 28,772 5,780.656
Lease rental—Note G... 2999912 14,709 - - 3,014,621
Pension contributions - - 329,552 - 329,552
- - 326,949 - 326,949
- - 10,241 6,043 16,284
Due from other funds—Note H... - - - 158,952 158,952
Due from primary government—Note H.... 338 4.054 1,056 - 5448
Due from component units - 138 - - 138
Bue from other governments---Note B., is6 51.050 16 - 51,232
Inventory... - - 6,591 - 4,571 18,162
Fixed assets—Note E - 3.468,364 14,894 826,159 4,309,417
Eess: accumulated depreciation - {1,594,134) (9.311) {260,614} (1,864,059)
Other assets 217 70276 - 36,606 106,909
Other Debits:
Amounts available for retirement of other bonds....ccc.vvr i ric e 46.032 - - - 46,032
Amounts to be provided for the retirement of:
Other bonds 3,043,674 - - - 3.043.673
Other general long-term cbligations... 24 - L - o 234
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS 5 6473.954 5 10.049.706 5 45877823 5 1573452 5 63,774.935
LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREIITS
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accried liabilities... S 3.78C S 203,077 S 68,153 S 119,313 s 394,323
Investment purchases payable................... - - 689,470 - 689,470
Obdigations under securities lending - - 5727379 - 5927379
Due 10 other funds—Note H........... - - - 158,952 158,932

Due to primary govemment—Note H - 35,303 6,149 5.877 47,329
Due to component units, - 138 - - 138
Due to other governments. 28 12,549 - - 12,447
Deferred revenue.......... 3.000,155 53,994 342 34.744 3,089.235
Notes payable—Note J..... 34.785 393,171 - - 427.956
Demand revenue bonds payable—Note 3. . - 696,000 - - 696,000
Other lzabilities........c.c...... .. 155 277.767 - 578,893 636.815
Bonds payable—Note K. 3,089,706 B - - 3,089,706
Revenue bonds payable—Note - 5.070317 - - 5.070,317
Capital lease obligations—Note K..... - - 346.673 346,909

o 5 6.742.116 6.491.493 1.044.454 20.406.976
Equity and Other Credits: -
Contributed capital—MNote H....oooeeee e e eee e - 1.420,433 . - 1,420,453
Investment in fIXET @558t iireosereiiie sttt st rbis s ams e ee et bm e s s e menenntene - - - 232,986 232,986
Retained earnings:
Reserved-—INOE C ... ettt et ee e e e enaree - 1.383.831 - - 1.383,851
LT - 501.306 - - 501,308
Fund balance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances - - - 30,848 30,848
Pension benefits - - 39.386.330 - 39,386,330
Loans receivable... - - - 31.001 31,001
Long-term investments. 161.683 - - - 161,683
Endowment and similar funds - - - 10,002 16,002
Restricted fund balance 7.210 - - 26,852 34.062
OREr——NOE C..ooeee et es e e e sme e e mse e s n e erenen - - - 141,133 141133
Unreserved:
Designated for:
CAPITAl PIOJECTIS. cov. e eereemrmeme s ereesesememsesseseseeessmsns st esnmeas s smemsmnane s 120675 - - - 120.075
Debt service:
E Retirement of 0ther BOnds......ovvecnrimerimressmenoniconmn s 46,032 - - - 46,032
4.302 - - 4302
Undesignated (deficity—Note ... _ sm% ot {1458 874} - {138083)
i TOTAL EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS... . 345041 3307.5%0 39386330 328,998 43 367,959
TOTAL LIABILITIES, EQUITY AND OTHER CREDITS . S 6 473.954 5 10.049.706 S 45877823 $  1.373.452 S 63.774.933

— See notes to financial statements, —
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Governmental Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1997
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
State Public Insurance Higher
School Fraud Educational
Building Ben Franklin/ Prevention Facilities
Authority IRC Partnership Authority Authority Total
ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS
Assets:
Cash—Note D... 3 81 1 $ 1 $ 392 3 675
Cash with ﬁscal agents........ - - 354 - 3354
Temporary mvestmcnr.s—Nnte D. 54,182 1,935 3.390 132,973 214,682
Eong-term investments—Note D... 23,549 - - 138,134 161,683
Receivables. net:
ACCOUMS .ttt st s e e 10 - - - 10
ACCTUEd TNTEFEST. oot ee e e e e ceeseareea 380 24 - 1,751 2,133
Notes and loans—Note G 3,992 - - - 3,892
Lease rental—Note G... R 315.202 - - 2,684,710 2,996,912
Due from primary g covemment—Noie H ................................ - 338 - - 338
Due from other governments.... - - 186 - 186
LT LT SRS - - 27 - 27
Other Debits:
Amounts available for retirement of other bonds.........ccccc... 801 - - 45,231 46,032
Amounts to be provided for the retirement of:
Other bonds... 315,202 - - 2,728,472 3,043,674
Other general ion“-term obiwatlons 234 - - - 234
TOTAL ASSETS AND OTHER DEBITS ......iceceinirinas $ 713,633 2.298 $ 6,158 $ 3,751,863 3 6473954

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities............................
Due to other governments
Deferred revenue............
Notes payable—Note J...
Other liabilities...

Bonds payable~Note h
Capital lease and other oeneral lonc-term obl:uatmns ............

TOTAL LIABILITIES.. ... e

Fund Balance:

Reserved for:
Long-term INVESIMENTS. ..ot s
Restricted fund balance..............ccocoocvvie i

Unreserved:
Designated for:
Capital PrOJECIS oot e see e e
Debt service;
Retirement of other Bonds, ....c..ooveiieciec e

TOTAL FUND BALANCES. ...
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES......ovvvee.

s 1973 487 8 1276 $ 4 s 378
- 98 - - 98
315,202 - - 2,684,953 3.000,155
34,785 - - - 34.785
155 - - - 155
316,003 - - 2,773.703 3.089.706
234 - - - 234
668352 585 1,276 5,458,700 6.128,913
23.549 - - 138,134 161,683
2,089 - - 5,121 7.210
15.396 - - 104.679 120,075
801 - - 45.231 46,032

- - 4,302 - 4,302

3,446 1713 s - 5739
45281 1713 4.382 293,163 345,081

2,298 3 6.158

$ 5.751.865

$ 6473954

— See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Governmental Funds -

Discretely Presented Component Units For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANiIA
{Expressed in Thousands)

Pennsylvania
State Public Insurance Higher
School Frand Educational
Building Ben Franklin/ Prevention Facilities
Authority IRC Partnership Authority Authority Total
REVENUES:
INLErZOVETNIIENTAL .vvrversreereesererecmeeccmse s e reems e esessccniecesns D - $ 484 3 - 3 - S 484
Charges for sales and services... . 1,023 - 7927 1.015 2.965
Ervestment MICOME. . ..c..ooceeemininneionisectrn e cerencsnsnneenanns 3,021 348 346 14316 20,031
Lease rental principal and interest.......oovecnneineonesmcnicneninnen 35,872 - - 181,964 217.836
OHHET. ettt i 1,252 - 115 8241 95608
TOTAL REVENUES L.t 43,168 832 838 205336 = 237924
EXPENDITURES:
Protection of persons and PrOPErLY ... orererererenreesecereeeenen - - 7.442 - 7.442
Public education . 1,834 - - 1,736 3,370
Economic development and assistance. ..........ooevccrenecnncrncnennes - 33,369 - - 35,569
Capital DULIRY ...t ren e 22.166 - - 208,184 230,350
Debt service:
Principal retitement. .....ccooeeireeeiiiiccieni et 21.824 - - 42,693 64.517
Interest and fiscal Charges. .......cooveeviieicecicccicce e B L ____n}_33_.§§0 ) 150.343
TOTAL EXPENDITURES. ..o o 62537 35369 144z 386243 491,791
REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES................. (19.369)  (34.737) S %46 (180.707) (233.867)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceeds................ 2,700 - - 162.980 165,680
Refunding bond proceeds...... . 9,730 - - 65.800 75,530
Operating transfers in—Note H.......ooo e 34,433 - - [63.118 197.351
Operating transfers out—Note H. ..o (34.433) - - (163,118} (197.551)
Operating transfer from primary government—Note H... - 35200 - - 35,200
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent.......ccovccvicncicccennnn @36 - - (6Le%0) (71.352)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES......oooimriniinisnninns 308 3520 - 166790 205058
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
AND OTHER USES. .ot {16,301) 463 946 {13.817) (28.809)
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1996, ..ot 61382 1,250 393  307.082 - 373.850
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1997 S 45,281 3 1,713 % 4.882 $ 293,165 $ 345,041

— See notes to financial statements, —
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Proprietary Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units June 30, 1997
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Infrastruciure
Commission Development Finance Assistance Investment
(May 31, 1997) Authority Agency Agency Authority Total
ASSETS
Cash—Note D 3 34,883 S 3,001 5 - S 4,390 3 608 N 42,882
Cash with fiscal agents-—Note D... - 2410 19,452 1,861 23,723
Temporary investments—Note D 604,923 99,870 562,739 525,661 179967 1,975,160
Long-term investments—Note D....... - 58,957 14,257 11,452 - 144,666
Receivables, net:
Accounts, 8,688 - - 9,238 - 17,926
Accrued interest 1,436 3,147 - 71,571 2.255 78,409
Notes and loans—Note G - 661,994 2482534 1,582,004 1,021,360 5,747,892
Lease rental—Note G. 14,709 - - - 14,708
Due from primary government—Note H. . 4,054 - - - - 4,054
Duoe frgm component units—Note H. ..o - - 100 - 38 138
Due from other govemments—Note i e s - - - 50,952 98 31,030
Inventory.... " 6,391 - - - - 6,591
Fixed assets—Note F . 3,308,318 - 7,183 152,131 232 3,468,364
Less; accumulated deprecmuon {1,534,859) - {3.502) (55,596} (177 {1,594,134)
Other assets. 16,434 12,211 12,106 17,700 11,825 o 70276
TOTAL ASSETS S 2450968 S 836.299 % 3.135417 $ 2388955 5 1.218.067 S 10.045.706
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued iiabilities. 3 779 5 697 S 53.330 3 67,005 3 4,134 s 203,077
Due to primary government-—Note H.. 3.3 1 36 149 31,787 35.303
Due to component units—Note H.... - 38 - EO0 138
Due to other gcvemments .. - - - 12,346 3 12,349
Deferred revenue.. - - - 53,994 - 53,994
Notes payable—Note J ..... - - 13.056 380,115 - 393,171
Demand revenue bonds pavable—Note J - - - 696,000 - 696,000
Other lizbilties......covee e 11,893 11.663 199,474 54,737 277,767
Revenue bonds payable—Note K..... 1,164,674 414,027 2.447.467 _B37.785 206,364 3,070.317
TOTAL LIABILITIES ....cooivsnmsmnminsassrscssnscens 1257808 426388 2713401 2,102,131 242,388 B 6.742,116
Equity:
Contributed capital—Note Hu..ooovvoocceeeeeecece e 189,339 292.841 1.960 . 936,113 1,420,453
Retained eamings:
Reserved—Note C... 1,003,621 - 123,406 258,804 - 1.385.831
UNEESEIVEd. ..o ceeirirsssrie s o - 137,070 B 296,630 28.020 39.566 501,306
TOTAL EQUITY 1,193,160 429811 . A22016 286824 975679 3.307.590
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY .o S 2,450.968 $ 856.299 S 3.135417 §  2.588.953 S 1.218.067 $ 10,049,706

-- See notes to financial statements. —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
Proprietary Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands) Proprietary Fand Type
Pennsylvania )
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Infrastructure
Commission Development Finante Assistance investment
_{May 31, 1957} Authority Apency Agency Authority Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and services.. " . 5 320,140 3 - s 135,636 s 336,234 b3 1,441 5 813,451
Inveswment income............... - 10,679 33,524 30,572 7,890 83,0635
Interest on notes and loans . - 21,121 172,433 117,524 18,000 329,078
Other... e . 10.25¢ 944 3,462 299 81 15,036
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES......ccnvininiannae 330.390 32,744 345,035 505,029 27,412 1,240,638
OPERATING EXPENSES: .
Cost of sales and services, E38.705 2,873 139,067 654,482 1,804 956,931
Interest expense. - 22,314 159,851 113,101 12,168 307,434
Depreciation 155.574 - 363 13,989 20 169,948
Provision for uncollectible accounts - 2,145 23,133 - 1,189 26,467
L8151 U - - 647 - - 647
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES....ooovvree 314279 27332 32306l 781572 1181 1461425
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) oo 16111 412 21994 (276,543) 12,251 (220,795}
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES): .
Investment income.... 26,194 - - - - 26,194
Interest expense. {34.426) - - . B (54,426)
Ol company franchise @ ..., 42313 - - - - 42,313
OHNEE. oot - - - {20y 6443 - 624
NONOPERATING REVENUES. NET......ccoovmceens 14.081 ) - ooy 6 - 20,324
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OPERATING
TRANSFERS AND EXTRAORDINARY
ITEMS. oevececcmveresesmmsesesssnesesssssens e e k0092 5.412 S (270,098) oo {200,471)
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers from primary govemment—
NOTE Hl oot eececntesesramas s st snss st s rpress v nben . e - 3.000 280.830 - 283830
INCOME BEFORE EXTRAORDINARY ITEMS..... o 30,192 5.412 24,792 10,732 12,231 83,359
Extraordinary loss on early extinguishment of debt..... - - (%) - - . 1))
NET INCOME.......ooovivmrormmmvisesmmminis s sisses e snesesnsnenes 30.192 5412 24,003 10,732 . 12,231 82.570
RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1. 1996 973,429 o 131,638 396053 276.092 27.333 I
RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1997 ....ovvurrcnennes 5 1.003.621 S 137.070 S 420.056 3 286.824 5 39,366 S 1.887.137

— See notes to financial statements, —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Proprietary Funds - Discretely Presented Component Units

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (Joss).........

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation...........
Provision for uncollectible accounts ...................................
Nonoperating reveaues...... “
Reclassification of inv income
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Inerease) decrease in receivables. ..o
Decrease in due from other funds
Increase in due from pristary govenment
Increase in due from compenent units.........
(Increase) decrease in due from other
governments.........
Decrease in inventory..
(Increase) decrease in other cun'em assets ........................
Increase in accounts payable and
accrued liabilities... et
Decrease in due te other ﬁmrk [P
Increase (decrease) in due to primary
government
Increase in due to component units..
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments....
Increase in deferred revenue.. -
Increase (decrease) in other cun-em ixabﬁn:cs

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS......oovist e

NET CASH PROVIDED BY
{USED FOR) OPERATING ACTIVITIES..........oo e

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCIANG ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuance of debt obligations....
Principal paid on debt obligations....
Operating transfers from primary government...

NET CASH PROVIDED BY NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES...

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal paid on debt obligations....
Interest paid on debt obligations.,
Ingrease in contributed capital..
Decrease in contributed capital....
Acquisition and construction of capilal 2§5e15...
il company franchise tax...

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES...

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investments...
Proceeds for sale and maturities of investments.
Investment income., -

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES... - e

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH...
CASH, JULY 1. 1%9%...

CASH, JUNE 30 1997 ...ttt semsmraeans

There were no matenial investing, capital or financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal vear.

Pennsylvania
Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Pennsylvania Higher Pennsylvania
Turnpike Industrial Housing Education Infrastructure
Commission Development Finance Assistance Investment
(May 31, 1997} Authority Agency Apency Authority Total
$ 16,111 $ 5412 3 21,994 $ {276,543 $ 12,231 5 (220,795)
133,574 - 363 13,989 20 169,946
- 2,145 23,153 - 1,189 26,467
- - - 6,445 - 6,445
- (10,679) (33,524) (30,972) (7,890) {83.065)
4.165 (142,044) (333,622) (232,029) (36.895) (740,425)
- - 98 - 74 E72
23 - - - - @3)
- - {1000 - (38) (138)
- - - {12,874) 22,679 9,805
84 - - - - 84
1,207 {973} (402) 1,278 (511) 599
5,631 371 5.883 13,145 986 36,016
- - (74) - (98) (172)
(746) 1 [¢3)] (330) (2.048) (3.624)
. - 38 B 100 138
- - - {4,363) 1 (4.362)
- - - 291} - 2911
 {3,208) o L9e3s 22,078 (800) - 18,005
160,684 (149,244) (316.130) _(234.100) 280 _(ssLnny
176795 L (43,832) (E94136) (510643 (10.200) (182016}
- 84,877 344,261 176,720 - 603,858
- (13.064) (209,638) (132.105) - {354,807)
- - 3.000 280.830 - o - 283830
- 7L813 157.623 325445 -  534.881
{20.100) - - - (7.234) (27.334)
{54,426) - - B - (34,426)
9,472 178.173 - - 46.322 233.967
- (111,682) . - (1719 (115,401)
(180 276) - (641) {8,405) 28) (189.330)
42315 S . T e L _ 42313
203017 86491 (641) (3.405) 37.341 (108.231)
{659.976) {14.186.093) (436,349) {1.335,041) (627,667) (17.463.126)
623456 14,185,379 579,979 1.696.112 594,132 17,679,058
- 26,194 10,679 33.524 30972 7.890 - 108,259
(10,326} 9.965 157154 192,043 _(35.645) 323,191
(36,348} 4437 - {1,360) 1,496 (32,175)
SN A . ) S ) . S 25402 95 _ 98.780
1) 34.883 S 5.411 S - s 23.842 S 2.465 3 66.603

— See notes to financial statements, —
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN PLAN NET ASSETS _
Pension Trust Fund - Discretely Presented Component Unit For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

____ Public School Employes’ Retirement System

Postemployment
Pension Healthcare Total

ADDITIONS:
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of INVESIMENLS.........ccoivvmrveeeeeetcers i $ 4,862,629 $ {393) $ 4.862,236
Pension contribULIONS. .. .c.ooecve e [,261,781 43,394 1,310,175
Y S I AL OTTIE .- eveemer e e emee e e cce e ecer et e eaesbesas s saaseasaeere st emmnsen emmsssemeaessmsessemsseetensentesnes 1,280,892 3,802 1,284,694

TOTAL ADDITIONS 7,405,302 51.803 ~ 7.457.105
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefit paymeRts. ......oocer oot e BRSPS 1,719.494 27.623 [.747.117
Refunds of contributions.. 17.296 “ 17,296
Administrative eXpenses. ........cooooceoerceceeenesemsecemen . 23,370 399 23,969
N A DU AT TS, ..o eee ettt ettt et ee s re e e e e br b b esea st be et £t £ 4 st e teeanembie e tatre b s ab e 12074 RS o 12074

TOTAL DEDUCTIONS 1772234 128222 ~ L.8DO.436
I EL TTIETEASE .-t ceeeeeeeecteee et ee e e teee e e emae oo eeemseme s emereeessmaestessssesessnssssesbeshsssnstaassssanas e basnan e ernren 5.633.068 23.581 3.656.649
Fund balance reserved for pension and postemployment healthcare benefits:

JULY E. 1906 o st ee et tes et e e eme e s eeme e emar s et semssassns e samnssessnssesseme s eneseessmarnseansmnnn 33,662,460 67.221 133,729,681
JUNE 30, 1997 5 39.295.528 $ 90,802 $ 39.386.330

— See notes to financial statements, —
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COMBINED STATEMENT OF CURRENT FUNDS REVENUES,

EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
College and University Funds—Discretely Presented Component Unit
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)
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BHALE AN FOCAL .- et ettt e eme b s rar s i s e e e an e e R nr e s e e m e e e

Federal.......coooivcvennrrrernanrecienens

Private gifts, grants antd COMMEACTS....ciurimiis ittt st st s

IIVESHTIEIT EICOITIE. .o..vie oot iecee e eeeereese st s res b enabesr s e s sasnenoresnsve e s smmsscmmssrems s seme s eemsemmmsbmssmen smseane

ENQOWITIEIIE ITCOMIC. cu.tvetvtiissisecmcssiemeeneeseresssasessmeasessas e sns smm e senee £ amseeteme e s emt s an e et eenstammeembie s b eeatmerb s e e

Activities of educational departments... ... v e ieiecs ittt aess st res st s

BT SOUICES. .o eeeeeeeeemeeeeceeeeeeeeebsatstestsssass 2esmeseemaseens e memme £ smseemmabeseasaesss s bamaasansnbansssaeressenn e sacnt someenre

AUXIIATY CIEEIDTISES . . 1ovviaresimmeeccmt e st e cmns e s s s s s b s E s s bR e e e

TOTAL REVENUES
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EXPENDITURES:
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TOTAL EXPENDITURES.

MANDATORY TRANSFERS:

Principal and interest..... ..o ime e
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TOTAL MANDATORY TRANSFERS

TOTAL EXPENDITURES AND MANDATORY
TRANSFERS

OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER TRANSFERS
AND ADDITIONS:

Operating transfers from Primary Government-—Note H....

Other transfers..
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OPERATING TRANSFERS, OTHER
TRANSFERS AND ADDITIONS, NET

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND BALANCES

571,427

391,809 $

37
1,839
4.020

18,360

78

8.352
11,377
135,555

412,290
936
8,877
86,289
73,641
$5,250
122,831
8,336
798,430

117.141

915,591

389,665
(42.671)

346,994

(10.976) 3

35,858
60,361
7.217
262
499

367

124,764

6.638
2,388
15223
2,613
4,125
177
3273

126,091

126,520

2,961

1,205

—— See notes to financial statements. —
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Total

391,809

55.895
62,400
11,237
18.622
577
8352
11,744
135,555

696191

418,928
3,324
24,100
88.904
77,766
85,427
126,104

99,938

924,541

117.403
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530

13.967

1,055911

391,227
(42.671)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

NOTE A—FINANCJAL REPORTING ENTITY
Primary Government

For financial reporting purposes, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania is a primary government (PG). The
PG includes all publicly elected members of the executive, legislative and judicial branches of the
Commonwealth. The PG also includes all Commonwealth departments, agencies, boards and
organizations which are not legally separate.

Component Units

- In addition to the PG, the financial reporting entity includes blended and discretely presented component
units. Component units include all legally separate organizations for which the PG is financially
accountable, and other organizations for which the pature and significance of their relationship with the
PG are such that exclusion would cause the financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The
criteria used to define financial accountability include appointment of a voting majority of an
organization’s governing body and (1) the ability of the PG to impose its will on that organization or (2)
the potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial
burdens on, the PG. Fiscal dependency is also considered. The following organizations are included in the
financial reporting entity as component units:

Blended Component Unit

State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type) — The SERS is a public employe
retirement system which covers Commonwealth employes. The PG appoints all voting board members
and, on a very limited basis, imposes its will on the SERS. The PG uses the SERS to provide pension
benefits to PG employes. The PG makes essentially all employer contributions to the SERS; PG
employes make almost all of the employe contributions to the SERS (virtually all PG employes are
required to join the SERS). The PG is responsibie for all of the SERS pension obligations. The SERS is a
blended component unit because it provides services and benefits almost exclusively to the PG.

Discretely Presented Component Units

State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities
Authority (HEFA) (Governmental Fund Types) — The SPSBA and the HEFA issue limited obligation
revenue bonds, the proceeds of which are used to finance the construction of facilities for school districts
and public and private colleges and universities. These bonds are repaid solely from lease rental payments
from the schools. Upon completion of the lease payment requirements (and satisfaction of bondholders),
the title to the constructed or acquired assets vests with the schools.

The PG appoints all nine voting members of the SPSBA and the HEFA governing boards; nine high-
ranking members of the PG serve as ex-officio members of each board. As a result, the PG is able to
impose its will. The PG Department of Education approves the SPSBA and the HEFA projects (which
indicates imposition of will and fiscal dependency). Although neither the PG nor the Authorities are
obligated for debt service payments (beyond lease rental payments from schools) the PG may take certain
actions to satisfy the SPSBA and the HEFA bondholders.

Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership (Partnership) (Governmental Fund Type} — The Partnership assists
business through interaction of technology development, modernization and training programs. Industrial
resource centers and technology centers, established through the Partnership, also increase the
competitiveness of businesses. Operations of the Partnership are funded by state appropriations and
private contributions; the Partnership may not issue debt. The Partnership works closely with the
Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED). The PG appoints all fifteen voting
members of the governing board. All Partnership expenditures must be appropriated annually by the
General Assembly.
24




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A— Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority (IFPA) (Governmental T ype) — The IFPA assists in the
prevention, discovery, investigation and prosecution of insurance fraud. The IFPA is funded through
assessments paid by the insurance industry and through certain criminal and civil fines, penalties and
awards.

The PG appoints six of seven voting members of the IFPA goveming board; the Attorney General serves
ex-officio as one of these six members. A significant portion of IFPA expenditures funds the Section on
Insurance Fraud in the Office of Attorney General; this indicates a financial benefit/burden. The IFPA is
not fiscally dependent on the PG.

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) (Proprietary Fund T ype} — The PHEAA
makes grants and loans to students to help fund the cost of higher education. Lending institutions and
post-secondary schools are involved in the loan program. The PG funds the PHEAA grant program; the
PHEAA issues revenue bonds to fund the student loan program. Revenue bonds are repaid from student
loan repayments. The PHEAA also services student loan portfolios for lending institutions.

The PG appoints all voting board members but does not significantly impose its will on the PHEAA. A
significant PG financial burden exists through subsidizing the grant program; also, although the PG is not
obligated for the PHEAA revenue bonds, the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. The
PHEAA is fiscally dependent, as the Governor must approve the issuance of its debt.

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PHFA makes loans to
eligible individuals and organizations to purchase or construct housing. The loan programs benefit low
and moderate-income individuals and families.

The PG appoints all voting board members; four of the fourteen members may be removed at will. The
Governor is required to request an appropriation from the General Assembly for the PHFA whenever a
deficiency exists in the capital reserve account or if additional funds are needed to avoid a default on the
PHFA debt. This represents a PG moral obligation for the PHFA debt. The Governor must approve the
issuance of the PHFA debt.

Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PIDA
collaborates with local industrial development corporations to make loans which help preserve or expand
the work force, assist targeted economic areas or assist specific companies. Loans are made at lower-than-
market interest rates; the interest rates are based on local unemployment and other economic conditions.
The PIDA issues revenue bonds to finance the loan program. Loan repayments are used for debt service
payments. The PIDA operates ciosely with the DCED.

The PG appoints all voting board members and is able to impose its will on the PIDA. The PG has
provided contributed capital; “excess” PIDA funds are transferred to the General Fund. The PG is not
obligated for the PIDA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The
PENNVEST makes grants and low-interest loans to local governments and authorities, businesses and
nonprofit organizations for the construction, improvement, repair or rehabilitation of drinking and waste
water systems. The PENNVEST obtains funds through Commonwealth general obligation bond proceeds
(approved by referendum), revenue bonds, the Federal government and contributed amounts from
Commeonwealth funds. Loan repayments finance the PENNVEST debt service costs. The PENNVEST
operates closely with the Department of Environmental Protection.

The PG appoints all voting board members; there are limitations on three of the thirteen appointments. By
issuing general obligation debt and providing the proceeds to the PENNVEST as contributed capital, the
PG creates a significant financial burden. The PG is not obligated for the PENNVEST debt, but the PG
could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution, the assets of the PENNVEST revert to
the Commonwealth.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A— Financial Reporting Entity (continuned)

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC) (Proprietary Fund Type) — The PTC was created 1o
construct, maintain and operate a turnpike system in the Commonwealth. Activities are financed through
user tolls and the issuance of revenue bonds. Debt service payments are funded through user tolls. The
PTC works closely with the Depariment of Transportation.

The PG appoints all voting members. The Department of Transportation must approve all contracts
related to turnpike construction and supervise construction. When all the PTC bondholders have been
satisfied, the PTC assets revert to the Department of Transportation. The Governor must approve the
issnance of all the PTC debt. The PG is not obligated for the PTC debt, but the PG could take certain
actions to satisfy bondholders.

Public School Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS) (Fiduciary Fund Type) — The PSERS was
created to administer and provide pension benefits to public school employes in Pennsylvania. The
PSERS covers almost all such employes. Employer contributions are made by covered, elementary and
secondary school employers with the PG reimbursing each employer at least half their required annual
contribution. Employer contributions for covered employes of higher education institutions and state-
owned schools are shared equally by covered employers and the PG; all covered public school employes
also make contributions.

The PG appoints eight of fifteen voting board members; the seven other members are appointed by active
or retired public school employes or are appointed by public school boards. In addition to making
significant contributions to the PSERS, the PG guarantees the payment of all annuities and other pension
benefits. This represents a compelling PG financial burden.

State System of Higher Education (SSHE) (College and University Funds) — The SSHE was created to
provide instruction for postsecondary students. The SSHE is composed of fourteen universities and an
administrative headquarters. Resources are provided by student tuition, grants and PG subsidies.

The PG appoints all voting board members. Five of the sixteen appointments must be trustees of
universities; three must be students. The PG provides significant operating and capital subsidies to the
SSHE. The PG is not obligated for the SSHE debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy
bondholders.

Pennsyivania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA)—The PEDFA was created to
lend money primarily to businesses to promote economic development in the Commonwealth. The
PEDFA issues revenue bonds to fund specific projects only and repayments are derived solely from
project revenues. The debt is considered non-recourse, as the Authority is not obligated to bondholders
beyond amounts received by the Authority from the funded projects. Financial statement information for
the PEDFA is not reported because its only activity involves non-recourse debt.

The PG appoints all sixteen board members; five members are ex-officio. The PG is not obligated for the
PEDFA debt, but the PG could take certain actions to satisfy bondholders. Upon dissolution, the assets of
PEDFA revert to the Commonwealth.

Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA)—The PEDA was created to promote the
development of energy sources within the Commonwealth. The PEDA issued revenue bonds and lent the
proceeds to fund three specific projects. Loan repayments are derived solely from project revenues. The
debt is considered non-recourse, as the PEDA is not obligated to bondholders beyond amounts received
from the funded projects. The PEDA has not issued any debt since 1990. Financial statement information
for the PEDA is not reported because its only activity involves non-recourse debt.

The PG appoints all nineteen board members; six members are ex-officio. The Governor must approve
the issuance of Authority debt. The PG is not obligated for the PEDA debt, but the PG could take certain

actions to satisfy bondholders.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE A— Financial Reporting Entity (continued)

Financial Reports

Audited financial statements for component units are available by writing to the Deputy Secretary for
Comptroller Operations, Room 207 Finance Building, Harrisburg, PA 17120.

Related Organizations

The Commonwealth created the Pennsylvania Municipal Retirement System (PMRS). The PG appoints
all eleven governing board members but is not financially accountable as there isno imposition of will,
no financial benefit/burden, nor fiscal dependency associated with the PMRS. Local governments are the
only participants in the PMRS. Participation is voluntary and there are variations among different
municipal pension plans. Local participating governments are financially responsible only for their own
plan obligations. The Commonwealth provides accounting services to the PMRS on a cost reimbursement
basis.

The Commonwealth also created the Automotive Theft Prevention Authority (ATPA). The PG appoints
all seven governing board members but is not financially accountable due to a lack of imposition of will
and no financial benefit/burden. The ATPA is not fiscally dependent on the PG. The operation of the
ATPA is funded by an annual assessment paid by companies providing automobile insurance in the
Commonwealth. The PG processes cash receipts and disbursements for the ATPA.

Joint Venture

The Commonwealth, through its Office of Administration, created the Pennsylvania Employes Benefit

Trust Fund (PEBTF) using a contractual agreement with various Commonwealth employe labor unions.

The PEBTF establishes and provides Commonwealth employe health and welfare benefits. The PEBTF is

administered by a governing board, one-half of whose members are each appointed by the

Commonwealth and the various unions. Neither the Commonwealth nor the unions control the governing
board or the PEBTF; administration is jointly and equally shared. The Commonwealth unilaterally pays
for the cost of providing benefits. Contribution amounts are based on the terms contained in collective
bargaining agreements. Employe unions are not financially responsible for making contributions. Neither
the Commonwealth nor the employe unions have an equity interest or any ongoing financial interest in the
PEBTF. Aside from its obligation to make periodic, established contributions, the Commonwealth is not
responsible for any obligations of the PEBTF.

Excluded Organizations

School districts, local governments and counties are considered separate, stand-alone primary
governments, as they are governed by popularly elected officials.

Secondary vocational-technical schools, intermediate units and community colleges were considered as
potential component units, but have been excluded from the financial reporting entity. These schools may
receive significant PG operating and/or capital subsidies, but the PG does not appoint a voting majority of
governing board members, nor does the PG impose its will on these organizations. Although various
Commonwealth laws affect or strongly influence these organizations, the PG does not control day-to-day
operating decisions. These organizations are not fiscally dependent on the PG.

Four universities, commonly referred to as “state-related,” including Pennsylvania State University,
University of Pittsburgh, Lincoin University and Temple University, were considered as potential
component units. The PG appoints a portion, but not a voting majority, of the governing board at each
university and provides significant operating and capital subsidies. However, given the absence of the PG
appointment of a voting majority and the lack of fiscal dependency, these universities are excluded from
the financial reporting entity.
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- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B— SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fund Accounting: In governmental accounting, a fund is defined as an independent fiscal and accounting entity,
with a self-balancing set of accounts, recording cash and/or other resources together with all related liabilities and
equities which are segregated for the purpose of carrying on specific activities or attajning certain objectives in
accordance with the fund’s special regulations, restrictions or limitations. In the Commonwealth, funds are
established by legislative enactment or in certain cases by administrative action.

The Commonwealth has established the following fund categories, fund types and account groups for the primary
government:

Governmental Funds

General Fund—Accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. The General Fund is the Commonwealth’s major operating fund.

Special Revenue Funds—Account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than expendable
trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

Debt Service Funds—Account for the accumulation of resources, principally transfers from other funds, for
the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects Funds—Account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of
major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions and other public organizations
(other than those financed by Proprietary or Fiduciary Funds).

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Funds—Account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a continuing basis,
including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user charges. The State Workmen’s
Insurance Fund is included for its fiscal year ended December 31, 1996 and the State Stores Fund for its
fiscal year ended June 24, 1997.

Internal Service Funds—Account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department or
agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental units, on a cost-
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Trust and Agency Funds—Account for assets held by the Commonwealith in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds. These include
Expendable Trust Funds, a Pension Trust Fund and Agency Funds. The State Employes’ Retirement
System, a Pension Trust Fund and the Deferred Compensation Fund and the INVEST Program for Local
Governments, Agency Funds, are included for their fiscal years ended December 31, 1996.

Account Groups

General Fixed Assets Account Group—Accounts for all general fixed assets acquired or constructed for use
by the Commonwealth in the conduct of its activities, except those accounted for in Proprietary Funds,
Pension Trust Funds, and College and University Funds.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group—Accounts for all long-term obligations of the
Commonwealth, except those accounted for in Proprietary Funds and College and University Funds.

The Component Units include Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, a Pension Trust Fund and College and
University Funds which are legally separate from the Commonwealth but are considered part of the reporting entity.
The College and University Funds are as follows:

College and University Funds

Account for the operations of the Office of the Chancellor and the 14 state-owned universities, which
comprise the State System of Higher Education, in accordance with the accounting guidance and reporting
practices outlined in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Industry Audit Guide, Audits of
Colleges and Universities, and other applicable guidance. Accordingly, the College and University Funds
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE B— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

are an aggregation of the following funds:

Current Funds—Unrestricted and University Designated—Account for economic resources of the
institution which are expendable for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
universities and have not been designated by the governing body for any other purpose.

Current Funds—Restricted—Account for resources received from donors or other outside agencies
that are restricted by them for specific operating purposes.

Loan Funds——Account for resources available for loans to students, faculty or staff.

Endowment and Similar Funds—Consist of endowment funds, term endowment funds and quasi-
endowment funds.

Endowment Funds—Account for resources which the donor has stipulated, as a condition of the
gift instrument, that the principal amount would be maintained inviolate and in perpetuity for
investment. Investment earnings may be added to the principal or expended for restricted or
unrestricted purposes, based on the donor’s stipulation.

Term Endowment Funds—Account for resources, all or a part of the principal of which may be
expended upon the passage of time or the occurrence of a particular event.

Quasi-Endowment Funds—Account for resources that the governing board of an institution, rather
than an outside source, has determined will be retained and invested. Since this is an internal
designation, the Board of Governors has the right to expend the principal of these funds at any
time.

Plant Funds—Account for (a) resources available to acquire or repair institutional properties and to
service debt incurred to acquire such properties and (b} the cost of fixed assets and the source from
which the cost is funded.

Agency Funds—Account for resources held by the institution acting in the capacity of an agent for
distribution to designated beneficiaries.

Component Units—Account for certain affiliated organizations for which the Board has oversight
responsibility.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting (GAAP): The general, special revenue, debt service, capital
projects funds (Governmental Fund Types) and expendable trust funds are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Assets and liabilities of agency funds are
reperted using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus, only current assets and
current liabilities are normally included on the balance sheet. Operating statementis of these funds present increases
(i.e., revenues and other financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses} in net current
assets. Unreserved fund balance represents a measure of available spendable resources. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues of governmental and expendable trust funds are recognized in the year that they
become both measurable and available (within 60 days of fiscal year-end) to pay curren: fiscal vear liabilities. The
Commonwealth accrues the following major revenue sources that are both measurable and available:

Sales and use taxes, cigarette taxes, corporation taxes, personal income taxes, liquid fuels taxes, liquor
taxes, grant revenues, investment income, institutional revenues, lottery revenues and sales of goods and
services,

Revenues from other sources are recognized when received. Expenditures are generally recognized in the fiscal year
the goods or services are received and the related fund liability is incurred. Debt service expenditures for principal
and interest on general long-term obligations are recognized when due unless resources have been provided for
payment early in the subsequent fiscai year. Prepaid items and inventory purchases are reported as current fiscal
year expenditures, rather than aliocating cost to the fiscal year when the items are used. Expenditures for claims,
judgments, compensated absences and employer pension contributions are reported as the amount accrued during
the fiscal year that normally would be liquidated with expendable available financial resources. Budgetary
encumbrances are not reported as expenditures.

The enterprise, internal service (Proprietary Fund Types) and pension trust funds are reported using the flow of

economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this measurement focus all assets

and liabilities assoclated with the operations of these funds are included on the balance sheet. Fund equity (i.e., net
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NOTE B— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

total assets) consists of contributed capital and retained earnings. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recognized in the fiscal year earned and expenses are recognized in the fiscal year incurred. Under GASB
Staternent 20, “Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That
Use Proprietary Fund Accounting,” the Commonwealth has elected not to adopt the Financial Accounting Standards
Board pronouncements issued after November 30, 1989,

The College and University Funds, a component unit, are reported using the “financial flow” (spending)
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. This treatment is in accordance with existing authoritative
accounting and reporting principies applicable to colleges and universities.

Basis of Accounting (Budgetary): The Commonwealth’s Constitution requires that the Governor submit a budget
annually to be adopted by the General Assembly for the ensuing fiscal year. The General Assembly may add,
change or delete any items in the budget proposed by the Governor, but the Governor retains veto power over the
individual appropriations passed by the legislature. The Governor may also reduce individual appropriations, but
may not increase them. A gubernatorial veto can be overridden only by a two-thirds majority of each House of the
General Assembly.

The Commonwealth’s budgets are prepared essentially on a cash basis. Total appropriations enacted by the General
Assembly may not exceed the ensuing fiscal year’s estimated revenues, as developed by the Governor, plus (less)
the unappropriated fund balance (deficit) of the preceding fiscal year, except for constitutionally anthorized debt
service payments.

Budgetary control is exercised at the appropriation level (legislative spending authority level). Encumbrances and
expenditures cannot exceed appropriated amounts. Appropriation transfers between departments and any
supplemental appropriations require both executive and legislative branch approval. Unencumbered and unexpended
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end and become available for appropriation in the subsequent year. On the
budgetary basis of accounting, certain estimated tax revenue accruals are recorded at fiscal year end for the General
Fund and the Motor License Fund, a Special Revenue Fund. Accruals include sales and use taxes and personal
income taxes, both applicable to the General Fund, and liquid fuels taxes applicable to the Motor License Fund,
which are estimated to be owed to the Commonwealth but not collected at fiscal year end. Also, estimated
encumbrances are established for all funds at fiscal year end to pay certain direct expenditures for salaries, wages,
travel, and utility costs payable against current year appropriation authority but expended in the subsequent year.
Over estimates of prior year encumbrances are lapsed in the subsequent year and under estimates are charged to
subsequent year appropriation authority. A separate document, “Stanzs of Appropriations™ for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997 reports the level of legal control at the appropriation level for specific departmental programs and
functions, and is available from the Commonwealth’s Office of the Budget.

Budgets are legally adopted each fiscal vear for the following funds:

General Fund
Special Revenue Funds:
State Lottery
Motor License
Workmen’s Compensation Administration

The legally adopted budget for the General Fund includes $164.3 million in supplemental appropriations approved
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1597.

Not all Special Revenue Funds are controlled by legally adopted budgets. Controls over spending in such Special
Revenue Funds are maintained by use of spending limits (executive authorizations) established by the Governor.

The Commonwealth also makes appropriations to authorize expenditures for various capital projects. Appropriations
for capital projects normally remain in effect until the completion of each project unless modified or rescinded.

Budget revenues in the accompanying Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) represent official estimates while
expenditures represent amounts originally adopted and legally amended. Actual amounts are presented on the
budgetary basis. Because the budgetary basis of accounting differs from GAAP, a reconciliation of the differences
between budgetary basis and the GAAP basis of reporting is presented in Note M.

Pooled Cash: In accordance with the Fiscal Code, cash balances of most Commonwealth funds are pooled by the
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Treasury Department. Cash balances are segregated by fund, but accounted for centrally for receipt and
disbursement purposes. The law requires that collateral be pledged by banks and other financial institutions to
guarantee the Commeoenwealth’s cash on deposit.

Cash Equivalents: No investments which could be defined as cash equivalents have been treated as such on the
Statement of Cash Flows; therefore, net changes in cash only are displayed.

Temporary Investments: The Fiscal Code provides the Treasury Department with investment control over most
Commonwealth funds. The Treasury Department manages the Short Term Investment Pool (STIP) as a cash
management and investment tool to provide safety, liquidity and income for the participating funds. Practically all
individual funds which are part of primary government are participants in the STIP. The Treasury Department
accounts for each participating fund’s equity (considered “shares™) in the STIP on a daily basis. “Share” balances of
participating funds flactuate considerably during the fiscal year, based on the timing of cash receipts and
disbursements in the participating fund, and are reported as temporary investments.

Several individual funds may own direct investments in specific securities. Such investments which are expected to
be realized in cash within twelve months or less are reported as temporary investments. All temporary investments
are stated at cost except for investments of the State Employes’ Retirement Systemn, the Public School Employes’
Retirement Systemn and the Deferred Compensation Fund, which are stated at fair value typically using quoted
market prices.

Long-Term Investments: Investments expected to be realized in cash after twelve months are reported as long-term
investments. Long-term Investments are stated at cost for equity securities and at amortized cost for debt securities,
except for investments of the State Employes’ Retirement System, the Public School Employes’ Retirement System
and the Deferred Compensation Fund, which are stated at fair value. Fair value is based on published market prices,
quotations from national securities exchanges and securities pricing services, or by the respective fund managers for
securities which are not actively traded. Other investments are valued based on appraisals or the present value of
projected future income.

Due From Other Governments: This receivable represents amounts due primarily from the Federal Government
for various department programs.

Grants: Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are recorded as
intergovernmental revenues when entitlernent occurs. Federal reimbursement-type erants are recorded as revenues
when the related expenditures or expenses are incurred.

Inventories: Inventories of goods, materials and supplies are maintained by the Proprietary and College and
University Funds. These inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market (first-in, first-out) for Proprietary and
weighted average for College and University Funds. In the governmental fund types, inventories are accounted for
on the purchases method.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation: General fixed assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost. Donated fixed
assets are stated at fair market value at the time of donation. Public domain general fixed assets (including
highways, bridges, highway land and rights-of-way) are not capitalized. No depreciation is provided on general
fixed assets. Land and buildings used by the State System of Higher Education (SSHE), which were acquired or
constructed before July 1, 1983, the inception date for the SSHE, are reported in the Commonwealth’s General
Fixed Assets Account Group. All general fixed assets acquired or constructed by the SSHE subsequent to June 30,
1983 without the use of university funds or incurrence of the SSHE debt are also reported in the Commonwealth’s
General Fixed Assets Account Group. This accounting treatment is used to conform to the enabling legislation for
the SSHE, which includes the vesting of title for the SSHE property.

Fixed assets related to Proprietary and Pension Trust Funds are reported in those funds at cost or estimated historical
cost. Depreciation is reported on a straight-line basis over the fixed assets’ estimated useful lives. The following
lives are used:

BUildings ..o e s 10-50 years

Improvements other than buildings.............. 5-50 years

Furniture, machinery and equipment .......cccovernevcvncececncnsceceeeee.. 3-25 years
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NOTE B— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fixed assets reported by the SSHE are stated at cost. Depreciation of SSHE fixed assets is recognized over the
estimated wseful life of the assets.

Self-Insurarce: The Commonwealth is uninsured for property losses and self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital
benefits, employe disability and tort claims. Reporting of self-insurance liabilities is described in Note O.

Compensated Absences: Employes earn annual leave based on 2 percent to 10 percent of regular hours paid. A
maximumn of 45 days may be carried forward at the end of each calendar year. Employes are paid for accumulated
annual leave upon termination or retiremerit.

Employes earn sick leave based on 5 percent of regular hours paid. A maximum of 300 days may be carried forward
at the end of each calendar year. Retiring employes that meet service, age or disability requirements are paid in
accordance with the following schedule:

Days Available Percentage Maximum
at Retirement Payment Days Paid
0-100 30% 30
101-200 40% 80
201-300 50% 150
over 300 (in last year 100% of days
of ernployment) over 300 i3

Accumulated annual and sick leave Hability payable in subsequent fiscal years from Governmental Funds and
Expendable Trust Funds are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group. Proprietary, Pension
Trust, and College and University Funds accrue annual and sick leave in the fiscal year earned.

Pension Costs: The Commonwealth’s policy is to fund pension costs incurred and to amortize prior service costs
over varying periods not exceeding 20 years.

Encumbrances: Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for
expenditures are recorded as a reserve of the applicable appropriation, is emploved as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the Commonwealth’s accounting system. Encumbrances outstanding at fiscal year end are
reported as reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures.

Intergovernmental Revenues: These amounts represent revenues received principally from the Federal
Government.

Tax Stabilization Reserve Fund: This fund, commonly referred to as the “Rainy Day Fund,” was created in July of
1985 by Act 32 to provide financial assistance to minimize future revenue shortfalls and deficits, and promote
greater continuity and predictability in the funding of vital government services. The tax stabilization reserve is not
to exceed 3 percent of the estimated revenues of the General Fund. Revenue is provided through an executive
authorization appropriated by the General Assembly for transfer to this fund. Whenever the Governor determines a
need to transfer moneys from this fund, a request for an appropriation is made to the General Assembly. An
appropriation from the fund requires approval by two-thirds of the members of the General Assembly. Also, Act 35
of 1991 provides that in any fiscal year in which there is a surplus of operating funds in the General Fund, as
certified by the Budget Secretary, fifteen percent of such surplus shall be deposited into this fund. In addition, the
proceeds received from the disposition of certain assets of the Commonwealth are also to be deposited into this fund.
For GAAP reporting purposes, this fund is reported as a designation in the General Fund.

Interfund Transactions: The Commonwealth has the following types of transactions among funds:

‘Statutory Transfers (Operating Transfers)—Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as
“Operating transfers in” by the recipient fund and as “Operating transfers out” by the disbursing fund.
Legally required transfers between primary govermnment and component unit organizations are reported

when incurred as “Operating transfers from component unit” by the recipient organization and “Operating

transfers to primary government” or “Operating transfers to component unit” by the disbursing fund.

Transfers of Expenditures (Reimbursements)—Reimbursement of expenditures made by one fund for
another that are recorded as expenditures in the reimbursing fund and as a reduction of expenditures in the
reimbursed fund.
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NOTE B— Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Residual Equity Transfers—Nonroutine or nonrecwrring transfers between funds that are reported as
additions to or deductions from the fund equity balance.

Interfund Payments (Quasi-external Transactions)—Charges or collections for services rendered by one
fund to another that are recorded as revenues of the recipient fund and expenditures or expenses of the
disbursing fund.

The composition of the Commonwealth’s interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 1997 is presented in Note
H.

New Accounting Pronouncements: The State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS), a blended component unit,
adopted GASB Statement 25, “Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for
Defined Contribution Plans.” GASB Statement 25 requires a change in the SERS’ financial statement format. The
standard requires that plan investments be reported at fair value and changes required disclosures, Note C provides
a restatement of SERS net plan assets based on adoption of GASB Statement 25.

Effective July 1, 1996, the Commonwealth has early adopted GASB Statement 27, “Accounting for Pensions by
State and Local Governmental Employers.” This standard changes the way pension liabilities are recognized and
measured by the Commonwealth and changes the pension disclosures related to the SERS and.the PSERS included
in Note 1. There is no pension liability (asset) prior to, or as a result of, implementing GASB Statement 27. There
were no changes to fund equity based on adoption of GASB Statement 27. '

Effective July 1, 1996, the Commonwealth has adopted GASB Statement 28, “Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Securities Lending Transactions.” This standard requires that securities lent and collateral received be reported
as assets, with a related liability being recorded equal to the fair value of the collateral received. Identification of the
few Commonwealth organizations/funds participating in the securities lending program, a description of the
program and related disclosures are provided as part of Note D. There were no changes to fund equity based on-
adoption of GASB Statement 28.

Effective July 1, 1996, the Commonwealth has adopted GASB Statement 30, “Risk Financing Omnibus.” Adoption
of this standard had an immaterial effect on the amounts reported for self-insurance claim expenditures/expense and
liabilities. Self-insurance disclosures are included in Note O.

Effective July 1, 1996, the Commonwealth has adopted GASB Interpretation 2, “Disclosure of Conduit Debt
Obligations.” Adoption of this standard had little effect on the disclosures included as part of Note K.

Effective July 1, 1996, the Commonwealth has adopted GASB Interpretation 3, “Financial Reporting for Reverse
Repurchase Agreements.” Adoption of this standard had an immaterial effect on the financial statements or the
disclosures included as part of Note D.

Total—Memorandum Only: The “Total (Memorandum Only)” columns represent an aggregation of the combined
financial statement amounts of the fund types and account groups and are presented only for analytical purposes.
These amounts are not comparable to a consolidation and do not represent the total resources available to or used by
the Commonwealth. Interfund eliminations have not been made in the aggregation of the totals.
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NOTE C—FUND BALANCE/RETAINED EARNINGS

Deficits: The Disaster Relief Fund, the Workmen’s Compensation Supersedeas Fund and the Home Investment
Trust Fund, Special Revenue Funds, reported fund balance deficits of $15,551, $941 and $261 (amounts in
thousands), respectively, at June 30, 1997.

The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, reported a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of
$365,079 at June 30, 1997. In total, the Capital Facilities Fund reported a fund balance of $6,556 at June 30, 1997.
Total Capital Projects Funds reported reservations for encumbrances of $374,597, designations for Capital Projects
of $67,846 and a deficit unreserved/undesignated fund balance of $365,679, for a total combined fund balance of
$77,364 at Yune 30, 1997 (amounts in thousands).

The Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund, an Expendable Trust Fund, reported a fund balance deficit of
$17,669 (in thousands) at June 30, 1997,

The Minority Business Development Fund, an Enterprise Fund, reported deficit retained earnings of $31,373 (in
thousands) at June 30, 1997, '

The State System of Higher Education, College and University Funds, reported a current funds unrestricted fund
balance deficit of $252,025 (in thousands) at June 30, 1997.

Restatements: The unreserved/undesignated budgetary basis fund balance for the General Fund has been restated
from $156,249 at June 30, 1996 to $158,503 at July 1, 1996 to account for $2,254 in spending authority which was
cancelled subsequent to the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 (amounts in thousands).

The previously reported net assets of the State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, have decreased
from $16,345,187 to $16,342,80% at December 31, 1995, due to an increase in plan liabilities of $1,906 resulting
from adoption of GASB Statement 25, and the elimination of $472 of previously reported fixed assets (amounts in
thousands).

Reserves and Designations: Reserves represent portions of fund balances that are legally segregated for a specific
future use or are not appropriable for expenditure.

The amount reserved for advances in the General Fund, $74.8 million, is applicable to a demand loan to the State
Stores Fund for $66 million, an advance to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund for $2.3 million, both Enterprise
Funds, and an advance to the Motor License Fund for $2.2 million and the Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund for $4.3
million, both, Special Revenue Funds. For its fiscal year ended December 31, 1996 the State Workmen’s Insurance
Fund has reported an advance from the General Fund in the amount of $2 million.

The amount reserved for advances in the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, is applicable to a
$3 million advance to the Small Business First Fund, an Enterprise Fund.

The $27.9 million reported as “Reserved for other” in the General Fund at June 30, 1997 pertains to $23.5 million
for other receivables and a $4.4 million portion of the $4.7 million in other assets.

The $10 thousand reported as “Reserved for other” in the Special Revenue Funds at June 30, 1997 pertains to
reserves for other receivables in the State Lottery Fund and the Supplemental Municipal Pension Aid Fund in the
amount of 38 thousand and $2 thousand, respectively.

The $141.1 million reported as “Reserved for other” in the College and University Funds, a discretely presented
component unit, at June 30, 1997 pertains to approved academic projects that will begin in subsequent fiscal periods.

Reserved retained eamings reported for Enterprise Funds are provided principally for insurance claims relating to
the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, reserves for contingencies for the Rehabilitation Center Fund, and equipment
replacement reserves for other enterprise funds. Reserved retained eamings reported for Discretely Presented
Component Unit Proprietary Funds are provided principally for the retirement of revenue bonds relating to the
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NOTE C—Fund Balance/Retained Earnings (continued)

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, student loans relating to the Pennsylvania Hicher Education Assistance
Agency, and housing loans relating to the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency. At June 30, 1997 the
Commonwezlth has included the following reservations of retained earnings for the Enterprise Funds and the
Discretely Presented Component Unit Proprietary Funds (expressed in thousands):

Discretely

Presented
Primary Component

Government Unit

State Workmen’s Insurance Fund.........ooecveevceeevccieicneceene, $ 62,647 $ e
Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission .........couvvveevecevcecercenene-. e 1,003,621
Pennsyivania Higher Education Assistance Agency .............. ce 258,804
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency ........coccoveevvevccencene. e 123,406
Other Enterprise Funds ..o 5,406 e
L v U UV $ 68,053 $ 1,385,831

Designations of unreserved fund balances reflect managerial plans for the future use of financial resources. At.June
30, 1997 the Commenwealth has included the following amounts as “Designated—Other” for the General Fund and
Special Revenue Funds (expressed in thousands):

General Fund:

Tax stabilization ..........cocoooiiiee e $412,313
Restricted reVenuUe ......ovieeee i oo 166,974
CONtiNUING PrOZamS .....ccovvvevriarterevressresereresessserernsenens 117,092
Group medical and life insurance........ccoeevvevrcceeeeene.. 64,471
(05 (7= SO UUUR NPT 71,585

Total General FUnd.......ooooooiiioeeeieeeeeeeceee e $ 832,435

Special Revenue Funds:

Land reclamation ..o oot eeeee s eeessreresareenres § 23422
Recycling programs.......c.ccveeieeeeieeveveeeeeeeee e e e 2,354
Fishing, boating and game programs.........coceeereeeeeene. 1,780
L0 12 1= U SOOI 1,508

Total Special Revenue Funds ... § 29,064

In addition, the Self-Insurance Guaranty Fund, an Expendable Trust Fund, reported $3,395 thousand as
“Designated—Other” for future worker’s compensation self-insurance claims.

The Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority, a discretely presemted governmental fund component unit, reported
£4,302 thousand as “Designated—Other” for future program grants.
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NOTE D — DPEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Authority for deposits and investments:

The deposit and investment policies of the Treasury Department are governed by section 301, 301.1 and 505 of the
Pennsylvania Fiscal Code (Act of 1929, P.L. 343, No. 176, amended November 16, 1985). Treasury deposits must
be held in insured depositories approved by the Board of Finance and Revenue and must be fully collateralized. The
Treasury Department may invest in direct obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Government agencies with
maturities not exceeding two years; commercial paper rated “Prime One” by Moody’s Investors Service or the
equivalent by Standard and Poor’s or Fitch Investors Service; certificates of deposit issued by Pennsylvania banks or
savings and loan associations; repurchase agreements secured by Federal obligations; banker’s acceptances; and up
to 2 maximum of 10 percent of the book value of a fund’s assets in any investment (other than common stock) not
otherwise specifically authorized.

The Treasury Department uses a variety of sophisticated investment pools to ensure safety and maximize efficiency,
liquidity and yield for Commonwealth funds. All participating funds report amounts invested in such pools as
temporary and/or long-term investments; the pools themselves are not financially reported. The Treasury
- Department has also established an investment pool for local governments. Although local governments are not
included in the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity, this particular pool, the INVEST Program for Local
Governments, is reported as an agency fund.

The deposit and investment policies of certain component units are established by authority other than the Fiscal
Code. Enabling statutes generally provide deposit and investment authority for component units. Further, specific
bond and trust indentures, as well as formal governing board resolutions, provide deposit and investment
requirements. Allowable investments of component units do not significantly differ from those investments of the
Treasury Department, except that, in accordance with applicable statutory authority, the State Employes’ Retirement
System and the Public School Employes’® Retirement System, Pension Trust Funds, have invested in common and
preferred stocks, corporate and foreign bonds and notes, mortgages and real estate during their fiscal years. These
two Funds also participate in a securities lending program, sponsored by the Treasury Department, and utilize
financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk. Specific disclosures about Pension Trust Fund investments are
included in this Note.

Deposits:

The Treasury Department comrols the receipt and disbursement of amounts owned by agencies included in the
primary government. Certain discretely presented component units, meanwhile, control receipt and disbursement of
their own funds, typically through a trustee. The following summaries present the amount of primary government
and discretely presented component units (Commonwealth) deposits which are fully insured or collateralized with
securities held by the Commonwealth or its agent in the Commonwealth’s name (Category 1), those deposits which
are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent in the
Commonwealth’s name (Category 2) and those deposits which are not collateralized or are collateralized by the
pledging financial institution or the pledging institution’s trust department or agent, but not in the Commonwealth’s
name (Category 3) at June 30, 1997 (expressed in thousands).

Primary Government

Total Carrying

Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 - Bank Balance Amount
Cash e § 41,623 $ 45,000 $ 10345 § 96,968 $ 138217
Cash with fiscal agents ......oeevvcoeeioceei 2,290,595 6,193 9,721 2,306,511 2.304,402
Certificates of deposit and related #ems............... 130,063 5,114 14,489 149.666 149.666

The above-listed $149,666 in certificates of deposit and related items is reported as part of primary government temporary
investments at June 30, 1997.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Total Carrying

Category 1 Category 2 Category3  Bank Balance Amount
CASH e b i $ 4274 $ 8.875 $ 33,628 $ 83244 $ 76,636
Cash with fiscal 82entS .....ccccceeeiriccsrniernsrerninians 2,261 . 19319 21,580 24,077

e
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NOTE D— Deposits and Investments (continued)

Investments:

The Treasury Department, other agencies in the primary government and discretely presented component units
{Commonwealth) categorize investments according to the level of credit risk assumed by the Commonwealih.
Category 1 includes investments that are insured, registered or held by the Commonwealth or the Commonwealth’s
agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and unregistered investments held by the
counterparty’s trust department or agent in the Commonwealth’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or its agent, but not in the
Commonwealth’s name. Certain investments have not been categorized because securities are not used as evidence
of the investment. These uncategorized investments include ownership interests in mutual funds and in mortgage,
real estate and venture capital pools. The following summaries identify the level of credit risk assumed by the
Commonwealth and the total carrying amount and market value of Commonwealth investments at June 30, 1997
(expressed in thousands).

Primary Government

All primary government investrents susceptible to credit risk are in Category 1, except $4,700 in corporate bonds
and notes which are in Category 2.

Carrying Market

Amount Value
COmMMErCIal PAPET....c.vvvire v rerrssreeeerarmeesrr s s eeens RN § 216,841 $ 217,596
Common and preferred stock... 3,992,673 4,001,312
Corporate DONdS and NOES........cverreeeeeeree e ereere et reesee et et ne s e aean e esens 2,292,670 2,293,267
International QUETIES ..., ..o e e e e e e e 1,788,407 1,788,407
International fixed income ... 474,311 474,311
Mortgage-based JOAMNS ... ....oo ettt e b e e 187 187
RepUrChase agICeIMENITS. . uuiueiruirrerrarrnristiras serrsssesrecarassesrassssesrssesssassses sresrenssaessansares 4,493 368 4,493,383
State and municipal obligations............. 324,052 323,869
U.S. Government obligations................ 2,343,111 2,356,258
U.S. Government agency obligations .... 642,264 640,549

Total categorized INVESHMENES......oo oo e e e 16,567,884 16,589,169

Add investments not susceptible to credit risk categorization:
Investments owned by the Deferred Compensation Fund at December 31, 1996:
IVIUENAL FUBES ...t ee b ee e e e cee e be e e s e e saes e beesaeeenbasensnesrmseenn 388.323 388,323
Investments owned by the State Emploves’ Retirement Syvstem (SERS)
at December 31, 1996:

IIOIEEAZE LGNS ..ottt ettt et eae e et et e ettt aeesnmamsanns 406,797 406,797
IMIEEUEL IS - e e et 5.186.740 5,186,740
Real estate 1,395,008 1.393.,008
Securities tending eollateral. ... oo s 1,436,603 1,436,603
Venture capital....ccoovvvenen. 551.803 551.803
Securities fent by SERS at Decernbcr 31 1996
L ORI € TRV2Ta 4101 1=) (1Tt ot g 11 LS 400,112 400,112
Corporate bonds And MOIES.....c.ivriceerieinesireiserstisrae e sissraessattssseermessrerss bt emssrssarabenas 72.063 72,063
Common and preferred stocks 367,414 367,414
Itemational SQUITIES .. oo e et 506.627 506,627
International fixed income _............ 156,281 156,281
Investments owned by the Statutorv Liquldator Fund at June .>0 1997
Loans ... 828 328
Mortoagc]oans 6.837 6.837
Partnership mtcrcsts 93 93
Subsidiaries... 1,484 1,484
Securities iendma collateral hcld bv thc Workmen s Compensatlon Secuntv
Trust Fund at June 30, 1997 .. 190,485 190,485
Securities lending collateral heid bv the State Workmen S lnsura.nce
Fund at December 31, 1996... 253,574 233,574
27.888.958 27,910,243
Certificates of deposit and related items.......ccocceveevvciinn 149,666 149,666
Total temporary and long-term MVESIMENTS ...ovvcrve v ceenr s 328,038,624 $ 28,059,909

The above-listed $149,666 in certificates of deposit and related items are reported as investments at June 30, 1997,
but are treated as deposits for a determination of the level of credit risk associated with them. From time to time
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D— Beposits and Investments (continued)

during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the Treasury Department participated in reverse repurchase agreements;
no agreements were outstanding at June 30, 1997.

The State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, owns approximately 99 percent of the common and Eﬂ
preferred stock, 85 percent of the corporate bonds and notes, 100 percent of international equities, and 50 percent of
the U.S. government obligations reported in the above summary. The Treasury short-term investment pool owns 86 i
percent of the repurchase agreements in the above summary. There were no violations of statutory authority or j'
contractual provisions for investments during the year ended June 30, 1997.

Financial Instruments With Off-Balance Sheet Risk . E

The State Employes’ Retirement System (SERS) enters into foreign exchange centracts, such as forward and spot
contracts, to hedge foreign currency exposure. Some foreign currency options also are used for this purpose. The
SERS is not a dealer but an end-user of these instruments. The contracts are nsed primarily to enhance performance
and reduce the volatility of the portfolic. Contracts used to enhance performance are fully collateralized,
eliminating the use of leverage in the portfolio. The SERS is exposed to credit risk in the event of nonperformance
by counterparties to financial instruments. As the SERS generally enters into transactions only with high quality i
institutions, no iosses associated with counterparty nonperformance on derivative financial instruments have been C
imcurred. Legal risk is mitigated though careful selection of brokers and an extensive process of review of all )
documentation. The SERS 1s exposed to market risk—the risk that future changes in market conditions may make ;
an instrument less valuable. Exposure to market risk is managed within risk limits set by management by buying or \
selling instruments or entering into offsetting positions. L

At December 31, 1996, the SERS had contracts maturing through December 4, 1997 to purchase or sell foreign
currency as follows {expressed in thousands}:

Buy at . Sell at Net

Spot Rate Spot Rate Payable -§

DIEULSCRITIATI ... v et rrr e s s e srre s e e e as e b e sssb e te s s beae e $ 330,865 $698.533 $(367.668) D

French Franc........oocoveveeeeeceeee s 194,988 298,055 { 103,067 ) o
Swedish Kroner e 105,265 { 105,265)
Pound Sterling ........ 381,884 546,215 {164,331)
JEPANESE YL .ottt ettt e e et an e 176,666 416,169 (239,503 )
L0717 U OO U O OS 209,564 445,536 {235,972)
$1,293,967 $2.500.773 $( 1,215.806)

Discretely Presented Component Units
Carrying Amount

Market {
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Total Value Lo
Asset backed securities ..ol h . $ 61.023 $ e $ 61,023 % 61,090
Commercial paper... . e 116,896 ce 116,896 116,896
Common and preferred stock 17.802.511 126 1,924 17.804.561 17,805,180
. Corporate bonds and notes... 1,016,663 2,177 R 1,018,840 1.019.020
Guaranteed investment contracts... R 90,232 e 90,232 90,232
International equIties ..........cccu.eceeernicnieeciierneens 5,976,614 . e 5,976,614 5,976,614 o
International fixed income...... 2,131,629 . e 2,131,629 2,131,629 ;
Investment agreements ........cocooeveveeeveeeeeeeeseceeenss e 1,334 e 1,334 1,334
Limited partnership..... ..o e B 69 69 44 )
Mortgage-backed SeCUrities .....coocoocvrviever e 2,369,342 70.493 R 2,439 835 2,440,182 ; }‘
Repurchase agreements ..........occovvevrccveceeeeenns 157.251 376,390 211,698 945,339 945352 f
State and municipal obligations... 430,606 63.061 e 513,667 513,642
U.S. Government obligations... 74,203 138.381 e 212,584 228,622 .
U.S. Government agency obhgatlons 1,139,555 216,713 408 1,356,676 1,381,803 ]
Various shori-term investments .. 288,932 Ce 2.309 291.241 291.241 o
Total categorized investrnents $ 31.407.306 $1,336.826 $216.408 32,960,340 33.002.881




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D—- Deposits and Investments (continued)

Investments not susceptible to credit risk categorization:

Investments owned by the State Public School Building Authority at June 30, 1997:
Pennsylvania Treasury INVESTMENt POOL.. ..ottt 33,752 33,752
IMORNEY TOATKET. 1.t e crae e ree s e eee et eeet et eestes e ee e eeres ot e s s seean e eemen. 10,175 10,175

Investments owned by the Higher Educational Facilities Authority at June 30, 1997:
MOREY MIBTKET ..ot ettt e eee e ee e eemeo e eee e emv e e st etatemsemmeeemeenessemees 88,402 §8.402

Investments owned by the Ben Franklin/IRC Partnership in Pernsylvania Treasury
investment POOl At JUNE 30, T907 oo et er e ee oo 1,935 1,939

Investments owned by the Insurance Fraud Prevention Authority in the Pennsylvania
Treasury investment pool at JURE 30, 1997 i e evee e eess s e et s e 5,591 3.591

Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority in

Pennsylvania Treasury investment pool at June 30, 1997 ..o, 809 809
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency at June 30, 1997;
INVESIMNERE BETERIMENTS ...\rertiviviteeite e eee e e ee e e s eeee et et eeee et e et s ess et et e 69,682 69,682
Mutual funds... 72,339 72,339
Pennsylvania Treasury mvestment pool 3,536 3,536
Money market... 128,073 128,073
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency at June 30, 1997:
Guaranteed IMVESHTIGHT COMITACTS .. ..oooiteeeee e eeeeeeeres st erastet e b e ee e eeeeeee e e s eee et e eeee oo 5,532 3.352
Money market......coooeeeceeenreieiens 93,093 93,093
Investment agreements ... 100,612 100,612
Pennsylvania Treasury mvestmcnt pool 158,014 158,014
Investments owned by the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority at June 30, 1997:
Pennsylvania Treasury investment POOL. ...t e 89.170 89,170
IMIUEUED FUNES. ettt e ee e e e et e et et e e ee e e e e et ees s e et 53,041 53.041
Investments owned by the Public School Employes’ Retirement System at June 30, 1997 )
Common and preferred stock..... . 1,642,203 1.642.203
Corporate bonds and notes......... 15,441 19,441
" Farmland investments............ 78,858 78.858
U.S. GOVEINMENT BZENCY tuvreririeieie ettt eeeste e e seeveeeeeresrsnssas e 1,440,420 1,440,420
International EQUILIES ..........ccceeriemi e 1,198,696 1,198,696
International fixed income...... 1,235,137 1,235,137
Limited partnerships... 41.583 41,583
Pennsylvania Treasury mvcstment pool 681.859 681,859
o Private placements, fixed income and equny 111,488 111,488
' Real estate.. 1,538,364 1.538,364
Securities lf:ndmo collatera] 3.727.379 3.727.379
T Venture capital... 393,180 395.180

Investments owned by the State System of Higher Education at June 30, 1997:
IMUTUA] FUTIS. ettt ettt een s e e e se e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e e eee e e 2.049 2.049
Pooled commeon funds .. 5,093 5,093
Other short-term mvestmems 1.524 1,524

Total temporary and lono—term investments $47,993,590 §48,035,935

The Public School Employes® Retirement System (PSERS), a Pension Trust Fund, owns approximately 100 percent
of the common and preferred stock, 100 percent of the corporate bonds and notes, 100 percent of international
equities, 100 percent of international fixed income, 97 percent of mortgage-backed securities, 100 percent of the real
estate, and 62 percent of U.S. government agency obligations reported in the above summary. The Pennsylvania
Turnpike Commission, a Proprietary Fund, owns 61 percent of the repurchase agreements in the above summary.
There were no violations of statutory authority or contractual provisions for investments during the fiscal year ended
June 30, 1997.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D— Deposits and Investments (continued)

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The Public Employes’ Retirement Systern (PSERS) enters into a variety of financial contracts, which inciude
options, firtures, and swaps. The PSERS also enters into foreign exchange positions, such as forward and spot
contracts to hedge foreign currency exposure. The PSERS is not a dealer but an end-user of these instruments. The
contracts are used primarily to enhance performance and reduce the volatility of the portfolio. Contracts used to
enhance performance are fully collateralized, eliminating the use of leverage in the portfolio. The PSERS is exposed
to credit risk in the event of nonperformance by counterparties to financial instruments. As the PSERS generally
enters into transactions only with high-quality institutions, no losses associated with counterparty nonperformance
on derivative financial instruments have been incurred. Legal risk is mitigated through careful selection of executing
brokers and an extensive process of review of all documentation. The PSERS is exposed to market risk, the risk that
future changes in market conditions may make an instrument less valuable. Exposure to market risk is managed
within risk Hmits set by senior management, by buying or selling instruments or entering into offsetting positions.

The contract or notional amounts of derivatives indicate the extent of the PSERS’s involvement in the various types
and uses of derivative financial instraments and do not measure the PSERS’s exposure to credit or market risks and
do not necessarily represent amounts exchanged by the parties. The amounts exchanged are determined by reference
to the notional amounts and the other terms of the derivatives.

The following table summarizes the number of open contracts, and aggregate notional or contractual amounts for the
PSERS’s derivative financial instruments at June 30, 1997 (dollar amounts in thousands):

Number of Contractual

contracts amount
Futures contracts long and short ... . 27.110 $ 4.265,882
Foreign exchange forward and spot contracts, GIOSS oo 272 2,632,174
Options—calls purchased ... e 2,785 244,220
Options—puts purchased..... ........... 72.999 473,245
Options—calls sold.............. Ceeterte et etmeeteene et aeeatietesteiranmeaneteanentetnenrseeerarans 14,247 637.493
Options—puts SOIA ..o e 5.979 326,082

Futures contracts are contracts in which the buyer agrees to purchase and the seller agrees to make delivery of a
specific financial instrument at a predetermined price. Gains and losses on futures contracts are settled daily based
on a notional {underlying) principal value and do not involve an actual transfer of the specific instrument. Futures
contracts are standardized and are traded on exchanges. The exchange assumes the risk that a counterparty will not
pay and generally requires margin payments to minimize such risk. Initial margin requirements on futures contracts
are provided by investment securities pledged as collateral.

Option contracts provide the option purchaser with the right, but not the obligation, to buy or sell the underlying
security at a set price during a period or at a specified date. The option writer is obligated to buy or sell the
underlying security if the option purchaser chooses to exercise. The PSERS only utilizes exchange listed index and
equity options and primarily call options which settle in cash. The PSERS has authorized investment managers to
write covered call stock index options up to an amount of $4.5 billion of the equity portfolio.

Foreign exchange contracts involve an agreement to exchange the cumrency of one country for the currency of
another country at an agreed-upon price and settlement date. The contracts reported above primarily include
forwards. The $2.652.2 million of foreign currency centracts outstanding at June 30, 1997 consists of “buy”
contracts of $1,336.9 million, which represent the U.S. dollar equivalent of commitments to purchase foreign
currency commitments, and “sell” contracts of $1,315.2 million, which represent U.S. dollar equivalents of
commitments to sell foreign currencies.

The PSERS also invests in mortgage-backed securities such as collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) and
interest-only strips in part to maximize yields and in part to hedge against a rise in interest rates. These securities are
sensitive to prepayments by moertgagees, which may result from a drop in interest rates. The fair market value of
CMOs at June 30, 1997 is $1,214.3 million.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE D— Deposits and Investments (continued)

Securities Lending Program

The following funds or organizations participate in a securities lending program established by the Treasury
Department: State Lottery (a Special Revenue Fund), State Workmen’s Insurance (an Enterprise Fund), Workmen’s
Compensation Security Trust (an Expendable Trust Fund), Statutory Liquidator (an Agency Fund), the State
Employes’ Retirement System (a blended component unit Pension Trust Fund) and the Public School Employes’
Retirement System (a discretely presented component unit Pension Trust Fund). The Fiscal Code provides the
Treasury Department with numerous custodial responsibilities; the securities program is an integral part of the
custodial function. A contract between the Treasury Department and its custodian, acting as lending agent, provides
that the custodian lends securities owned by the participants to independent brokers, dealers and banks, acting as
borrowers.

Lending agreements between the custodian and the borrowers require that the custodian receive collateral from the
borrowers in exchange for the securities lent. For securities lent which are not denominated in United States dollars
or whose primary trading market is located outside the United States, the fair value of the collateral received must be
a least 105 percent of the fair value of the securities lent. For all other securities lent, the fair value of the collateral
received must be at least 102 percent. Securities lent consist of both domestic and foreign equity securities and
United States Treasury and foreign debt obligation. Almost all collateral received consists of cash; a very small
portion of collateral received consists of letters of credit, United States Treasury, corporate and foreign debt
obligations. Collateral is marked to market daily. Additional collateral from borrowers is required if the fair value
of the collateral received declines below lending agreement requirements. The lending agent cannot pledge or sell
collateral securities received unless the borrower defaults. Accordingly, neither collateral securities received from
borrowers nor the related obligations to borrowers are reported.

To the extent collateral received consists of cash, the lending agent may use or invest the cash in accordance with
reinvestment guidelines approved by the Treasury Department. Either the participant or the borrower may terminate
lending agreements on demand. Lending agreements are typically of very short duration - usually overnight.
Therefore, the duration of lending agreements does not generally match the maturities of the investments made with
cash collateral. The resulting rate risk is mitigated by the lending agent’s ability to reallocate lending agreements
among program participants.

The program requires that the lending agent indemnify the Treasury Department for all claims, liabilities and costs
resulting from the lending agent’s negligence or intentional misconduct. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997
{December 31, 1996 for the SWIF and the SERS), there were no failures by any botrower to return securities lent or
pay distributions thereon. Also, there were no losses resulting from a lending agent or borrower default and there
were no Treasury Department restrictions on the amount of the loans that could be made.

At June 30, 1997 (December 31, 1996 for the SWIF and the SERS), there was no Treasury Department or
participant credit risk to the borrowers because the fair value of collateral received was greater than the fair value of
the securities lent, consistent with the lending agreements outstanding. The carrying amount and fair value of the
securities lent are (amounts in thousands):

Carrying Amount Fair Value
State Workmen’s Insurance ... & 276,870 $ 276,870
Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust ........... 188,145 188,145
State Emploves’ Retirement System .................... 1,502,497 1,502,497
Public School Employes™ Retirement System...... 6,085,807 6,085,807

Neither the State Lottery Fund nor the Statutory Liquidator Fund had outstanding lending agreements at June 30,
1997.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS L

NOTE E—FIXED ASSETS

A summary of fixed assets by category at June 30, 1997 is as follows (expressed in thousands):
Primary Government Discretely Presented
l | | Component Units i
Coliege
Internal General Fixed and .
Enterprise Service Assets Proprietary Fiduciary University
Funds Funds Account Group Funds Fund Funds 3
Land.ooivriicneen $ 323 $ 6 T 248735 § 88979 3 - $ 8918 ;
Buildings .....ccoovcenne. 3,597 4,492 2,993,408 - 433,496 - 368,778 %
Improvements other L
than buildings ........... 4,598 1,359 246,401 25.842 - 53,270
Machinery :
and equipment .......... 68,217 66,248 547,619 197,961 14,894 352,794 : \
Turnpike o
infrastructure............. - - - 2,460,381 - -
Construction in - |
PrOZIESS uvvveenevrecraeenns - - 373.014 261.705 - 40,359 o
Total oo $_76735 § 72105  § 4409177 $ 3.468.364 § 14,894 $ 826,159 L
}
Changes in general fixed assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 are as follows (expressed in thousands):
Balance Batance
June 30, June 30, E )
1996 '\dd:tmns gE{Etlrements ) - }39:{__ |
Land...coeoceoeeect e $ 244,738 $ 4349 $ 352 $ 248,735 o
Buildings......o.coveeercneenn e 2,907,733 88,435 2,760 2,993,408 .
Improvements other than buildings....... 229,565 17,246 410 246,401 :
Machinery and equipment.............o..e. 376.901 38,3350 67.632 547.619
3,958,937 148.380 71,154 4,036,163
Construction in progress ......coococeeeeeee 363.809 115.069 105.864 373.014
Total General Fixed Assets 5 4.322.746 $ 263449 $ 177018 $ 4409177

Interest costs of $12.9 million were capitalized for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely presented )
component unit Proprietary Fund, for their fiscal year ended May 31, 1997,

The Commonwealth’s initial valuation of general fixed assets was made as of June 30, 1986 including appraisal and
historical cost reconstruction techniques. Subsequent to June 30, 1986 general fixed asset acquisitions are reported at
cost, or for donations or confiscations at fair market value. At June 30, 1997 the amount of general fixed assets
related to the initial valuation amounts to $1,953 million.

Construction in progress included in the General Fixed Assets Account Group at June 30, 1997 is composed of the
following (expressed in thousands):

Expended Through June 30, 1997

Amounts Amounts ‘:
Project Previously Not Capitalized Authorization 1
Authorization Capitalized To Date Available h

Capital Complex Projects ... ; e 5 388,997 5 191,778 $ 55778 § 341441 ;

Department of Corrections e — 357.733 41.921 239,621 276,191 P

Colleges and Universities .. 142,062 - 26,723 115,339 .
Veteran Homes and M:lltarv Armor:es 61,227 - 31,833 29,394

Department of Public Welfare Instltutlons ................. 43,711 - 5403 38,308 Pl

L1111 USROS SO SRUU RO 41.808 - 13.656 28.152 ;
TOtal oo SRR $1.435538 § 233699 § 373014 § 828825
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE F— INSURANCE LOSS LIABILITY

The reported insurance loss liability of the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund (SWIF), an Enterprise Fund, is
primarily based on historical claims experience. Several assumptions were used to determine the liability amount,
including; 1) a 5.5 percent discount rate; 2) extensive changes in statutory benefits resulting from Act 44 in 1993
and Act 57 in 1996; and 3} changes in claims management practices. SWIF management expects that, over time, the
legisiative and operational changes will substantially reduce claim duration, and the utilization and cost of medical
services. SWIF management does not have significant empirical data to conclusively determine the amount by
which these changes will reduce the reported liability. The estimated effects of these changes were included in the
annual actuarial reserve analysis through adjustments to the historic data. The uncertainty regarding whether the
adjusted historic data will be supported by future claim experience, including payments, must be considered when
evaluating the reported insurance loss liability.

For the two calendar years ended December 31, 1996, the following summary provides information on prior year
reported insurance loss liability, incurred claims and payments, and current year reported insurance loss lability
(expressed in thousands):

Year Ended Prior Year —Incurred Claims ¥ Payments— Current Year

December 31 Liability Current Prior Current Prior ' Liability
1996 s $1.463.301 $ 270,942 $ 4,807 ;3 32,656 $ 231.637 $1,474,757
1995 e 1.230.130 355,723 142,577 31,036 234,073 1.463,301



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE G— TAXES, LOANS AND LEASE RENTAL RECEIVABLES

Taxes Receivable: Taxes receivable at June 30, 1997 consisted of the following (expressed in thousands):

Special Trust and
General Revenue Agency
Fund Funds Funds Total
SalES ANA USE.. oot re et ste e e e § 563,954 § 23370 % ... % 589524
Unemployment compensation ................ Cees .. 301,234 301,234
Personal MCOMIE. c.vviiee et e e e 196,638 s . 196,638
Corporation 62,175 . S 62,175
Liquid fuels . 60,989 2,763 63,752
OREE e 20,694 75,673 . 96.367

3 845481 § 160,032 $ 303,997 § 1309510

Notes and Loans Receivable: Loans receivable at June 30, 1997 consisted of the following (expressed in
thousands):

Discretely Presented
Primary Government Component Units
. College
Special and
Revenue Enterprise  Proprietary  University
Funds Funds Funds Funds
Mortgage 0ans ....cooveee oo $ B $ o $2623510 0% o
Student I0ans ...coceverien e - e 1,604,085 33,570
Business development loans..... 62,958 105,606 692,621 e
Water and sewer system loans...... 21.327 . 1,039,331
Volunteer fire company loans....... o 71,765
Other notes and 10ans ..o, 7.353 10,094 Lo L
91,638 187,465 5.939.547 33,5370
Less: Allowance for uncollectible accounts............. 13.682 27.749 211,635 4,798
Notes and loans receivable, Nete... e $ 77.956 $ 159716 § 5.747.892 % 28,772

Discretely presented component unit governmental funds reported $3,992 thousand of loans to school districts at
June 30, 1997.

Lease Rentals Receivable: The Capital Facilities Fund, a Capital Projects Fund, finances construction projects for
educational institutions through the issuance of General Obligation Bonds, the principal and interest of which are
paid through the collection of lease rental payments and deposits in the related Capital Debt Fund, a Debt Service
Fund. At the conclusion of the lease terms, the project facilities are conveyed to the educational institutions.
Accordingly, these lease arrangements are classified as direct financing leases. Lease rental receivables and
associated deferred revenue equal to the principal lease payments to be received are recorded in the Capital Debt
Fund. For the Capital Debt Fund, the total minimum lease payments to be received were $3.1 million and the
present value of the lease payments was $2.4 million at June 30, 1997, the difference representing interest of $.7
million. The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and the State Public School Building Authority,
discretely presented governmental fund component units, finance construction projects for educational institutions
through the issuance of bonds and other obligations, the principal and interest of which are paid through the
collection of lease rental payments related to the project. At the conclusion of the lease terms, the project facilities
are conveyed to the educational institutions. Accordingly, these lease arrangements are classified as direct financing
leases. For discretely presented governmental fund component units, total minimum lease payments were $4.8
biilion, the present value was $2.9 biilion and interest was $1.9 billion at June 30, 1997. The Pennsylvania Industrial
Development Authority, a discretely presented proprietary fund component unit, reported a lease rental receivable
with total minimum payments of $32 million, present value of §135 million and interest of $17 million at June 30,
1997. Minimum lease payments for the five fiscal years succeeding June 30, 1997 are as follows (expressed in
thousands): :
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE G-~ Taxes, Loans and Lease Rental Receivables (continued)

Discretely Presented Discretely Presented

Fiscal Year Ending Primary Governmental Fund Proprietary Fund

June 30 Government Component Units Component Units
1998 . $ 748 § 228,345 £ 634
1999 s 269 232,475 634
2000 268 234,338 ) 634
2001 e 243 232,428 634
2002 e 243 232,480 634

NOTE H—INTERFUND ACCOUNTS/OPERATING TRANSFERS/RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS __
A summary of interfund receivables and payables reported on the combined balance sheet at June 30, 1997 is as
follows (expressed in thousands):

) DUE FROM DUETO
FUND TYPE/FUND OTHER COMPONENT OTHER COMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT FUNDS UNITS FUNDs UnITS
General .. SO T OSSR TUURUUTUNUUOURRP 46.732 b 3.907 3 84.209 $ 46]
Special Revcnue
State Lottery Fund.....c..cccevvvveevvririnenveervrven e - - 21,152 -
State Racing Fund. ... - - 11,554 -
Hazardous Sites Clean-up Fund....................... 20,643 - 226 -
Motor License Fund... - 4,883 57 13,796 4391
Surface Mining Conservatlon and
Reclamation Fund......o oo - - 2,562 -
Vocational Rehab:htatnon Fund ......................... 7 - 4,081 -
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund.................. 20,265 - 4 -
Agricultural Conservation Easement Fund.............. 10.455 - . -
Public Transportation Assistance Fund.................... 2.981 - 396 -
Other FUnds ..o eees 3.688 1 4.677 -
62.922 58 58.448 4.391
Debt Service:
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority
Redemption Fund ... - 31,780 - -
Tax Note Sinking Fund... : - - 1,057 -
Other Funds .. 95 - - -
95 31,780 1.057 -
Capital Projects:
Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund.. 3.314 - 2 -
Other FUNAS .....ooviecen e e e e ce e e 726 - 16 -
4.040 - 18 -
Enterprise:
State Stores Fund... . 417 - 16,181 -
State Workmen’s ]nsurance Fund 1.129 - 5,522 -
Rehabilitation Center Fund... 3.798 - 32 -
Other FUnds .....cooo oo - - 70 -
5.344 - 21.805 -
Internal Service:
Purchasing Fund ..o 7,615 661 613 -
Manufactaring Fund ... 2.981 - 81 -
: 10.396 661 694 -
Expendable Trust:
Unemployment Compensation Fund ... 2272 222 - -
Other FUnds ... renvrsaesree e e - - 63 -
2.272 222 63 -
Pension Trust:
State Employes’ Retirement SysteM.......coovccvinennnens 2.632 7.033 194 -
Agency:
Local Sales and Use Tax Fund .......... 6.519 - 17 -
Allegheny Regional Asset Dlstnct Sales and
Use Tax Fund .. 8.909 - 18 -
Other Funds 386 - 814 -
16.014 - 849 -
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ..o $ 150,667 $ 43,661 k) 167,337 3 4.852
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 3

NOTE H— Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued) .

DISCRETELY PRESENTED i
COMPONENT UNITS DUE FROM DUE TO If
Other Component Primary Other Component Primary bt
Funds Units Government _Funds Units Government
Governmental .......ccooovieeeviirsrre e 3 - § - $ 338 3 - 8 - % - ,
Proprietary: B
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
Authorlt} - 38 - - 100 31,787 ‘
Pennsylvania Tumplke Commtss:on ................ - - 4,034 - - 3,330 ;
Other FUNds ... e v - 100 - - 38 186 '
- 138 4.054 e 138 35.303
Fiduciary:
Public School Employes” Retirement System.. - - 1.056 - - 6.149
College and University ... 158.952 - - 158.952 - 5.877
TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS. ..o §158952 § 138 £ 5448 158952 % 138 §$.47329

The amount of total interfund receivables of $358,866 thousand does not agree with total interfund payables of
$378,608 thousand at June 30, 1997 due to different fiscal year ends for certain funds included in the combined
balance sheet at June 30, 1997. The amount shown for the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely
presented proprietary fund component unit, is as of its fiscal year end of May 31, 1997. The amounts shown as -
interfund accounts for the State Employes’ Retirement System, a Pension Trust Fund, and the Deferred ;
Compensation Fund, an Agency Fund, are as of their fiscal year end of December 31, 1996. The amount shown for
the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, an Enterprise Fund, is as of its fiscal year end of December 31, 1996. The
following presents a reconciliation of interfund accounts reported at June 30, 1997 and those amounts which would
have been reported if all funds used the same fiscal year end (expressed in thousands}:

Due from other funds - Combined Balance Sheet at June 30, 1997 ... $  309.619
Due from primary government - Combined Balance Sheet at
June 30, 1997 5,448
Due from component units - Comblned Balance ‘Sheet at June 30 1997 ................. . 43.799
Interfund receivables — Combined Balance Sheet . 358.866
© Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission increase in receivables from P
June 1, 1997 10 JUnE 30, 1997t e et 337
State Workmen's Insurance Fund decrease in receivables from
January 1, 1997 through June 30, 1997 ot (174 )
State Employes™ Retirement System increase in receivables from
January 1, 1997 through June 30, 1997 .. 16.735
TOTAL INTERFUND RECEIVABLES ... § 375764 P
Due to other funds - Combined Balance Sheef at June 30, 1997 ....oooooriiiinvins $ 326,289 1
Due to primary government - Combined Balance Sheet at
June 30, 1997 .. - 47329
Due to component umts Comblned Balance Sheet at June 30 1997 4.990 P
interfund payables — Combined Balance Sheet ....cocicnncnnns 378.608 i |
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission increase in payables from '
June T, 1997 10 June 30, 1007 et 1,559 ]
Deferred Compensation Fund decrease in payables from j
JTanuary 1, 1997 through June 30, 1997 e (36) :
State Emploves’ Retirement System increase in payables from .
January 1, 1997 through June 30, 1997 ..o seee s 993 o
State Workmen’s Insurance Fund decrease in payables from S
January 1, 1997 through June 30, 1997 . (5.340)
TOTAL INFERFUND PAYABLES ... § 375764 .
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H~— Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers (continued)

At June 30, 1997 the General Fund has reported Advances to Other Funds of $74,808. Specifically, this amount has
been advanced as follows: $66,000 to the State Stores Fund, $2,300 to the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, both
Enterprise Funds, $2,175 to the Motor License Fund, and $4,333 to the Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund, both
Special Revenue Funds. These amounts have been reported by the respective owing Funds as Advances from Other
Funds, except for the State Workmen’s Insurance Fund, which has reported an advance of $2,000 for its fiscal year

ended December 31, 1996 (amounts in thousands).

At June 30, 1997 the Hazardous Sites Cleanup Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, has reported an advance to other
funds of $3,000 (in thousands). This amount was advanced to the Small Business First Fund, an Enterprise Fund,
which has reported an advance from other funds of $3,000 (in thousands).

A summary of operating transfers reported for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 is as follows (expressed in
thousands):

OPERATING TRANSFERS
FrROM To
COMPONENT COMPONENT
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT In UNITS our UNITS
GEIEEAL oo ema e e ee s 8§ 121.494 $ - $ 664252 & 717517

Special Revenue:
State Lottery Fund. ...t 82 - 249,074 -

State Racimg Fund .................. - - £1,475 -
Hazardous Sites Clean-up Fund ... - - 12,000 -
Motor License Fund ... - 151,484 -

Fish and Game Fund 1,716 - 1 -

Vocational Rehabilitation Fund.... 24,458 - - -
Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund .. 223,000 - - -
Industrial Sites Clean-up Fund............iocoeviiee e, 10,600 - - -
Other FUnds oo e e 3,141 - 11.825 -
266.391 - 435.859 -
Debt Service:
Land and Water Development Sinking Fund ..o, 19,025 - - -
Water Faciiities Loan Redemption Fund 18,295 - - -
Capital Debt FUBG ..ot et 637,815 - - -
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority
Redemption Fung. ... e 26,604 - - -
Local Criminal Justice Sinking Fund .. 15,132 - - -
Nursing Home Loan Sinking Fund...... 9.414 - - -
Other FUNAS ..o 35.540 - 1.129 -
781.843 - 1.129 -
Capital Projects:
Land and Water Development Fund................cooiiin - - 149 -
Enterprise:
State Stores Fund ..o - - 36,324 -
Small Business First Fund. ..o 4.122 - 868 -
4.122 - 37.192 -
Expendable Trust:
Catastrophic Loss Benefits Fund.........ocoovei e - - 15271 -
TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT ..., $ L,173.852 ) - $ 1173852 % _ 717517
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE H— Interfund Accounts/Operating Transfers/Residual Equity Transfers {continued)

OPERATING TRANSFERS
FrROM To
DISCRETELY PRESENTED PRIMARY PRIMARY
COMPONENT UNITS N GOVERNMENT ouT GOVERNMENT

Governmental FUNAS ... e § 197551 $ 35200 § 1973531 § -
Proprietary:

Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Ageney..........cv ... - 280,830 - -

Pennsylvania Housing Finance AZERcY ....cvvvvvenreiveceeocrceeeierons - 3.000 - -

- 283.830 - -

College and University FUnds ........c.oveiecnicennisnee oo - 398.487 - -

TOTAL DISCRETELY PRESENTED
COMPONENT UNITS ...t aem e cea e § 197551 § 117517 § 197551 § -

Increases and decreases in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary government and discretely
presented component units—during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 are summarized as follows (amounts in
thousands):

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Increases in contributed capital—primary gOVErnment ...........c.oocooocrnevrerrernennns s © 3973

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Increases in contributed capital—primary SOVEINIMENT .....coiereriiniinen e 36.568

Decrease in contributed capitai—primary government... (176,879)
Increases in contributed capital—discretely presented componem umts 233,967
Decreases in contributed capital—discretely presented component units (113.401)
Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary

government and discretely presenied COmMpPONENt UNELS.....cocoiveenee e, 8 4,228

The following summary reconciles the above-listed net change in contributed capital to net governmental residual
equity transfers in of $92,570 and net enterprise residual equity transfers out of $42,710 (amounts in thousands):

Net residual equity transfers ............ $ (49.860)
add: general obligation bond proceeds recewed drrect]v
by the Volunteer Companies Loan Fund .. 3928
add: other increase to the Rehabilitation Center Fund 45
less: other decrease for the Purchasing Fund .............. (32)
add: federal funds received by the Pennsv]vama Infrastructure
Investment Authority .. 42394
iess: program grants disbursed bv the Pennsvlvama Infrastructure
Investment AULROTITY ..viu oot s e e er s (1.719)
add: federal funds received by the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission................... 9.472
Net increase in contributed capital for proprietary fund types—primary
government and discretely presented compoONEnt UnItS..........c..oooieieicciieneer 3 4.22
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I--RETIREMENT AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

PENSION SYSTEMS

Commonwealth laws established contributory defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all
Commonwealth and public school employes. Commonwealth employes are members of the State Employes’
Retirement System (SERS), a blended component unit. The SERS is the only blended component unit in the
financial reporting entity and it is the only pension trust fund included in the primary government. Public school
employes are members of the Public School Employes’ Retirement System (PSERS), a discretely presented
component unit. The PSERS is the only Fiduciary Fund reported as a discretely presented component unit. Both the
SERS and the PSERS issue stand-alone financial statements which are available to the public. Written requests for
financial statements should be directed to the following addresses:

State Employes’ Retirement System ' Public School Employes’ Retirement Systemn
Executive Office Bureau of Fiscal Control

P.O. Box 1147 P.O. Box 125

Harrisburg, PA 17108 Harrisburg, PA 17108

STATE EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The SERS is the administrator of a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement
system established to provide pension benefits for employes of state government and certain other organizations. At
December 31, 1996 there were 108 employer state agencies and other organizations participating in the SERS. The
SERS provides retirement, death, and disability benefits. Retirement benefits vest after 10 years of credited service.
Employes who retire at age 60 or with 35 years of service, if under age 60, are entitled to a normal (unreduced)
annual retirement benefit. Members of the General Assembly and certain employes classified in hazardous duty
positions can retire with full benefits at age 50.

The general annual benefit for full retirement is 2 percent of the member’s high-three year average salary times
years of service. Members of the legislature who were members of the SERS before March 1, 1974 are entitled to a
benefit of 7.5 percent of average salary for each year of legislative service. State police troopers are entitled to an
annual benefit equal to a percentage of their highest annual salary (excluding the year of retirement). The annual
beneflt is 75 percent of salary for 25 or more years of service and 50 percent of salary for 20-24 years of service.
The Commonwealth has the authority to establish or amend benefit provisions. '

Funding Policy: The SERS Board has the authority to establish or amend periodic employer contributions at
actuarially determined rates, expressed as a percentage of annual covered payroll. The active plan member
contribution rate is 5 percent of covered payroll for most employes; higher contributions are required for certain
members of the General Assembly and judges and district justices who elect higher contribution rates. All member
contribution rates are determined by Commonwealth faw. During each of the three years ended December 31, the
annual required employer contributions (in thousands) and the related percentage of that amount actually contributed
are as follows:

Year ended December 31 Annual Required Contribution Percentage Contributed
1996 $ 373,902 100.0
1995 376,692 102.1
1994 342,158 100.2

At December 31, 1996, there were no long-term contracts for contributions to the plan.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: The SERS financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting, whereby expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, revenues are recorded in the accounting
period in which they are earned and become measurable, and investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the
related trade date. Member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which employe salaries are
reported. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.

Investment Valuation: Investments are reported at fair value. United States government obligations, corporate and
foreign bonds and notes, and common and preferred stocks, including collective trust fund, are generally valued
based on published market prices and quotations from national security exchange are valued by the asset manager or
third parties based on similar sales. Mortgage loans are valued by the asset manager using the present value of
future cash flows. Real estate is primarily valued based on appraisals performed by independent appraisers or, for
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1— Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits {continued)

properties not appraised, at the present value of the projected future net income stream. Venture capital and
alternative investments are valued based on amounts established by valuation committees. Futures contracts and
foreign exchange contracts, which are not reported in the statemnent of plan net assets, are marked-to-market daily
with changes in fair value recognized as part of investment income. The investment in the Commonwealth Treasury
short-term investment pool is reported at cost plus allocated interest, which approximates fair value. Collateral
received under the Commonwealth Treasury securities lending program is reported at fair value

Investment Concentration: The fair value of individnal investments at December 31, 1996 that represent 5 percent
or more of plan net assets are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Barclays Global Investors N.A:
Equity Index Fund P—113,172 080 Units.....cocooeeeimicnennnees e $ 3,003,175
70/30 Enhanced U.S. Tactical Asset Allocation Fund—41,889,414 units .. _ 045313

Transition Liability (Asset): There was no pension liability (asset) at or before the date of Commonwealth
transition to GASB Statement 27.

PUBLIC SCHOOL EMPLOYES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM

Plan Description: The PSERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit retirement system established to
provide pension benefits for public school employes. At June 30, 1997 there were 635 participating employers,
generally school districts. The PSERS provides retirement, death, disability and health care benefits. Retirement
benefits vest after 10 years of credited service. Members are eligible for full monthly retirement benefits upon
reaching (a) age 62 with at least one year of service, (b) age 60 with 30 or more years of service, or {c) 35 or more
years of service regardless of age. Act 29 of 1994 permitted school employes with at least 30 years of credited
service to retire without a reduction in benefits until June 30, 1997.

Benefits for full retirement are generally equal to 2 percent of the member’s final average salary times years of
service. The Commonwealth has the authority to establish or amend benefit provisions.

Funding Policy: The Public School Employes’ Retirement Code provides that the PSERS Board has the authority
to establish or amend periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined rates, expressed as a percentage of
annual covered payroll. The active plan member contribution rate for employes hired before July 22, 1983 is 525
percent of covered payroll; for employes hired after July 21, 1983, the rate is 6.25 percent. Member contribution
rates are determined by Commonwealth law.

Effective July 1, 1995, employers defined as school entities (school districts, area vocational-technical schools, and
intermediate units) are required to pay the entire employer contribution. School entitles are partially reimbursed by
the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the Commonwealth's share as determined by the income aid ratio (as
defined in Act 29 of 1994), which is at last one half of the total employer contribution. For employers which are not
school entities, the employer contribution is paid equally by the employer and the Commonwealth to the PSERS; no
Commonwealth reimbursement occurs.

During each of the three fiscal years ended June 30, the annual required employer contributions (in thousands) and
the related percentage of that amount actually contributed are as follows:

Fiscal year Annual Required Percentage

Ended June 30 Contribution Contributed
1997 $796,205 100.00
1996 $860,898 100.00
1995 $791,802 100.00

At June 30, 1997 there were no long-term contracts for contributions to the plan.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: The PSERS financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of
accounting, whereby expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, revenues are recorded in the accounting
period in which they are earned and become measurable, and investment purchases and sales are recorded as of the
related trade date. Member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which employe salaries are
reported. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I— Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefits (continued)

Investment Valuation: Investments are reported at fair value, which is “the amount that the PSERS can reasonably
expect to receive for an investment in a current sale between a willing buyer and a willing seller, that is, other than
in a forced or liquidation sale.” Short-term securities are reported at cost, which approximates fair value, unless they
have a published market price or quotation from national security exchanges and securities pricing services, in
which case they are valued at the published market price. Fixed income and common and preferred stocks are
generally valued based on published market prices and quotations from national security exchanges and securities
pricing services. Securities which are not traded on a national security exchange are valued by the respective fund
manager or other third parties based on similar sales. Real estate and farmland are primarily valued based on
appraisals performed by independent appraisers or, for properties not appraised, at the present value of the projected
fiture net income stream. Venture capital, private placements and limited partnerships are valued based on amounts
established by independent advisors. Futures contracts, foreign exchange contracts, and options are market-to-
market daily with changes in market value recognized as part of net appreciation {(depreciation) in fair value of
investments. Initial margin requirements for such financial instruments are provided by investment securities
pledged as collateral.

Investment Concentration: At June 30, 1997 there were no investments in any one organization that represented 5
percent or more of plan net assets.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

The Commonwealth funds certain health care benefits for retired emploves (that meet specified length-of-service
and age requirements) and their eligible dependents. These benefits are provided as a resuit of negotiated union
contracts and through administrative policy. The Commonwealth recognizes the cost of providing these benefits as
paid, which totaled $152 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. Approximately 82,000 individuals were
covered by these benefits during the fiscal year.

The Commonwealth provides several other postemployment benefits, including disability life insurance and certain
benefits to beneficiaries of state police officers killed in the line of duty. The amount expended for these benefits
was not material during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J—NOTES AND DEMAND REVENUE BONDS PAYABLE

Primary Government

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 the Commonwealth issued $550 million of tax anticipation notes which
matured on June 30, 1997. The $17.8 million of interest related to the notes is shown as a debt service expenditure in
the General Fund.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the Commonwealth issued General Obligation Bond Anticipation Notes,
Series 1997 A (notes), pursuant to a resolution adopted on February 18, 1997, in anticipation of the issuance of
general obligation bonds of the Commonwealth. No general obligation bonds to retire the notes were issued during
- the 1996-97 fiscal year. The notes bear interest at varying rates, not to exceed 9 percent per annum. Bond
anticipation notes outstanding at June 30, 1997 reported by the Capital Facilities Fund, a capital projects Fund, and
the Disaster Relief Fund, a special revenue fund, are $22.5 million and $15.4 million, respectively.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA), a governmental fund component unit, entered into the
Treasury Initiative for Education (TIE) Program with the Pennsylvania Treasury Department (Treasury). The
SPSBA issued a $75 million note which was purchased by the Treasury. The proceeds of this note were deposited
by the SPSBA with the Treasury, which invested the proceeds in a manner acceptable to both parties. The note is
due April 15, 1998. It is renewable on an annnal basis for a term not to exceed two years. Interest is payable at a
percentage rate which will be the lesser of the rate of interest payable from 90 day Treasury Bills plus 20 basis
points or the rate eamed by the Treasury Short Term Investment Pool. The interest rate at June 30, 1997 was 5.62
percent. The note is collateralized by investments the SPSBA has made with the Treasury. The SPSBA has agreed to
make $25 million available for loans to school districts and $50 million available for reinvestment by the Treasury at
the time loans are made to the school districts. The outstanding balance of the note payable at June 30, 1997 was
$34.8 million.

The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a proprietary fund component unit, has reported
$696.0 million of demand revenue bonds outstanding and $380.1 million of notes payable consisting of student loan
financing of $352 .4 million, other notes and bonds payable of $13.9 million and other lines of credit of $13.8 million
at June 30, 1997 as follows (expressed in thousands):

Demand stizdent loan revenue bonds payable, due 2018-2027, ata
weighted average interest rate of 3.83 percent at June 30, 1997. $ 696,000

Student loan financing notes payable, due in 1997-1998, at a weighted
average rate of 5.85 percent at June 30, 1997 .......ccooocierrnnenn, 352,384

Other notes and bonds payable, due 1997-2009, at a weighted average
interest rate of 5.78 percent at June 30, 1997 .....coccovvrrieveevvreens 13,883

Other lines of credit, due 1997-1999, at a weighted average interest rate
of 6.39 percent at June 30, 1997 ... 13,848

Y0 <1 U OO $1,076.115

The note and bond indentures ameng other things require PHEAA to comply with various covenants including
minimum parity levels as defined, student loan and investment yields, and program expenses, The demand bonds
payable are subject to purchase, at par plus accrued interest, by PHEAA on demand of the bondholders upon seven
days prior irrevocable written notice. Under the irrevocable letters of credit issued by the Student Loan Marketing
Association, the trustee is entitled to draw an amount sufficient to pay the purchase price of the bonds delivered to it.
The letters of credit are valid through May 1, 2007 and carry variable interest rates equal to the most recent 91 day
Treasury bill rate plus 1.5 percent. The PHEAA is required to pay the Student Loan Marketing Association annual
commitment fees ranging from 40 to 50 basis points on the stated amount of the letter of credit coverage. At June
30, 1997 total letter of credit coverage was $726.6 million.

All student loan financing notes payable, demand student loan revenue bonds payable and student loan revenue
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE J— Notes and Demand Revenue Bonds Payable (continued)

bonds payable are collateralized by student loans and investments. At June 30, 1997, $1.9 billion of debt is
collateralized by $1.6 billion of student loan principal and related interest receivable, and $364.0 million of
investments. The other notes and bonds payable are collateralized with operational assets. Amounts due under the
lines of credit are collateralized with accounts receivable and student loans. As of June 30, 1997 the PHEAA has
$277.6 million of available credit under student loan financing arrangements and $12.2 million available under other
lines of credit.

Stated maturities of notes and bonds payable for each of the five years subsequent to June 30, 1997 and through
maturity are as follows (expressed in thousands):

Demand
Student Loan Student Loan Other
Year of Revenue Financing Notes and
Maturity Bonds Payable Notes Payable Bonds Payable
1998 $ - $ 352,384 $ 6,523
1999 - - 3,650
20600 - - 762
2001 - - 806
2002 - - 537
2003-27 696,000 - 1,605
Total $ 696,000 5 352,384 $ 15,883

Notes and bonds payable, as well as all other debt, are limited obligations of the PHEAA. PHEAA has no taxing
power and the Commonwealth is not obligated to pay principal, redemption price, if any, or interest on any of the
PHEAA’s debt.

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a proprietary fund component unit, maintains two lines of
credit with the Pennsylvania Treasury Department under which it may borrow up to $15 million and $50 million to
fund its multi-family housing program. The $15 million line of credit bears interest from the date of issuance at a
rate equal to the current yield on two year Treasury Notes plus 20 basis points. The $50 million line of credit bears
interest at a fixed rate on the date of a draw equal to the current yield on two year Treasury Notes plus 15 basis
points. At June 30, 1997, $4 million is owed at a range of 4.47 to 6.98 percent against the $15 million line of credit.
Total reported notes payable at June 30, 1997 for the PHFA is $13.1 million.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K— LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations of the Commonwealth’s primary government at June 30, 1997 and changes for the fiscal year ended
are as follows (expressed in thousands):
Maturity Bonds
GENERAL LONG-TERM Issue  Interest  Dates Authorized Balance Balance
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP Dates Rates Through But Unissued July 1,1996 Additions  Reductions June 30, 1997
General Obligation Bonds Payable From
Tax Revenues:
Capital Facilities... v eeeeneem.. 1968-97 4.13-10.16% 2017 % 17,068,153 § 2718770 $ 189000 § 350,555 § 2357213
Disaster Relief ... - ... 1973-8% 49i-6.60% 2003 131,908 40,2490 - 4,980 35,260
Lard and Water Development . 1969-94 4.89-730% 2014 300 83,640 - 16,070 69.370

Nursing Home Loan Dcvelopmcnt ...... 1979-83 6.75-8.26% 2002 31.000 8.320 - 2,933 5.385
Project 70 Land Acquisition..... .. 1970 6.26% 2000 - 2,790 - 630 2,160
Volunteer Companies Loan............eer.. 1982-97 4.85-10.75% 2017 6,000 19,790 4,000 2.183 21,603
Vietnam Conflict Veterans
Compensation.........eerseeereccncnmeeeenee. 1970-74 536-6.11% 2003 3.000 [0.715 - 2,020 8.695
Water Facilities Loan ......occovovoecnnene. 1983-97 4.89-8.26% 2017 11,500 138410 4,000 16,100 126,310 £ E
Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization 199195  3.04- 6.70% 2013 14,000 79,310 - 37410 41,900 P
Pennsylvanta Infrastructure o
Investment Authority.......occovvemiieeecene. 1988-96 4.89-6.90% 2016 297.000 285,115 - 25,560 259,535
Agricultural Conservation Easement o
Purchase .. v 199194 5.04- 6.70% 2014 15.000 70,233 - 7.985 62,250 : ‘
Local Crlrmnai Justlce ............................ 1992-95 3.04-6.60% 2016 15.000 169.913 - 3.820 164,093 o
Keystone Recreatioi, Park and ’
COnSErvation........cccovveececereereeneeen. 1994-96 5.53- 6,60% 2016 14,000 35,670 - 1,080 34,590
Refunding Bonds...........ccceeevereenen . 1988-97 5.12-6.76% 2011 - 1.396.610 357.204 100.675 1.653.139 i
17.614.861 5.061.330 354.204 774.003 4.841.729 ; j
Other Generat Long-Term Obligations
Payable From Tax Revenues:
Installment Purchase Obligations........... - - - - 27,170 4.533 9.678 22,625 £
Capital Lease Obligations.............ccvee. - - - - 58.429 750 1,839 37.340
Obligations Under Master Lease
Agreement—Equipment........c.ccoooeeeenn. - - - - 70,515 - 25,995 44,520
Obligations Under Master Lease— o
Prison Facilities. ......cocvocevecieerinesnnnns - - - - 733,515 - 235,960 707,335 i
Seif-Insurance—Note O - - - - 1.117.904 29,509 602,665 544,748 i
Compensated Absences................ - - - - 540,567 275,626 238,224 377,969 ot
Catastrophic Moter Vehicle Losses........ . - - - 171,439 39,527 44,502 166.464
OHIEE. ... ecvreeee e em s - - - - 909.695 300478 485,949 724.224 i
- 3.629.234 650.423 1.434.812 2.844.845 C
TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP .. $ 17.614.861 $ 8.690.764 $1.204.627 3 2.208.817 $ 7.686.574

Long-term obligations of the discretely presented component unit organizations at June 30, 1997 (May 31, 1997 for the
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission) and changes for the fiscal year then ended are as follows (expressed in thousands):

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
Bonds Pavable From Lease Rentals:
Pennsylvania Higher Educational

Facilities Authority.... 1969-96 2.70-9.63% 2031 $ 2,640,759 & 22931% 5 96373 § 2,773,703
State Public School Bmldma Authonrv 1986-97 2.60-7.88% 2017 329.963 15.977 29.939 316.003
TOTAL GOVERNVIE\TAL FUNDS 2.970.724 243.296 126,314 3.089.706 .
PROPRIETARY FUNDS o
Revenue Bonds Payable From User S
Charges:
Pennsylvania Higher Education
Assistance Agency .. 198492 3.531-11.033% 2026 837.783 - - 837,785
Pennsylvania Housmo Fmancc Aﬂcncv 1982-97 2.88-11.00% 2029 2,309,105 344,385 179.840 2.473.650 .
Pennsylvania Industrial Development . -
AUROTILY e 1994-96  4.50- 7.00% 2014 339,300 83.175 12,953 409,520
Pennsylvania Tumpike Commission...... 1986-94 2.50-7.875% 2019 1,228,660 - 22,843 1.205.813
Pennsylvania Infrastructare Investment
AUROTITY ..t 1990-94 3.10-7.13% 2014 213.100 - 7.203 205.895
4.927.930 427.560 222.845 5.132.663
Less: Bond discounts... - - - 61,218 3,113 7.494 56,837 '
Deferred costs ofrefundmﬂ.......... - - - 3.460 2.277 226 3511 i
TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS ... 4.863.272 422,170 213125 5.070.317
TOTAL COMPONENT UNIT
LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ........... $ 7833996 3§ 667466 $ 341439 § 8.160.023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K— Long-Term Obligations (continued)

Primary Government

The Commonwealth has pledged its full faith and credit for the payment of principal and interest on general obligation bonds
accounted for in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

During the fiscal year ended Junme 30, 1997 the Volunteer Companies Loan Fund, an Enterprise Fund, received
Commonwealth general obligation bond proceeds of $3.9 million. This amount has been reported as an addition to general
long-term obligations and as an increase in contributed capital in the Volunteer Companies Loan Fund. Bond proceeds have
not been reported as an “other financing source™ in governmental fund types for this amount.

The Commonwealth uses fiscal agents to process payments for the servicing of the majority of its bond issues. Additional
cash with fiscal agents is held by the Federal government for unemployment compensation claims.

The balance outstanding at June 30, 1997 in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group for Refunding Bonds
includes $10.4 million of accreted value for capital appreciation bonds. No principal or interest is payable on the capital
appreciation bonds until maturity.

Included in “Other” for Other General Long-Term Obligations payable from tax revenues are the following (expressed in
thousands):

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Claims........c.o.......... $ 422297
Public Utility Realty Tax Act (PURTA) 157,644
Litigation—Note P.... - 74,628
Tuition Account Program L1ab1hty 68,206
Medical Assistance Cost Scttlcmcnt 1,449

$ 724224

The Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund provides for payment of valid claims under the Workmen’s
Compensation Law to individuals whose employers are insured by insolvent insurance carriers. The PURTA provides for a
tax on utility realty property which is available for appropriation as a general revenue source. The Act also provides for
payment of a tax distribution to local taxing authorities. The Tuition Account Program prowdes for the advance purchase of
tuition credits for a beneﬁcmry attending a participating institution. The Commonweaith .is Hable for underpayments of
medical assistance to nursing homes and inpatient hospitals based upon audits performed on the medical assistance program.
Amounts included in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group at June 30, 1997 relating to Workmen’s
Compensation Claims, PURTA, Litigation, the Tuition Account Program, and Medical Assistance, are not payable with
currently expendable available financial resources.

In 1991, the Commonwealth entered into lease arrangements with five local government authorities for the rental of five new
prisons. Each authority issued bonds to finance the construction of the prisons. Each lease provided for the Commonwealth to
pay periodic rentals equal to debt service payments on each authority’s debt obligation. On July 1, 1993 a finance corporation
issued certificates of participation to refund the authority debt obligations, to consolidate the financing of the prisons and to
provide additional construction funding. As a result of the consohdated financing, the Commonwealth makes lease payments
equal to the finance corporation’s debt service pavments. Both the origina] and the new leases provide that the
Commonwealth’s obligation to make lease payments is subject to Commonwealth appropriations made to provide for these
obligations. In the fiscal year ended June 30, 1994 the Commonwealth began using the new prison facilities. The finance
corporation holds nominal title to the facilities as security for the Commonwealth lease payments. When the certificates are
fully redeemed, at which time the lease agreement expires, legal title vests with the Commonwealth. At June 30, 1997 the
Commeonwealth has reported $707.6 million as a liability under prison master lease arrangements and has reported general
fixed assets for the related prison facilities.

The Commonwealth’s constitutional debt limit, which allows for the incurrence of debt to be used for capital projects without
electorate approval as specifically itemized in a capital budget, was $34.3 billion as of August 31, 1997, with net debt
outstanding of $3.7 billion.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), the
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, and the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (PTC), discretely presented
proprietary fund component units, have pledged substantially all of their revenues for the redemption of revenue bonds
outstanding. Revenue bonds outstanding as reported in this note disclosure for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 (May 31,
1997 for the PTC) include bond discounts of $56.8 million.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B

NOTE K— Long-Term Obligations (continued)

The Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority and the State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA),
discretely presented governmental fund component units, have bonds outstanding as of June 30, 1997 which are payable from
the lease rentals of the projects financed. The lease rentals are pledged as collateral for the bonds outstanding.

At June 30, 1997 the SPSBA reported $234 thousand in other general long-term obligations which represents a liability for e
compensated absences.

The following table presents annual principal and interest payments for long-term debt outstanding for the primary
government and discretely presented component units at June 30, 1997 (May 31, 1997 for the Pennsylvania Turnpike
Commission) (expressed in thousands):

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT 2003
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 Mooy Total

GENERAL OBLIGATICN BONDS:

Capital Facilities... $ 385071 $ 350,679 $ 318367 $ 276781 § 231195 § 1,792,463 $ 3,354,556

Disaster Relief... 6,981 6.961 6.820 6.833 6.869 6,903 41,367 !
Land and Water Dcvclopment ...... 16,447 14,696 14.506 13,563 7.926 16,151 83,291 o
Nursing Home Loan Development......... 1,920 1,868 643 596 349 550 6.126
Project 70 Land Acquisition................... 778 783 786 - - - 2,347
Velunteer Companies Loan_................... 2,683 2.595 2,515 2423 2,336 19.227 31,801 ' g
Vietnam Conflict Veterans ]
Compensation......... 2,581 2,592 2.601 478 482 978 9,712
Water Facilities Loan ...... - 13,769 12,982 12,833 12,630 12,200 123,205 189.641
Pennsylvaniz Economic Rev1tallzat1on... 6.822 6,634 6,494 6,323 5393 26,4835 58,171 "
Pennsylvania Infrastructure S
Investment Authority....c..coccorvvrcrerenrvens 28,072 27.654 26.054 24531 23924 260,812 391,047 N
Agriculiural Conservation Easement
PUIChAase ...vovuvverveeeeee et ee e 6,528 6,470 6,409 6,354 6,035 62,181 93,977 -
Local Criminal Justice 15,172 15,182 13,187 15,193 13.194 182,274 258,202
Keystone Recreation, Park and .
Conservation...........ccooearnescrvnervnneens 3.061 3,050 3.047 3,041 3.036 41,367 56,602 -
Refunding Bonds.....eenenicencnnns 197.214 197.071 204.011 199.74¢ 199.881 1252 387 2250313
H
Total Principal and Interest...........c.... 687,101 649.237 620,295 568.497 515,040 3,786,983 6,827,153 i
Less: Interest Payments .......c...cooennee 252011 227.502 206.010 186.218 167.070 946.613 1.985.424 !
435,090 421,733 414,285 382,279 347,970 2.840.370 4,841,729 .
Other General Long-Term Obligations... 304.372 172.431 122,175 116.157 114.780 2.014.930 2.844.845 ) i

TOTAL GENERAL LONG-TERM
OBLIGATIONS ACCOUNT GROUP . § 739462 § 394166 $ 3536460 § 498436 § 462750 § 4855300 § 7.686.574

DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNITS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS:
Other Bonds:
Pennsylvania Higher Educational
Facilities AUthority...ccooveveeoeeeccrenenes $ 197.36% § 201,321 § 203247 % 201,250 § 200733 $ 3,489,171 $ 4,493,291
State Public School Building Authority.. 34.945 35.007 35.176 35,225 35.784 289,625 465.762
Total Principal and Inferest.........co.re... 232,314 236,528 238,423 236,475 236,517 3,778,796 4,959,053
Less: Interest Pavments.................... 141.504 137.213 130.763 128.758 123.635 1.207.074 1.869.347

TOTAL GOVERNMENTALFUNDS ... § 90410 $ 99315 § 107660 3 i07.717 § 112.882 § 2.571.722 $ 35.089.706

PROPRIETARY FUNDS:
Revenue Bonds:
Pennsylvania Higher Education

Assistance Agency .. .05 34347 % 54348 % 54347 % 336,787 § 36.613 % 1.136.285 $ 1,672,727
Pennsvlvania Housma Fma.ncc Aocncv. 283,703 203,302 199.087 197.602 194.736 3,953,011 5.033.441 .
Pennsylvania Industrial Deve]opment i
Authority ... 38.208 42,994 43,749 43,006 42525 412.494 622,976
Pennsvlvama Tumplke Commlssmn ...... 97.503 96,894 56,963 97.371 97.4i6 1.6435.463 2,131,612
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment
AUhOERY oo 20,994 21.739 22418 22.797 22.778 190.640 301.366 %
Total Principal and Interest..........ccoeeec 496.755 419277 416,566 697,563 394,068 7.339.893 9,764,122 L
Less: Interest Payments. ... wenveveceeee 312.727 305.814 208.975 282.299 267.378 3.164.064 4.631.457
TOTAL PROPRIETARY FUNDS ... 184.028 113.463 117,591 415.264 126.490 4.175.829 5.132.665 Pl
TOTAL COMPONENT UNITS ............ S 274438 $§ 212778 0§ 2252351 $ 522981 § 239372 $ 6.747.551 $ 8222371 E

56



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE K— Long-Term Obligations (continued)

The Commonwealth has entered into certain agreements to lease various facilities and equipment. Such agreements are in
substance purchases (capital leases) and are reported as Capital Lease Obligations. The following is a schedule by fiscal year
of future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as
of June 30, 1997 (expressed in thousands):

Primary Government Discretely Presented Component Units

Pennsylvania

General Higher Education
Long-Term Assistance College and
Obligations Agency University Funds
Fiscal year ending June 30

L9008 et e B 7.137 $ 3,583 3 31,575
1999 ... 7.047 5415 30470
2000 ... 6,939 5,107 29.275
2001 ... . 6,851 4,999 28,678
2002......... . 6.743 4,885 27,960
Later Years........ccooecrsvicceucnccnan . 87.170 58.353 487458
Total minimem lease payments... 121,887 84.342 633416

Less: amount representing estlmatcd exccutorv costs
included in total minimum lease payments........oeeeveviececeee e 15,392 - -

Net minimum lease payments ... 106,495 84,342 635416

Less; amount representing mLcrest . 49.155 20,605 288.741
TOTAL CAPITAL LEASE OBLlGATIONS SRRSO 57.340 g 54.737 $ 346.675
INSTALLMENT PURCHASE OBLIGATIONS........_................._........... 5 22.025

At June 30, 1997 general fixed assets included $ 95.8 million of buildings and $2.5 million of equipment being procured by
capital leases. A total of $38.9 million in general fixed assets is being procured by vendor-financed installment purchase
arrangements.

Capital lease obligations outstanding as of June 30, 1997 for the College and University Funds relate to various capital
projects currently under construction for which a related public financing authority is the lessor. Revenue bonds were issued
by the public financing authority to provide funding for these capital projects. College and University Funds fixed assets
include $40.4 million of construction in progress related to capital leases at June 30, 1997.

The Commonwealth has entered into three iease arrangements with a frustee for the refinancing of previously existing leases
and installment purchase arrangements and for the leasing of new equipment. These arrangements provide that the trustee
issue certificates of participation, the proceeds of which atlow for immediate payment to Commonwealth equipment vendors.
This is not a general or moral obligation of the Commonwealth; under the arrangement, Commonwealth agencies are
responsible for securing appropriations to make lease payments to the trustee, over a specified term, sufficient to fund
periodic principal and interest payments to the certificate holders. While Commonwealth agencies maintain custody and use
of the leased equipment, the trustee holds legal title to the equipment as security for the agency payments. When the
certificates are fully funded, legal title vests with the Commonwealth agency. At June 30, 1997, $79.0 million in general
fixed assets is being procured by these master lease arrangements.

Conduit Debt

The Pennsylvania Economic Development Financing Authority (PEDFA) finances projects on behalf of local industrial and
commercial development authorities to promote economic growth within the Commonwealth. Revenue bonds issued by the
PEDFA represent limited obligations payable solely from Authority financed project revenues. At June 30, 1997 the PEDFA
has $1,070.8 million of debt outstanding. Neither PEDFA nor the Commonwealth has any obligation for this debt. Therefore,
neither the financed assets nor the bonds are included in the accompanying financial statements.

The Pennsylvania Energy Development Authority (PEDA) finances projects related to energy conservation and research.
Fees are assessed to recover related processing and application costs incurred. The bonds issued by the Authority represent
limited obligations payable solely from payments made by the borrowing entities. The majority of the bonds are secured by
the property financed. Upon repayment of a bond, ownership of acquired property transfers from the trustees to the entity
served by the bond issuance. The PEDA has $118 million in revenue bonds outstanding at June 30, 1997. The
Commonwealth has no obligation for this debt. Accordingly, neither the financed assets nor the bonds are included in the
accompanying financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE L—REFUNDED DEBT

Primary Government

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the Commonwealth issued $354.5 million in general obligation bonds,
Refunding Series of 1997, with an average interest rate of 5.1 percent to advance refund $336.1 million of
previously issued general obligation bonds with an average interest rate of 6.45 percent. The net refunding bond
proceeds of §364.8 million, after payment of underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs, were deposited
in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the bonds
refunded are considered to be defeased and have been removed from the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group. The Commonwealth advance refunded its previously issued bonds to reduce debt service payable on its
general obligation bonds by $19.6 million and to obtain an economic gain of $13.9 million.

At June 30, 1997, $936 million of general obligation bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the
General Long-Term Obligations Account Group, have been defeased through advance refundings.

Discretely Presented Component Units

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the State Public School Building Authority (SPSBA) and the
Pennsylvania Higher Educational Facilities Authority (PHEFA), governmental fund component units, issued
revenue bonds to advance and current refund $43.1 million and $26.5 million, respectively, of previously issued

revenue bonds as follows (expressed in thousands):

Schoot Revenne Bonds
Series F of 1996

Taxable School Revenue

Variable Rate Demand
College Revenue Bonds

Adjustable Rate Tender
Option Revenue Bonds

Category Bonds-Series G of 1996 Series of 1996 Series of 1996
Issuing Authority SPSBA PHEFA PHEFA
Bond Tvpe ... Revenue Revenue Revenue
Date Issued ... 9.11-96 7-1-96 7-18-96
Refunding Bonds Principal ........ $9.730 513,990 516,000
Interest Rate (Refunding).... 5.31% Variable Vatiable
Refunded Series....ocoovreeee General Coilege Revenue Bonds Revenue Bonds - Series H*
Obligation Bonds PA College of Optomerry
Series A & B 1992 Series of 1988

College Revenue Bonds
14th Series*

Refunded Bonds Principal §9,293 52,295 7/ 5540* 51,053*
Interest Rate (Refunded). 6.03% 8.85% / 6.79%* 6.09%*
Payment to Escrow Agent... 39,516 52,479 53.568
Debt Service Savings (Loss) .. 5330 - -
Eccnomic Gain (Less) ... $316 - 521

College Revenue Bonds

Bryn Mawr College
Revenue Bonds

Drexel University
Revenue Bonds

Category Series of 1997 Series of 1997 Series of 1997
Issuing Authority PHEFA PHEFA PHEFA
Bond Tyvpe ... Revenue Revenue Revenue
Date Essued... 2-19-97 4-29.97 3-6-97
Refunding Bonds Principal . 515,925 544,335 544,285
Interest Rate (Refunding) ..o 6.01% 5.62% 5.56%
Refunded Series ... Revenue Bonds - Seres E* College Revenue Bonds Drexel University

Refunding Series of 1988* Revenue Bonds
First Series of 1987*
Bryn Mawr Cotlege Revenue
Bonds — Series of 1989 Drexel University
Revenue Bonds
Series of 1990
Refunded Bonds Principal... $3.340* $6.075* /513,335 $15.325* /816,135
Interest Rate (Refunded) 6.60%* 6.33%:*/6.69% 7.65%* / 7.28%
Payment to Escrow Agent....... 53.638 522,573 $32.348
Debr Service Savings (Loss) - 51,020 51.257
Economic Gaifl ...c.ooererevcenenns - s877 51.816

* Current refunding.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE L— Refanded Debt (continued)

The net refunding bond proceeds, after payment of underwriting fees, insurance, and other issuance costs, were used
to purchase U.S. Government securities which were deposited in irrevocable trusts to provide for all future debt
service payments on the refunded bonds. As a result, the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the
liability for those bonds has been removed from the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group.

The SPSBA reported advance and current refundings in its component unit financial statements for the Beaver Area
School District, which is not reported in the preceding table. The liability for the refunded debt was removed from
their General Long-Term Obligations Account Group; however, since the SPSBA did not issue any new debt, this
was not an advance refunding transaction of the SPSBA. Furthermore, there were no debt service savings nor any
econormic gain or loss to the SPSBA.

The PHEFA also reported advance and current refundings in the preceding table for which neither debt service
savings or loss, nor economic gain or loss were reported. Although the PHEFA may have benefited or suffered
financially as a result of the refundings, no amounts were calculated by the PHEFA, either because of the variable
rate nature of the bonds, or for the College Revenue Bonds, Series of 1997, because the refunding was completed to
eliminate a balloon maturity, due December 1, 1997.

At June 30, 1997, $604.6 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in their General Long-
Term Obligations Account Group, have been defeased through advance refundings, for the PHEFA and the SPSBA.
Included are $527.9 million for the PHEFA and $76.7 million for the SPSBA.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA), a proprietary fund
component unit, redeemed prior to maturity $48.3 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series N, O,
Y, Z, 1990-28, 1990-29, 1991-30, 1991-32, 1992-33, 1994-38 and 1995-45 using mortgage prepayments. In
addition, the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $88 thousand of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series L,
O, R and X using undisbursed bond proceeds. The PHFA did not issue new debt. The PHFA completed the
refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 25 years by $69.8 million and to obtain an
econemic gain of $29.4 million.

At June 30, 1997, $7.1 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial statements
of the PHF A, have been defeased through refundings.

At May 31, 1997, $649 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial statements
of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a proprietary fund component unit, have been defeased through
refundings.

At June 30, 1997, $173.7 million of bonds outstanding, that were previounsly accounted for in the financial
statements of the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority, a proprietary fund component unit, have been
defeased through refundings.

At June 30, 1997, $86.4 million of bonds outstanding, that were previously accounted for in the financial statements

of the State System of Higher Education, a college and university fund component unit, have been defeased through
refundings.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE M—RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY AND GAAP BASIS AMOUNTS

The Commonwealth adopts formal annual budgets for the General and three Special Revenue Funds (Motor
License, State Lottery and Workmen’s Compensation Administration). The Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)}—
presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual data on a budgetary basis, which differs
from GAAP primarily by the omission of certain revenue and expenditure accruals.

The following presents a reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis of reporting {expressed in
thousands): '

Special
General Revenue
Fund Funds
BUDGETARY BASIS: - -
Budgetary basis — revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and other USes.............ccooreivrieiieiree, . 5 244,175 b 63,997
Adjustments:
To adjust revenues, other financing sources and related
receivables and deferred revenue.............cccooco . 489,273 1,333,625
To adjust expenditures, other financing uses and related
accounts payable and accrued liabilities.........ooceovivernnne. { 1,998,063 ) (1.545,521)
To adjust enCUMbBIANCES o.oooeeiieiiee e 1,897,651 361,453
INET AdJUSIIMETIES ottt aee e e 388,861 149,557
NONBUDGETED FUNDS:
GAAP basis — revenues and other sources under
expenditures and other uses....................... - 37,595
TOTAL ALL FUNDS:
GAAP basis -— revenues and other sources over (under)
expenditures and Other BSes .......cccooovoiiiieiiri e, 5 633,036 £ 251,149
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE N — SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Commonwealth’s Primary Government has seven major Enterprise Funds which provide for a variety of loan programs to
business and government organizations, workmen’s compensation insurance services, liquor sales and capital development Joans. The
following is a summary of selected financial information related to these Funds (expressed in thousands):

Coal and State Machinery

Clay Mine Small Workmen’s State Volunteer Minority and Other Total

Subsidence Business Insurance Stores Company Business Equipment Enterprise Enterprise

Insurance First (Dec. 31, 1996) (June 24, 1997) Loan Development Loan Funds Funds
Operating FeVenUes ..o veeeeeeeeermnsesnans $ 3448 3 3126 S 370,085 5 744,466 S 1697 5 745 5 1,765 $ 15125 5 1,140.257
Depreciation.... 19 - 797 4,472 - - - 763 6,053
Operating income (1085) c.v.ceuceeeecereveennne.. 890 101 (2,973) 61.756 1,652 (597) 647 (1.837) 39,639
Operating transfers in..........oceceeeceerernnee - 4122 - - - - - - 4,122
Operating transfers oul......covireeeeeeeeneens - 868 - 36,324 - - - - 37,192
Net income (1085).....c.veeeeeeeeecererrnesecenenns 1,969 33335 (2973) 9314 1,652 (597 ) 647 (1,038 ) 12,329
Increzse in contributed capital.............. - 56.568 - - - - - - 56,568
Decrease in contributed capital ................ - - - v - - - 176.847 176,847
Acquisition and construction of

capital assets.,... 52 - 330 2.680 - - - 1.506 4,568
Net increase (decrease) in cash ................ 8) 416 (347 ) 37 - 24 126 {971) (723)
Total 8SSELS .cucremcicrce et 20,944 63,024 1,873,654 200,957 77,269 9,728 46.661 18.338 2.310,575
Bonds and other long-term liabilities
payable from operating revenues ........... B - 1.474,757 - - - - - 1,474,757

Total fund equity ..ccve e 17,924 59.923 62,647 36,994 77,227 9,287 46,583 14,613 325,198
Net working capital......cocorvecoevcnvricinn. 17839 19.086 1,525.302 89,031 5,767 6.041 15,485 9477 1,692.028
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE O—SELF-INSURANCE

The Commonwealth is self-insured for statutory workers® compensation and medical payments {employe disability)
for its employes injured on the job. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for annuitant medical/hospital claims
and for tort liability claims. Major tort risks include automobile, employe and general torts. For property losses, the
Commonwealth has a $1 million retention with excess commercial insurance coverage up to $134 million per
occurrence. The Commonwealth is also self-insured for claims against the Department of Transportation
(transportation claims). The Commonwealth has established various administrative policies which are intended to
avoid or limit the aforementioned risks.

There were no reductions in commercial insurance coverage during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997. No
settlements exceeded commercial insurance coverage during each of the past three fiscal years.

The accrued liabilities for employe disability and annuitant medical/hospital claims are determined by an actuary in
accordance with accepted actuarial principles. The accrued liability for employe disability was calculated including
the effects of changes in statutory benefits from Act 44 of 1993 and Act 57 in 1997. Accrued liabilities for tort and
transportation claims are established based on reserves computed from the Commonwealth’s claim experience; such
claims are not discounted. These liabilities include liabilities for allocated claim adjustment expenditures/expenses
and include salvage and subrogation. Salvage and subrogation were not material for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1997. No accrued liability has been reported for property losses.

At June 30, 1997 the accrued liabilities which will be paid with current expendable available financial resources are
reported in the General Fund. Those habilities which will not be paid with current expendable available financial
resources at June 30, 1997 are reported in the General Long-Term Obligations Account Group (GLTOAG). All
accrued self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 1997 are summarized as follows (expressed in thousands):

Motor
General License
Fund  Fund  GLTOAG Tol

Employe disabilify ... $ 79,772 i) - $ 288,854 $ 368,626
Annuitant medical/hospital .......... 33,169 - - 33,169
Automobile 101t 3,125 - 10.506 13,631
Employe tort......occooiiviiei 2,533 - 18,597 21,130
General tort ..o 1,336 - 33,931 33,267
Transportation.........ccocvemrrinereces - 24 557 192.860 217417
TOLS oo ieciiarsersrre e $119.935 § 24 557 $ 544748 $ 689240

The following summary provides aggregated information on prior year reported self-insurance liabilities; incurred
claims and payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June 30,
1997 (expressed in thousands):

June 30, Incurred June 30,
1996 Claims Payments 1997

Liability | Current ___Prior | [_ Current  Prior | _Liability
Employe disability ............. $ 972,551 § 39,406 $(571,164) $ 7393 $ 64,774 § 368,626
Annuitant medical/hospital .. 32,865 152,721 - 119,552 32,865 33,169
Automobile tort........cccvenn 14,475 1,711 946 830 2,671 13,631
Employe tort ..., 18,435 411 3,606 - 1,322 21,130
General tOTt ..ooocvvnen i 35,597 409 (108 44 587 35,267
Transportation........ccoeeeeee. 235.223 6.757 (6.829) 389 17.345 ___217.417
Totals e $1.309.146 $201.415 $(573.549) § 128208 119.564 § 689.240

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997, the reported prior year liability for employe disability claims decreased
by $571,164 (in thousands) due to changes in assumptions about the number, duration and other attributes of claims
incurred but not reported.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE O-—Self-Insurance (continued)

The following summary provides aggregated information on June 30, 1995 self-insurance liabilities; incurred claims
and payments during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1996 and reported self-insurance liabilities at June 30, 1996
{expressed in thousands):

June 30, Incurred June 30,
1995 Claims Payments 1996

Liability | Corrent Prior | I Current Prior | Liability
Employe disability ............... $ 788,745 $251321 § (141) $§ 122278 § 55096 $ 972551
Annuitant medical/hospital .. 31,700 161,061 - 128,196 31,700 32,865
Automobile tort......ccoeveeene. 13,542 2,332 976 767 1,608 14,475
Employe tort ..cceereeveniiene. 20,236 881 (150) - 2,532 18,435
General tort.....coeeevercnieienne 37,222 4232 (321) 21 1,705 35,597
Transportation..........ccoecceeeene 236,973 9.270 2.872 1.481 12,411 235.223
Totals oo $1.128418 F425287 § 3236 $142.743 $105052 351309146

NOTE P—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Construction and Other Commitments: At June 30, 1997 the Department of Transportation and at May 31, 1997
the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission, a discretely presented component unit, have contractual commitments of
approximately $921 million and $135.1 million, respectively, for various highway construction and mass transit
projects. Financing for these future expenditures will be primarily from approved federal grants and general
obligation bond proceeds. In addition, the Commonwealth has a variety of contractual and other commitments for
future subsidies and purchases of goods and services for approximately $9.7 billion at June 30, 1997. Actual
expenditures are contingent upon approved spending authority and/or availability of financial resources.

Loan Commitments: At June 30, 1997 the following discretely presented component units had approved loans that
had not been disbursed (amounts in millions):

Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency .. SROUUVROURI. 211
Pennsylvania Industrlal Development Author:ty ............................ 188
Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority .........cccooov...o. 159

Operating Lease Commitments: The Commonwealth and its discretely presented component units have
commitments to lease certain buildings and equipment. Future minimum rental commitments for noncancelable
operating leases as of June 30, 1997 were as follows (expressed in thousands):

Fiscal year ending June 30:

Primary Discretely Presented
Government  Component Units
1998 . e s $ 201,749 $ 1,675
TODG et 129,032 ‘1,663
2000 et 96,360 ' 1,251
200T e s 58,953 1,031
200 e 45,723 938
Later YEarS ..coceceieceieeeee e 177.445 1.985
Total Minimum Lease Payments........ccco....... $ 709,262 8.543

Rental expenditures/expenses for all operating leases for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1997 amounted to $444.4
million ($441.7 million for primary government, $2.7 million for discretely presented component units).

Litigation: The Commonwealth is a defendant in numerous legal proceedings pertaining to matters normally
incidental to routine operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted against the
Commonwealth arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contracts, condemnation proceedings and other
alleged violations of Commonwealth and Federal laws. The Commonwealth has recorded accrued liabilities at June
30, 1997 with respect to torts as described in Note O and as other General Long-Term Obligations with respect to
other matters of litigation in the amount of $74,628 thousand for which the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is
probable.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE P—Commitments and Contingencies (continued)

Additionally, the Commonwealth is currently involved over in certain legal proceedings relative to a funding equity
case with a school district in the approximate amount of $999.8 miflion. Other cases that the Commeonwealth is
currently vigorously contesting conld range from approximately $48 to $608 million, zero to $188 million, $1 to $28
million, and zero to $1.1 billion of additional liabilities for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Capital
Projects Funds and the Pension Trust Fund, respectively.

Discretely presented component units of the Commonwealth are vigorously contesting cases which could range
from $710 thousand to approximately $6 million, $3 to $6 million and $6 million to $18 million of additional
liabilities for the College and University Funds, Proprietary Funds and a Fiduciary Fund, respectively, and could
result in approximately $3 million of additional liabilities for Governmental Funds.

Based on the current status of ail these legal proceedings for which accruals have not been made, it is the opinion of
the Commonwealth’s management and counsel that they will not have a material effect on the Commonwealth’s
financial position.

Federal Grants: The Commonwealth receives significant financial assistance from the Federal government in the
form of grants and entitlements, including several non-cash programs (which are not included in the general purpose
financial statements). Receipt of grants is generally conditioned upon compliance with terms and conditions of the
grant agreements and applicabie Federal regulations, including the expenditure of resources for eligible purposes.
Substantially all grants are subject to either the Federal Single Audit Act or to financial and compliance audits by the
grantor agencies of the Federal government or their designees. Disallowances and sanctions as a result of these
audits may become liabilities of the Commonwealth. The Commonwealth is currently involved in administrative and
legal proceedings, with certain Federal agencies, contesting various disaowances and sanctions related to Federal
Agssistance Programs ranging from $17 to $189 million. The Commonwealth’s management believes ultimate
disallowances and sanctions, if any, will not have a material effect on the general purpose financial statements.

Student Loan Guarantees: The Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA), a Discretely
Presented Proprietary Fund Component Unit, guarantees loans made by private lenders to certain resident students.
Total outstanding guarantees issued by PHEAA approximated $13.3 billion at June 30, 1997. Under the Higher
Education Act of 1965, as amended, the PHEAA has entered into an agreement with the U.S. Department of
Education for reinsurance of death, disability, bankruptcy, and default claims paid to lenders. Pursuant to this
agreement, PHEAA receives reimbursement of claims paid to lenders, provided that there is compliance with
various federal requirements. Reinsurance rates vary from 78 percent to 100 percent depending upon default rates in
the portfolio guaranteed by PHEAA. During the vear ended June 30, 1997, PHEAA’s default rate was in a range that
permitted the maximum reinsurance reimbursement from the Department.

Lottery Prizes: The State Lottery Fund, a Special Revenue Fund, awards a variety of prizes, including immediate,
lump-sum cash prizes and certain large prizes which provide for periodic payments to winners for specific periods of
time (in some cases throughout the winners lifetimes, and to designated beneficiaries). At June 30, 1997, the amount
of future payments owed to prizewinners is $2.4 billion. To satisfy its financial obligation to these prize- winners,
the Fund purchases annuity contracts from isurance companies whereby the insurance companies make periodic
paymenis to prizewinners. Generally, in the event of insurance company default, the Fund is liable for the related
annuity payments. However, certain prizewinners voluntarily assign their annuity rights to other parties and receive
lump-sum payments in return. In the event of insurance company default where annuity rights have been voluntarily
assigned by prizewinners, the Fund is not liable for the related annuity payments. At June 30, 1997, the future
payments of $87.1 million have been voluntarily assigned by prizewinners.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE Q—CERTAIN AGENCY FUND CLAIMS LIABILITIES

The Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund, an Agency Fund, acts as a service agent to facilitate the
payment of medical malpractice claims exceeding basic liability coverage carried by healthcare providers practicing
in the Commonwealth. The Fund levies healthcare provider surcharges, as a percentage of insurance premiums for
basic coverage, to pay claims and administrative expenses paid on behalf of healthcare providers during the prior
year. The actuarially computed liability to the healthcare providers for claims outstanding at June 30, 1997 totals
$2,164.5 million ($1,627.5 miliion at present value based on the expected payment pattern and an assumed long-
term interest rate of 6 percent). The amount of expendable financial resources available to pay claims at June 30,
1997 is $46.9 million. This is reported as a fund liability. The remaining claims will be funded exclusively through
surcharge assessments In future years as claims are settled and paid; as a result, a financial liability for remaining
claims is not reported.

The Underground Storage Tank indemnification Fund (the Fund), an Agency Fund, is used to collect fees from
underground storage tank owners and operators sufficient to pay owners and operators for costs associated with
corrective actions or for bodily injury or property damage caused by tank leaks and other releases. Owners and
operators are assessed actuarially determined amounts to accumulate sufficient assets to pay claims. The Fund
actuary has estimated potential claims of $813 million at June 30, 1997. There are statutory limits on the extent of
the Fund’s Hability to participating owners and operators. The Fund has reported assets and liabilities amounting to
$311 million at June 30, 1997; the Fund is not obligated beyond that amount. Owners and operators will be assessed
for any claims exceeding $311 million and no financial liability is reported for those claims.

NOTE R—DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Commonwealth sponsors a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 457. The plan, which is administered by the State Employes’ Retirement System, permits participants to
defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deferred under the plan are not available to employes until
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with the amounts, and all

income attributable to these amounts are solely the property and rights of the Commonwealth, subject only to the
claims of the Commonwealth’s general creditors. Participants’ rights under the plan are equal to those of general
creditors of the Commonwealth in an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account of each

participant. The Commonwealth has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care that

would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The Commonwealth believes it is unlikely that plan assets will

be used to satisfy future claims of general creditors.

Of the $401 million in assets (at market value) reported in the Deferred Compensation Fund, an Agency Fund, at
December 31, 1996, $387 million relates to primary government employes and $12 million relates to employes of
discretely presented component units. The remaining balance of $2 million relates to organizations not included in
the Commonwealth’s financial reporting entity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE S—JOINT VENTURE

The Commonwealth and various labor unjons representing Commonwealth employes participate in a joint venture,
the Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund (PEBTF). The PEBTF establishes and provides health and welfare
benefits for active Commonwealth employes; the PEBTF s a third party administrator for Commonwealth annuitant
medical/hospital benefits. The Commonwealth is required to fund all necessary contributions to pay for the cost of
providing benefits; the unions are not required to make contributions. Contribution rates and/or amounts are
“established by collective bargaining agreements and administrative policies. During the fiscal year ended June 30,
1997, the Commonwealth paid PEBTF over $441 million in contributions to fund benefits. Neither the
Commonwealth nor the unions have an equity interest in the PEBTF. At June 30, 1997, the PEBTF reported total
assets of $305 million, total liabilities and benefit obligations of $87 million, and net assets available for benefits of

$218 million. During the fiscal year, net assets available for benefits decreased by $56 million. The financial status
of the PEBTF is monitored on an ongoing basis; financial stress is not evident.

Audited financial statements for the PEBTF are available, by request, from:

William K. Schantzenbach
Chief Financial Officer

Pennsylvania Employes Benefit Trust Fund
150 South 43rd Street
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17111-5700
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE T—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Primary Government

On October 15, 1997, the Commonwealth issued $190.8 million of General Obligation Bonds, Second Series of
1997 with an interest rate of 5 percent. Bond proceeds will be used for the construction and acquisition of capital
facilities projects, loans to construct, rehabilitate and improve water supply, storm water control and sewage
treatment systems, the expansion and construction of county and multicounty regional prison facility projects, the
planning, acquisition, development rehabilitation and improvement of recreation projects, and for loans to volunteer
fire companies.

On November 13, 1997, the Commonwealth issued $2235 million in Tax Anticipation Notes, Series of 1997-1998.
The notes are payable from and secured by the pledges of revenues to be received in the General Fund during the
fiscal year ending June 30, 1998. These obligations are due and payable no later than June 30, 1998.

Discretely Presented Component Units

On July 9, 1997, the Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency (PHFA) issued $75 million of Single Family Mortgage
Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-58. The proceeds of the bonds will be used to partially redeem the PHFA's Single
Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series R and 1990-27, and to fund the purchase of new Single Family Mortgage
Loans, and provide funds for deposit in the Capital Reserve Fund.

On July 10, 1997, the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $16.5 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds,
Series R and 1990-27, using bond proceeds from Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-58A. A
deferred loss of §179 thousand resulted from the redemption.

On August 4, 1997, the Pennsylvania Higher Education Assistance Agency (PHEAA) issued $50 million of student
loan revenue bonds. The bonds were issued as taxable auction rate certificates and mature August 1, 2027.

On August 13, 1997, the PHFA issued $75 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-59.
The proceeds of these bonds will be used to redeem the PHFA’s Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series J
and 1990-27, and to fund the purchase of new single family mortgage revenue loans, and provide funds for deposit
in the Capital Reserve Fund.

On August 15, 1997, the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $7.9 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds,
Series J and 1990-27, using bond proceeds form Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1997-59A and
59B. A deferred loss of $46 thousand resulted from the redemption.

On September 8, 1997, the PHFA’s Board of Directors approved the issuance of Single Family Mortgage Revenue
Bonds, Series 1997-60, in an amount not to exceed $75 million. The proceeds of these bonds will be used to fund
the purchase of new single family mortgage loans, and to partially redeem the PHFA’s Single Family Mortgage
Revenue Bonds, Series R and Q.

On October 1, 1997, the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $45 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds,
Series N, O and P, using bond proceeds form Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds, Series 1996-56B and 56C.
A deferred loss of $621 thousand resuited from the redemption.

On October 1, 1997, the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $1.3 million of Single Family Mortgage Revenue Bonds,
Series N and O, using mortgage prepayments. An extraordinary gain of $237 thousand resulted from the
redemption.

On October 1, 1997, pursuant to the resolutions for several bond issues, the PHFA redeemed prior to maturity $7.7
million of Single Family Morigage Revenue Bonds, Series Y, Z, 1990-28, 1990-29, 1991-30, 1991-31, 1992-33,
1994-45A, 1996-53B, 1996-52C, 1996-50A, and 1997-54A. An extraordinary gain of $141 thousand resulted from
these redemptions. '
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE T--Subsequent Events (continued)

The Federal Balanced Budget Act of 1997 required the U.S. Secretary of Education to recall $1 billion in reserve
funds held by student loan guaranty agencies. On October 23, 1997, the U.S. Department of Education issued a
letter clarifying the method of determining each guaranty agency’s share of the recall and allowing each guaranty an
opportunity for appeal the base upon which the share will be calculated. Based upon publicly available information,
PHEAA management anticipates that PHEAA’s share of the recall will be at least $106 million. Under the Act,
depending on the extent of appeals, PHEAA management estimates that PHEAA’s share would not exceed $141
miilion.
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Special revenue funds account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally
restricted to expenditure for specified purposes.

Stare Lottery Fund — to account for the payment of prizes to winners in the state lottery, for property tax and rent assistance
to the elderly, for mass transit fare subsidies, and for a partial rebate of drug and medical costs incurred by the elderly.

Motor License Fund — to account for highway and bridge improvement, design and maintenance, for the purchase of
Rights-of-Way, for aviation activities, for transportation licensing and safety activities, for payment of subsidies for
construction and maintenance of roads, and for financing Pennsylvania State Police highway patrol operations.

Workmen’s Compensation Administration Fund — 1o account for the administration of the Pennsylvania Workmen’s
Compensation Act and the Pennsylvania Occupational Disease Act. The Fund assesses insurance companies and self-insured
businesses a periodic fee for costs incurred in administering these Acts.

Public Transportation Assistance Fund — to account for the capital, asset maintenance and other transportation needs of the
Commonwealth’s-transit entities. Revenue is derived from a fee on the sale of new tires, an additional motor vehicle lease
tax, and a motor vehicle rental fee.

Pharmaceutical Assistance Fund — to account for a limited pharmaceutical assistance program for the Commonwealth’s
senior citizens who are 65 years of age or older.

Water Facilities Loan Fund — 1o account for the implementation of the water project loan referendum that authorizes the
Commonwealth to approve loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension and improvement of water
supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Repayments of principal and interest from loans are
transferred to the General Fund.

Pennsylvania Econenic Revitalization Fund — to account for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout
Pennsylvania, for grants and loans for industrial and small business development, for acquisition of equipment for vocational
programs in secondary schools, and for agricultural and recreational programs.

Recycling Fund — to account for grants for recycling solid waste, market and waste minimization studies and public
information and educational activities. Financing for the planning, processing, resource recovery and recycling of solid waste
is generated by a fee on all waste disposed of in landfills or processed by resource recovery facilities.

Fish and Game Fund — to account for the administration and enforcement of fish and game laws and for the protection and
propagation of game and aquatic life.

Huazardous Sites Cleanup Fund — to account for cleaning up abandoned hazardous waste sites throughout the
Commonwealth and restoring the land to productive use.

Other —— to account for programs related to conservation and protection of natural resources, the preservation of historical
landmarks, administrative and regulatory activities of various departmental programs, and other miscellaneous

Commeonwealth activities. This other category is an aggregation of thirty-five individual special revenue funds.

There are a toial of forty-five individual special revenue funds.
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Debt service funds account for the accumulation of resources, principally from transfers from
other funds, for the payment of general long-term debt principal and interest.

Disaster Relief Redemption Fund - these funds account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
rehabilitation of areas of the Commonwealth affected by the floods of 1971, 1972, and 1977. Funding consists of transfers
from the General Fund.

Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority (PENNVEST) Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of
principal and interest on bonds issued for loans to local water companies for the repair, construction, extension and
improvement of water supply systems, dams and port facilities and water control systems. Funding consists of transfers from
the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Infrastructure Investment Authority Fund.

Capital Debt Fund — 10 account for the payment of principal and interest related to general obligation bonds issued for -
capital projects authorized by Capital Budget Acts. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Motor
License Fund.

Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Sinking Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds
issued for the promotion of economic redevelopment throughout Pennsylvania for grants and loans for industrial and small
business development. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization
Fund.

Water Facilities Loan Redemption Fund — to account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
implementation of the water project loan referendum to provide loans to local water companies for repair, construction and
improvement to water supply systems. Funding consists of transfers from the General Fund and the Water Facilities Loan
Fund.

Land and Water Development Sinking Fund — 1o account for the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued for the
acquisition, development and improvements to Commonwealth land and water facilities. Funding consists of transfers from
the General Fund.

Other —- these funds account for the payment of principat and interest on bonds issued for loans to nursing homes and
volunteer fire companies and for compensation to Vietnam Veterans. Funding consists primarily of transfers from the

General Fund. This other category is an aggregation of eight individual debt service funds.

There are a tota} of fourteen individual debt service funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Debt Service Funds June 30, 1997
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Pennsyivania ‘Water Land and
Disaster Investment Economic Facilities Water
Relief Authority Capital  Revitalization Loan Development
Redemption  Redemption Debt Sinking Redemption Sinking Other Total
ASSETS: ]
L1007 YOO ORSIROO. - 8 - 5 - 8 i 5 1 s 1 s - 5 3
Cash with fiscal agents 246 - 8,467 44 46 632 386 0,721
Temporary iNVEStMENS. .o iueririeeesesrsses s emeimernnas 9 - 69,291 152 4,007 335 11.307 84,801
Receivables, net;
Accounts.... - - 9,688 - - - - 9,688
Acerued interes - - 424 1 - 1 798 1.224
Lease rental.......... - - 2352 - - - - 2352
Due from other funds. - B - 49 18 28 - 95
Due from component un - 31,780 - - - - - 31,780
TOTAL ASSETS 5 255 S 31780 S 90222 § 247 % 4072 3 697 S 12301 5 135.664
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilitics................ s - 8 - 5 34 5 - 5 -8 - 5 - 5 34
Matured debt principal and interest payable.... 246 - 8,467 44 46 632 286 9.721
Due to other funds.. " - - - - - - 1.057 1,057
Deferred revenue.... - - 12,040 - - - - 12,040
Other Habifities..o oo = - 773 - 6 - 3 784
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..o M6 = 2L314 44 52 63 1348 23636
Fund balance:
Unreserved:
Designated for:
Debt service:
Retirement of general obligation bonds...ceoco.. 9 31780 68508 203 4020 65 11043 116,028
TOTAL FUND BALANCES ......cocoooveennrnems 9 31780 68908 203 4020 65 11,043 116,028
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES ..ovvinvneecvsrimarrrsmsssananes 3 255 % 31780 S 90,0232 S 247 5 4072 % 697 § 12391 § 139.664
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| COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Debt Service Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Pennsylvania
Infrastructure Pennsylvania Water Land and
Disaster investment Economic Facilities Water
Relief Authority Capital  Revitalization Loan Development
Redemption Redemption Debt Sinking Redemption Sinki . Cther Total
REVENUES:
Investment income....... . 5 8 S 5 5 1,182 S 3 $ - 5 7S 1,179 S 2,454
Lease rental principal and interest - - 2,159 - - - - 2,159
01 OO OO 571 . 158 - - - m 728
TOTAL REVENUES .. . 579 3 3.499 3 - 7 1.178 5.34]
EXPENDITURES:
Debt service:
Principal retirement. .....ccc.c.... 4,980 14,035 374,770 4,365 7075 14,920 17,735 437,880
Enterest and fiscal charges 21 14,561 220,989 3,687 7216 4,185 17,266 270,024
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ...... 7100 28,5596 395.75¢ 8,052 14291 19.105 33,007 707.904
REVENUES UNDER EXPENDITURES .........ccocmicmmreconcnee. {6,521) {28,591) {592.260) (8,049) (14.291)  {15,028) (33.823) (702363}
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Refunding bond procesds - - 364.785 - - - - 364785
Operating transfers in.......... 6.508 26,604 657,815 7,607 18,295 19,025 45,991 781,845
Operating transfers out..........ccceveoeeveveenes - - - - - - {1.129) (1,129}
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent... - R -5 X/ ) - R - (364.785)
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES ... 6508 26604 657,815 7607 18295 19,025 44862 780716
REVENUES AND GTHER SOURCES OVER
(UNDER) EXPENDITURES AND QTHER USES....coooivvernnnee (13) (1,987) 63,533 (442 4,004 (3) 11.039 78.153
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1996w 22 33767 335 645 16 68 4 37875
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1997 5 9 8 31780 § 68908 S 203 5 4020 0§ 65 S 11043 § 1 i6.028
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CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Capital projects funds account for financial resources to be used for the acquisition or
construction of major capital facilities, including those provided to political subdivisions or other
public organizations.

Capital Facilities Fund — to account for the proceeds of general obligation bonds to meet the financing costs of capital
projects specifically itemized and authorized by Capital Budget Acts.

Local Criminal Justice Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued for grants to counties for the repair, expansion,
construction, rehabilitation and improvement of local correctional facilities or multicounty regional prison facilities, or for
the purchase of electronic monitoring equipment for alternative sentencing programs.

Keystone Recreation, Park and Conservation Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued to improve and expand
Commonwealth and community parks, recreation facilities, historic sites, zoos, public libraries, nature preserves and wildlife

habitats.

Land and Water Development Fund — to account for the proceeds of bonds issued to meet the financing costs for the
acquisition, development and improvement to Commonwealth land and water facilities.

There are a total of four individual capital projects funds,
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Capital Projects Funds

June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

o1
|
-
vl

Keystone
Locat Recreation, Land and
Capital Criminal Park and Water
Facilities Justice Conservation Development Total
ASSETS
Temporary INVESIMENTS. ... oo e 81,690 2,921 70,898 1.913 157422
Receivabies, net:
ACCTREE INTETESE. .1 ovvmee e ieee et et e sy 489 13 334 9 345
Due from other funds.........comimriv i s 726 - 3314 - 4,040
TOTAL ASSETS ..o 8 82908 § 2934 % 74,547 % 1.922 162311
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities.......c.ccenvvnnincanans £ 53.091 b 378 3 8.206 3 - 61,673
Due to other funds........... 7 - 2 9 18
Due to other govemments.......... 754 - - - 754
Bond anticipation notes payable........oooooii e 22,500 - - - 22.500
TOTAL LIABILITIES ..o 76,352 378 8.208 S 84,947
Fund Balance:
Reserved for:
Encumbrances. ..o oot 371,635 944 2,018 - 374.597
Unreserved:
Designated for:

Capital PIOJECTS..oviuivici it een - 1.612 64.321 1.913 67.846
Undesignated deficit......o..oo e (365,079) - - - (363,079)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES.........ccovii e 6.536 2,556 66,339 1,913 77.364

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES by 82908 % 2934 § 74,547 % 1,922 162311
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES :
Capital Projects Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Keystone
Local Recreation, Land and
Capital Criminal Park and Water
Facilities Justice Conservation Development Total
REVENUES:
TEXES....cecemeeerce et ettt enens B - § - 8 35335 % - 8 35533
Tntergovernmental.........oooeir e 6,445 - - 30 6,475
Charges for sales and ServiCes.......ocovvemecveee e, 11.868 - - - 11,868
INVESHMENT INCOME. ....ve et et 6,012 283 4,079 149 10,523
TOTAL REVENUES. ..., 24325 283 39,614 179 64,401
EXPENDITURES:
General GOVEIMIMENT.....o.ooev et eere s eene e 1,070 - - - 1.070
Protection of persons and propesty. ... eceeereeecenne - 4.388 - 1,000 5.388
Conservation of natural reSOurces.......ovvevevvvereecs v 179 - 43,103 - 43,284
Economic development and assistance.......cvvieeenns 36.192 - - - 36,192
Transportation. ........ccovveeormeceesiee e et 93,647 - - - 93,647
Capital outlay 210,382 - - 287 210,669
Debt service:
Interest and fiscal Charges......ooovvcveeeceiere e - - 8 - 8
TOTAL EXPENDITURES ..o 341,470 4.388 43,113 1.287 390,258
REVENUES UNDER
EXPENDITURES ..., {317.14%) (4.1053) (3,499) (1,108) (325.857)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
Bond proceeds......oeeoeeeeeeeee e e 185,701 - - - 185,701
Operating ransfers oub............cooviccmivnnn e - - - (149) {149)
NET OTHER FINANCING
SOURCES (USES) o 185,701 - - (149) 183,532
REVENUES AND OTHER SOURCES
UNDER EXPENDITURES AND
OTHER USES . oo st (131.444) (4.103) (3.499) (1.237) (140,303}
FUND BALANCES. JULY 1, 1996 ..o 138.000 6.661 69,838 3.170 217.669
FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30, 1997 ...ormeviccreenanens 3 6356 % 2536 % 66339 % 1913 % 77.364




Enterprise Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




ENTERPRISE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Enterprise funds account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to
private business enterprises. Costs of providing goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis, including depreciation, are financed or recovered primarily through user
charges.

Coal & Clay Mine Subsidence Insurance Fund — to account for and provide insurance to home owners in mining areas
against damages resuiting from mine subsidence. Revenue is derived from premiums paid by policy holders for subsidence
insurance.

Small Business First Fund — to account for and provide loans to eligible small businesses for capital development projects
which will create or preserve emplovment opportunities and that will enhance business development in Pennsylvania.
Sources of revenue include loan repayments, Federal funds, transfers from other Commonwealth funds and interest earnings.

State Werkmen’s Insurance Fund — to account for and provide workmen’s insurance to private employers in the
Commonwealth, including those unable to obtain coverage from private insurance firms.

State Stores Fund — to account for the general operation of the Pennsylvania Liquor Control Board. Expenses include all
costs associated with the operation and administration of the Liquor Store System and enforcement of the Liquor Control
Law. '

Volunteer Companies Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest loans for acquisition and replacement of
volunteer fire, ambulance and rescue company equipment and facilities.

Minority Business Development Fund — to account for and provide loans to minority business and for operating expenses
of the Pennsylvania Minority Business Development Authority. Sources of revenue include loan repayments, transfers from
the General Fund and interest.

Machinery and Equipment Loan Fund — to account for and provide low-interest machinery and equipment financing to
Pennsylvania businesses to facilitate their growth, competitiveness and value added-capacity. Sources of revenue include
loan repayments, transfers from the Pennsylvania Economic Revitalization Fund and interest earnings.

Other — to account for enterprise operations including activities associated with low interest loans to manufacturers and
vocational rehabilitation services and loans and grants issued to attract industrial, manufacturing or research and development
enterprises to the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. This other category is an aggregation of seven individual enterprise funds.

There are a total of fourteen individual enterprise funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Enterprise Funds June 30, 1997
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)
Coal & Clay State
Mine Small Workmen's State Volunteer Minority Machinery
Subsidence Business Insurance Stores Companies Business  and Equipment
Insurance First {Dec. 31, 1936) {June 24, 1997} Loan Development Loan Other Total
ASSETS:
CaSHn e iessnesssnepes e eaenns s - 8 416 3 2576 S 3792 0§ | .- 47 S 292§ 9% S 7214
Temporary investments e 20,763 18.539 503,371 66,317 3,607 6,359 15,151 3.80% 645,006
Long-termn iNVeStMERTS. ....oouuverorrmeesssssssnerinns - - 1,305,941 - - - - - - 1,303.941
Receivables, net:
Accounts, - - 30,950 1,163 - - - 97 32,210
Accrued interest. 96 232 20,914 296 201 76 120 5t 21,986
Notes and loans - 43,857 8.169 - 71,460 3.246 31,098 1,906 159,716
Due from gther funds. - - 1,129 417 - - - 3,798 5,344
Due from other governments. - - - - - - - 38 38
Inventery - - - 114,654 - - - 229 114,883
Fixed ASSE1S.....oemrccremecreeeeriiniens 124 - 12,024 52,077 - - - 12,510 76,735
Less: accumulated depreciation.... {39) - (10,091) (38,114) - - - (9.280) (57,524)
Other assets. - - 671 355 - - - - 1,026
TOTAL ASSETS S 20944 $ 63024 § 1.873.654 5 200957 $ 77269 S 0728 S 46661 S 18338 S 2.510.575
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities. .. § 1237 S 32 0§ 7,18 § 81351 S - 5 395 S 12 s 197 3§ 92,177
Obligaticns under securities lending........coeeee. - - 253,574 - - - - - 233.574
Due to other funds............. 57 - 5.522 16,181 - - 12 33 21,805
Due 10 other governments.. 6 - - 431 - - - 105 342
Deferred revenue 1,720 &9 39200 - 42 46 - 1,613 42,690
HNotes payable - - - - - - -
Advances from other funds. - 3,000 2,000 66,00¢ - - - - 71,000
Other Labilities......ummemen . - - 28,771 - B - 34 7 28,332
Insurance 1088 Hability e e = - 1.474,757 - - - - 1474957
TOTAL LIABILITIES .ccossimminrrarreaserrneeans 3.020 3100 1.811.007 163.963 42 441 78 3735 1983377
Fund Equity:
Contributed capital.......ccoevocncrns 1,000 36,568 - 2,294 34,353 40,660 45,200 2,839 202,914
Retained earnings {deficit)
Reservet. e e e 62,647 - - - 3474 68,033
UNIESEIVED. .. eeveresiccsnesereeee e emssrasenen 3353 - 34.700 22.874 (31,373) 1383 8,300 34.231
TOTAL FUND EQUITY ..ereeeeeeiesrssasarnans . 59823 62.647 36,994 77,237 0,287 46,383 14,613 325,198
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND EQUITY .oocermeimreccsssmsnnsasenns § 20944 § 63,024 5 1.873654 S 200957 § 77269 5 9728 S 46661 5 18338 5 2.310.575
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

Enterprise Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Coal & Clay State
Mine Small Workmen's State Yolunteer Minority Machinery
Subsidence Business Insurance Stores Companies. Business  and Equipment
Insurance First {Dec, 31, 1996) (Jnme 24, 1397} Loan Development Loan Other Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales and services....... 5 3415 S - 5 351998 0§ 744466 % - % - S5 - 5 15022 S 1014901
Investment mcome..... - 1,167 118,042 - 181 327 307 63 120,587
Interest on notes and loans.... - 1,952 - - 1.516 412 864 3 4,783
OLREL, covsemsememerersmeces e sisressssrarsrsrss ssenssenssnsss s e 3 7 435 - - & 94 1 186
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES................ 3448 3,126 370,083 744,466 1,697 745 1,963 13,125 1,140,437
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales and services.. 2.539 323 341,661 677.834 - 1,136 165 16,197 1,040,057
Interest expense... - 16,709 - - - - - 16,709
Depreciation.... 19 - 797 4472 - - - 765 6,053
Provisicn for uncollectible accounts. - 2.500 13,891 404 45 58 933 - 17,851
OHHE. ..ot srestraes s = - - - - 148 - - 148
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES ............... _ _ 2.358 3.025 373.038 682,710 435 1342 CLHs 16962 1.080,818
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) ... 890 101 _(2313) 61,736 1,632 (397 647 (1.837) 59,639
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Investment income.. 1.079 - - 3972 - - - 555 3,606
Interest expense - - - (27) - - - - 27)
- - - (63) - - - 244 181
NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET.......... Lo7e - - 5.882 - - - 799 5760
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
OPERATING TRANSFERS........coci v icen 1.969 101 (2.573) 65638 1,652 (397 647 (1.038) - 65,399
OPERATING TRANSFERS:
Operating transfers in....... - 4,122 - - - - - - 4,122
Operating transfers out Lt (s6B) - } - - - - {37,192}
OPERATING TRANSFERS, NET........occevee- - 3.254 - - - e - {53,070}
NET INCOME {LOSS) 1,969 3,335 (2.973) 1,632 (397) 547 {1.038) 12,329
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT),
JULY 1, 1996 14,933 - 63.620 25.385 21,322 (30,776) 736 35522 152,665
RESIDUAL EQUITY TRANSFERS-
NET. . - - - - - {42.710) (42,710)
RETAINED EARNINGS (DEFICIT),
JUNE 30, 1997 S 16924 § 3355 & 62647 S 34700 S 22874 S {31375 S 138 § 11.774 S 122384
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Enterprise Funds

For fhe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
{Expressed in Thousands)

Coal & Clay State
Mine Small Workmen's State Volunteer Minority  Machinery
Subsidence  Business Insurance Stores Companies  Business and Equipment
Insuranece First {Dec. 31, 1996) (June 24, 1937) Loan Development Loan Other Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss).... 5 890 8 101§ (2973) S 61756 & 1632 S5 {397 S 647 5 (i.837) $ 39.63%

Adjustments to reconcile operating income {loss}

{o net cash provided by {used for) cperating activities: .
Depreciation..remere 19 - 797 4472 - - - 765 6,053
Provision for uncollectible accounts.........c..oceovecveniennee - 2.5G0 13.891 404 435 38 033 - 17,851
NONOPErating reVeNUE. .......cevevvemsvanssecerens - B - - - - - 244 244
Reclassification of investment income.......cocovemenvuerrinn - (1,167} (118.042) - (181) (327) (807) (63) (120,587)
Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in receivables................. (14) (46.569) {3.372) (610) (3.978) 1,168 (1.461) 155,693 100,837
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds.. - - (626) 22 B . - 63 (339)
Increase in due from other governments........c.cccc.eeveeec - - - - - - - (30) (30)
(Increase) decrease it INVENLOTY . ...ooeeereeeeeerreereemenreens - - - (9,629) - - - 36 {9,593)
Increase in other assets.. (ST URREUUO TN . . (38) (105) - - - - (143)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
and accrued Babililies_........ocvvevceeeeceeeeec e 163 32 {542) 1,651 - 264 11 272 1,851
Increase (decrease} in due to other funds.........cococoi. 16 - (1.154} (1.899) - (36) 11 {143) {3.205)
Increase in due io other governments, 2 - - 9 - - - 3 16
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue. 375 69 {27,303) - 14 25 - 8 (26,812)
Increase in insurance loss liability - - 11,456 - - - - - 11,456
Increase in obligations under securities lending - - 233,514 - - - - - 233,574
Increase (decrease) in other Habilities. ..o vcvrneivens B - {15.565) - - 45 (13) (i5,533)
TOtal AAFUSHMIENES .oomvoeeeeeesesereeeemssseees e someeneneoes BT Y 113076 (5.685) {4.100) 1.152 (1.248) 156839 215460
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES...cioieitecsieeesinsmcersmssnsnsenanes 1,451 (45,034) 110,103 56.071 {2.448) 355 (601) 155.002 275,099
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL R I o
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net borrowing under advances from .
other funds........c.oooieeenceeee - 3.000 - - - - - - 3.000
Principal paid on debt abligations.... - - - {356) - - - - (356)
interest paid on debt obligations............coiiii i - - - 27 - - - - 27}
Operating transfers in.... - 4,122 - - - - - - 4,122
Operating transfers out.. - {868) - (56,324) N - - . (57,192)
Encreases in contributed Capital......ocooevveneiinieceresree e - - - - 3928 - - 45 3973
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES..... oot - 6.254 - (36,707) 3.928 - - 45 (46,480)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Increase in contributed ¢apital......o.ooooceceinn e - 56,568 - - - - - - 36.568
Decrease in contributed capital.... - - - - - - - (176,847} {176.847}
Residual equity transfer in - - - - - - - 119 119
Residual equity transfer Qut.........ocooceeeeeecneences - - - - - - (42.829) (42.829)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets... (32) - (330} (2,680) - ~ - (1,506) (4,568)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR} CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTEVITIES........cooovevvreecene (32} 36,568 (330y (2.680) - - - (221.063)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of INVESIMERLS.......ccovveiemrirsirsnmsinnens (4.463) (29.467)  (2,183,342) (491,182) (13.988) (1,935} (10,526) (26.083)  (2.763,190)
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments, 1.979 10.928 1,957.380 490.563 12,327 1,077 10.4.46 90,512 2573212
INVESIMENT INCOME, 1uvvsresisemimsseesrms s et s s 1.079 1.167 118,042 3972 181 327 807 618 126.193
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) o T T - T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES ..o seneenen (1.407) (17.372) (110.120) 3.353 (1.480) (531) 727 65.043 (61.7853)
NET INCREASE {DECREASE) IN CASH.......cooonvvecemmnee €3] 416 (347) 37 - 24 126 971) (723)
CASH. JULY L1996t secmrs e et e enens 8 - 2923 3.735 1 23 166 1,061 7937
CASH, JUNE 30, 1997 oo 3 =S 416§ 2576 § 3792 8 1 S 47 5 2% 8 W § T2

There were no material investing. capital or financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal vear,
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Internal Service Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania




INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
DESCRIPTION -

Internal service funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one department
or agency to other departments or agencies of the Commonwealth, or to other governmental i
units, on a cost-reimbursement basis. 35

Purchasing Fund — to account for the purchase of materials, supplies, motor vehicles and other equipment by the I
Department of General Services for the sale or lease to other Commonwealth departments, boards or commissions. t

Manufacturing Fund — to account for the manufacture and sale of goods by inmates in the institutions of the Department of P l 5
Corrections. P

There are a total of two individual internal service funds. i
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

Internal Service Funds June 30, 1997
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)
Purchaéing Manufacturing Total
ASSETS
Cash. e $ 278 k3 403 3 683
Temporary IMVESIIIEIIES. ...ccooo oo eeee et eee et et eeeeeeeerensean 14,756 2.243 16.999
Receivables, net:
ACCOUIES. ..ttt e e st se e sre st st bt s s s st s ee e eaeme e 28 - 28
Accrued interest.......... 73 9 84
021 1T SO U TT TSSOSO - 103 103
Due from other funds.....oooveeeeeeeeeeeee e rear et aeant s anate e oeenas 7,615 2,981 10,596
Due from COmpOnent BNits.......ooeeoovrvcrrvrenesisssssssstessses e reeeseeeans 661 - 661
Due from Other SOVEIMMENTS........ovvvveeeeeeeeees oot oo oo eeeeeeeseeeeeeees e enen 203 90 293
IIIVETITOTY .. eeieces e e rrmee e ss st e s sst e s b es e ee e e eee e e e s emoe s eeeenee e e menenmeenaran e 1,621 12.984 14,6035
FIXEA BSSBES. v vriutiieeietre et e ee st e eemeesee et e et et et eme e e te e s e emme et e et et oo 49,814 22291 72,105
Less: accumulated depreciation........ooueeeeeeeeee e (23.024) (11,276) (34,300)
OHIET BSBEES. .. eeereceeeceeeie et e s e et eme et veresse e es e b e ses e ee st e eteee s e et eeeeanene i - 7 84 N s
TOTAL ASSETS $ 52,027 5 29914 % 81,941
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Liabilities: _
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities............ccoooooivii e $ 8,150 5 4,286 8 12.436
Due to other fUndS. ..o 613 81 694
Due to other ZOVEITMENTS. .......coiiiiiecetreent et eoen s s se b 15 26 4]
Deferred revenue. ...t 125 B - B s
TOTAL LIABILITIES ...t 8903 4.393 13,296
Fund Equity:
Contributed capital............coovrveirverrievee e 9.187 - 9.187
Retained earnings:
UNTESEIVE. ..ottt eeean e 33,937 25,521 39458
TOTAL FUND EQUITY .. 43,124 25,321 68,645
TOTAL LIABELITIES AND FUND EQUITY ..ot ererreseearenenes $ 52,027 $ 29,914 $ 81.941
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS
Internal Service Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands)

Purchasing Manufacturing Total
OPERATING REVENUES:
Sales AN SEIVICES. .o et iiccrrerrre e s s s rrr it e et rran e s eeteeetreeaaesereenaee D 87,782 $ 31,248 3 119,030
@1 1= ST OO OO U U OUO SO PUPPRUSURFORPUOS - 3§_' 33
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES ... 87,782 31,283 _119.065
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Co5t 0F 5a1ES AN SEIVICES. .o eeeiteeeeee et assssest s measraesenrensnns 76.346 29,487 106,033
L343 =T 14T o VOV 7.090 1105 8,193
Provision for uncollectible aCCOUNTS. ... oo e - - ' .
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES..... . cviricrernireesesensrtrserasensssereaeaas 83,636 30,600 114,236
OPERATING INCOME ...ttt eececeree e w4146 683 o 4m9
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
TNVESTIMENT IIGOMIE. ... et ee et e e et e e e aeseseat e st eses e rarasaranasass 728 131 859
INTErESt BXPEISE. o eeereemremriie ittt cme et s e e r s rnemes s s bbb s (26) - (26)
Other............ eeebeeebeseseesssseeeebeteiseeastesserssesasseeestressnseesteseantinsimeanminteeaesarareas 813 @y ) 542
NONOPERATING REVENUES, NET....ccooimiimnninneiiceieeenee. 1515 - ~ (140) 1375
NET INCOME......oooicteeerecres s assees s srneane e aeremmeameeeeeoomeaas 3,661 543 6.204
RETAINED EARNINGS, JULY 1, 1996 it eeecaasneee 28,276 24,978 . 53254
RETAINED EARNINGS, JUNE 30, 1997 ............ . $ 33,937 $ 23,521 5 39,458
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Internal Service Funds

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
OPETating IMCOIMNE. ...cooe it nee st v reee s ams s e oo s s anicaeceman

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided

by operating activities:

DEprecialion. . ..o coco it s s s

Provision for uncollectible accOunts. ......oovo oo

NONOPETAING TEVEIMIE. ....iveeecerreeereereerersessssressseaenerseseesseseeseasenseseenseseesesrrens

Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in receivables. ...
Increase in due from other funds........cooooerce e
Decrease in due from component Mmits. ... .o ovoeoeoeoi e
Increase in due from other SOVErNMENTS. ..o revvcerin e
Decrease in inventory...
(Increase) decrease in other assets .................................................................
Decrease in accounis payable and accrued liabilities........ccccoveiiicinencnann,
Decrease in due to other funds.......ooooon e
Increase in due to other ZOVEINMENTS. . ... v vecverr i
Increase in deferred revenue.. ... iieviccnciesii e

TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS. ...
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES...
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Principal paid on debt obligations. ..o ceciincce i
Interest paid on debt oingations ...................................................................

NET CASH USED FOR NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES ... oo

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Interest paid on debt ObLZAtIONS. ...cveieeecree e
Decreases in contributed cap1tal .
Acquisition and construction of capltal BSSELS..oeoooeererereeees oo
Proceeds from sale of capital assets..........ocorvvorovceooic i

NET CASH USED FOR CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES ..o

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase Of IVESIITIEIIIS. oottt bea e s s e sa s b s e s ans
Proceeds from sale and maturities of Investments...........c.ccoovveeveeceveereennee.
INVESTTIENT ICOMIE. .. it iiiiaiiriis s s s e se it e ereessssssssssarsssranrsarerarreraranssnenerireerse

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR) INVESTING ACTIVITIES..

NET INCREASE IN CASH......ooeoereroeeeveoereveseesoseeooesemeeeeeeeemerereemereeeeeenne .
CASH, JULY, 1, 1996 corvvvervuemmmseesssssasesssssssssssssssssssesssssssssssssmmsssessssssssesesssesess
CASH, JUNE 30, 1997 ...c.voonen evesssssasmesesessesssmmt s sass et

Purchasing Manufacturing Total

3 4,146 3 683 5 4,829

7.090 1,105 8,193

- 3 8

6 - 6

(12) 28 16

(600) (113) (713)

151 8 139

(96) 57) (153)

466 30 496

883 (55) 828

(476) {330) (806)

(37 (274) (331

2 4 6

125 - 125

7.482 352 7.834

1] 628 1,035 12,663

(1.410) - (1,410

(24} - (24}
D) o amy

) - @

(32) - (2)

(11.513) {1.890) (13.403)

2,670 - 2,670

_ 887D L5290 __(10.767)

(48.301) (18.648) (67.149)

46.555 19,671 66.226

728 131 o 89

_.aus - _1;1?4__ I

99 299 398

R S L,

3 278 3 405 3 683

There were no material investing, capital or financing activities which did not result in cash receipts or cash payments during the fiscal year.



Trust and Agency Funds

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
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TRUST AND AGENCY FUNDS
DESCRIPTION

Trust and agency funds account for assets held by the Commonwealth in a trustee capacity or as
an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other funds.
These mclude expendable trust funds, a pension trust fund and agency funds.

EXPENDABLE TRUST FUNDS

Unemployment Compensation Fund — to account for the receipt of employer and employe taxes, for the payment of
unemployment compensation benefits to eligible individuals and to iransfer and receive monies from the Federal
Unemployment Trust Fund.

Workmen’s Compensation Security Trust Fund — to account for the payment of workers compensation claims to
individuals who are insured by an insolvent stock insurance company and for the administrative costs to administer the
program.

Catastrophic Loss Benefits Continuation Fund — to account for the payment of medical and rehabilitative expenses over
$100,000 to a lifetime aggregate of $1 million to residents injured in a motor vehicle accident covered by the original
Catastrophic Loss Trust Fund {no longer in existence).

Tuition Payment Fund — to account for the mition account program, which provides for the advance purchase of college
tuitton credits for the beneficiary to attend a college or university at a future time.

Other — to account for financial assistance to public schools for certain repairs or aiterations to buildings and for
reimbursement to aggrieved individuals upon judgements against any person licensed by the Real Estate Commission. This
other category is an aggregation of two individual expendable trust funds.

PENSION TRUST FUND:

State Employes’ Retirement System — to account for the payment of retirement, disability and death benefits to members of
the State Employes’ Retirement System and their beneficiaries.

AGENCY FUNDS

Underground Storage Tank Indemnification Fund — to collect and administer funds for a program to provide claim
payments to owners and operators of underground storage tanks who incur a liability for taking corrective action, for bodily
injury or for property damage caused by a release from underground storage tanks.

Statutory Liquidator Fund — to convert the assets of insolvent insurance companies into cash for distribution to creditors,
policyholders and stockholders.

Deferred Compensation Fund — to collect and administer funds contributed by Commonwealth employes who are deferring
a portion of their income until fitture years, in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457.

Fire Insurance Tax Fund — to collect a two-percent premiums tax received from foreign (out-of-state) fire insurance
companies conducting business in the Commonwealth and to distribute monies to local governments. The municipalities
must pay these monies to the relief, pension or retirement fund of their recognized fire fighting organization.

Municipal Pension Aid Fund — to collect a portion of the insurance company tax revenues for distribution to municipalities
for distribution to police and fire pension funds.

Medical Professional Liability Catastrophe Loss Fund — to collect annual surcharges levied on health care providers to
make professional lability insurance available at a reasonable cost to health care providers.

INVEST Program For Local Governments — to pool and invest amounts owned by local governments and school districts.
Participation in the Program is voluntary.

Other — 1o collect and administer funds from various sources for distribution to other state and local governments or the
Federal Government. This other category is an aggregation of seven individual agency funds.

There are a total of six individual expendable trust funds, one pension trust fund and fourteen individual agency funds.
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Trust and Agency Funds June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

Expendable Pension Agency i
Trust Funds Trust Fund Funds Total

ASSETS
LR oo ceem ettt et $ 189 $ -8 11,047  § 11,236 i
Cash with fiscal agents..... 2,276,790 - 17.891 2,294 681
Temporary investments.... 588,663 470,865 1,132,700 2,192,228
Long-term investments..... 191,244 19,803,514 465,512 20,460,270 o
Receivables, net: : ' P
XS ettt et e e e e e bbb 301,234 - 2.763 303,997 i)
ALCCOUIIS c1vvaviraesesee e st st aet e eemeeaeeeee e e eeeeeereeeereeraesreeeanarees 8,268 - 218,600 226,868
ACCHIE TTEIESE. ..ottt s et e s re e st e e 3,580 97,343 5.421 108.346
Investment Proceeds. ..o e e - 130,113 - 130,113
OThET ..o e - - 165 163
Due from other funds..........coooomeeeee e 2.272 2,652 16,014 20,938
Due from component Mis.........cocevevernnen s 222 7,033 - 7.255
Due from other GOVErMMENTS. ..o oo 14.634 6.044 - 20,678
LT gl T3 O SRUP USSR - 152 . 319,466 319,618

TOTAL ASSETS '$ 3389096 $ 20517718 $ 2189579  § 26,096,393

B
oot
L

LIJABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities: i
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities........c.cocooviiveennnn.. 3 142,836 3 25,154 $ 425198 A 393,208 '
Tax refunds payable..........coooi 1.514 - - 1,514
Investment purchases payable........ooooiiei - 563,551 - 363,351
Obligations under securities lending 190,485 1,436,603 - 1.627.088
Due to other funds........oi e 63 194 349 1.106
Due to other GOVETTMENIS. ...cvveeeveeeteeecetecsnte e oo 3,187 - 673,070 676,257
Defermed revVeniie. ... e e 1 - - : 1
Advances from other funds.....coooeieeiieeeee e, 550 - - 350
OTREE HABTIEES. e vve. oo eeceeeeesesesareeser oo eee e - - 1,090,462 1,090,462

TOTAL LIABILITIES....oocvitviosioniciiicicisenss 338,636 2,025,502 2,189,579 4553737

F——

Fund Balance:
Reserved for: .
Encumbrances. ..o 5.706 - - 5.706 l
Pension benefits. ..o ieceieeee e - 18,492,216 - 18,492,216
Long-term inVestments.......cocuoieieiereece e 191.244 - - 191,244
Unreserved:
Designated for:
OBt e b 3.395 - - 3,395
Undesignated. . ... oo et 2.850,095 - - 2,85}),095

TOTAL FUND BALANCE........oen e 3.050.440 18,492,216 - 21,542,636

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE oouoevoeo. $ 338909 $ 20517718 $ 2189579 $ 26096393
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COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
Expendable Trust Funds June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed ir Thousanids)

Workmen's
Compensation Catastrophic
Unemployment Security Loss Benefits Tuition
Compensation Trust Continuation Pavment Other Total
ASSETS
Cash. e, B - % 107 % 1§ 80 % 1 3 189
Cash with fiscal agents........coeieeeeeevricrecesreenns 2,276,790 - - - - 2,276,790
Temporary investments. 200 516,786 37.048 26,664 4965 388,663
Long-term investmentS. ..oo.....ovevererecereee e e - 139,409 - 51,835 - 191,244
Receivables, net:
TaXES ety 301,234 - - - - 301,234
ACCOBNLS. ..ottt 1,916 - 6,352 - - 8.268
ACCred IRIEIESL ..coeeceeeecee e eceesv s vt s enaas 12 4982 164 399 23 3580
Due fromother funds. ... 2272 - - - - 2272
Bue from component units..............ccoooceeiveicnnnn 222 - - - - 222
Due from other gOVEMMEDTS.......ocoveiviecienecieeces 14,634 - - - - 14,634
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2597280 % 664,284 % 43,365 &% 78978 % 4989 % 3,389,096
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilides............ $ 53968 % 27638 § 61,186 % 60 % 4 % 142,836
Tax refunds pavable......ooevciveeeeeee e 1,514 - - - - 1,514
QObligations under securities lending.................... - 190,485 - - - 190.485
Due to other funds........... “ - 9 48 6 - 63
Due to other governmems..........cocooeoeeeeiececceenne. 3,186 - - 1 - 3.187
Deferred reVenue. ......c.oooveeee e - - - I - 1
Advances from other funds.........oooviniiees - - - 530 - 550
TOTAL LIABILITIES. ..., 58.668 218.132 61,234 618 4 338.656
Fund Balance:
Reserved for: .
EnCUMBIANCES. .ot enesasne s enee s - 3,706 - - - 5.706
Long-term investments, ..o vvvvervmnenvres - 139,409 - 51,835 - 191,244
Unreserved:
Designated for:

OHHET oo et - - - - 3,395 3.395
Undesignated (deficit). 2,538,612 301,037 (17.669) 26,525 1.590 2,850,095
TOTAL FUND BALANCE (DEFICIT).....ccovuv.. 2,538,612 446,152 (17,669) 78.360 4,985 3,050,440

TOTAIL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCE % 2597280 % 664,284 § 43,565 %

78978 5 498 § 3389096
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
Expendable Trust Funds : For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 o

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

Workmen's
Compensation Catastrophic ,
Unemploymtent Security Loss Benefits Tuition E
Compensation Trust Continuation Pavment Other Total :
REVENUES: ]
TEXES oveveneoeressrssnrssveemessneseessmtmssseesassersssssrsssisenss 9 5880 3% - 5 - 3 - 8 - 3 5.880 P
Unemployment taXES. ...........coooumrssresemeesseseesnnen 1,533,866 - - - - 1,555,866
Licenses and fees...... - 46,257 34.680 17,634 132 98.703 =
P AT et i) ORRO 63,180 - - - - 63.180 -
Investment ifCOMIE. ..ot s 140,007 42,606 1.530 8414 270 192 827 S
L1111 OO US U SPGS 270 - - 193 2 465
TOTAL REVENUES ... 1,765,203 88.863 36.210 26,241 404 1,916,921 L,
: A
EXPENDITURES: |
Current: i
General SOVEIMMENL.......cooviirierranieieraenectaersrees - 3,904 1,202 1,647 - 6.753
Protection of persons and property.........occoeoweene - 21.432 44502 - 206 66,140 ’1
Public health and welfare........cooovs 1.555.913 - - - - 1,555.913 j
Debt service:
Interest and fiscal charges.........oevoeeeccecvvcecn - 13.013 - - - 13,013 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........ocriees 1,555.913 38,349 45,704 1.647 206 1,641 819 ;
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES....coc s 209,290 50,514 (9.494) 24,594 198 275,102
OTHER FINANCING USES:
Operating ransfers oul ..o - - (13,271) - - (15.271)
REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES AND OTHER USES........... 209,290 50,514 (24,763) 24594 198 239.831
FUND BALANCES, JULY 1, 1996....cccciciees 2329322 395,638 7.096 33,766 4.787 2,790,609
FUND BALANCES (DEFICIT),
JUNE 30, 1997 5 2338612 % 446,152 % (17.669) §% 78360 % 4985 § 3.050440 ‘ i
—_— S
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i COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

P Balance Balance
' July 1, 1996 Additions Deductions June 30, 1997
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANK
INDEMNIFICATION FUND
ASSETS
CaSh. et eene B 1 $ 107,103 i) 107.104 3 -
Temporary IMVESITIENES. ..ovuiieter e eeeeee e eees e emeteeeae e semneens 244 061 79.817 12,390 311,488
Recetvables, net:
ACCTUEE INIETEST. ... ccrer e oo resb s e nras 1.087 15,248 14,897 1,438
TOTAL ASSETS $ 245,149 b 202,168 3 134,391 $ 312,926
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued Habilities.....ooveeeieeciiceeieeeeeee. $ 6,232 h3 811 5 3.244 A 3.799
Due to other funds......oooovceeee e 11 73 11 73
Due to other SOVeINMENIS .. ... e i 7 7 1
Other liabilities.........c.coooocoeeeen 238.905 81,821 11,673 309,053
TOTAL LIABILITIES b 245,149 $ 82,712 $ 14,935 % 312,926
STATUTORY LIQUIDATOR FUND
ASSETS
L8T3S - 271.314 271313 1
Cash with fiscal agents.. 14,851 17.885 14,831 17.885
Temporary investments..... 167,488 97,534 170.382 94,660
Long-term INVESTIEIIS. ..ot centiees st et se s e e eereean 126,939 42,242 - 100,932 68,249
Receivables, net:
ACCOUIIES ..ot ee et e eee e e e e st et semseeens s annenenne 193,710 19,804 - 213514
ACCTUED IMTETESL. oo e e ey e se e ens e ssee st re e ars s 05 2,525 905 2,525
Due from other funds. ..o 452 268 432 268
OHET BSSETS. ..o e et rtrere e e sersrns e mereas s e s esssa e e ss e sbebesran 196,229 118,499 - 314,728
TOTAL ASSETS $ 700,574 $ 570,091 3 358,835 % 711,830
: LIABILITIES
Other Babilities. .....oooii it e s 3 700,313 b 34,502 5 72.987 3 711,830
TOTAL LIABILITIES % 700315 % 84,502 $ 72,987 b3 711,830
DEFERRED COMPENSATION FUND
(December 31)
ASSETS
; LT TS UR SOOI % 1 $ 229,323 $ 229323 3 1
Cash with fiSCal AZEMIS......cocovvee et e 3 6 5 6
Temporary INVESUTIENES. ....e..v. e cee e s enansnsenes 28,284 4,458 29214 3.528
LONE-LEIM IMVESHTIENIS. ..or.eecoreeacrercemerrasisamsescsea emeaens e seseeesemeanens 278.014 150,010 31.029 396,995
Receivables, net:
ACCTUE NIETESL. ..o i e et et es et b e e st smee e e se e enenreneen 6l 12,239 12,241 3%
853 163 83 163
TOTAL ASSETS 3 306.450 k3 396,201 $ 301,897 $ 400,754
LIABILITIES
Accounts pavable and accrued liabilities... e § 306,358 $ 200.109 $ 105,858 $ 400,609
e 10 OHET fUNES.....ovi et emee e srer e 92 145 92 145
TOTAL LIABILITIES 3 306,450 3 200,254 % 103,930 $ 400,754
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Agency Funds (continued) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

E
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA -
{Expressed in Thousands)
Balance Balance
Julv 1, 1996 Additions Deductions June 30, 1997
FIRE INSURANCE TAX FUND -
ASSETS N
O T 5 OO O OO SOOIV O PO DO P RPN % - $ 112,157 $ 112,156 % 1 S
Temporary iNVEStMEIHS. ...coccvverirvreniiesmereresssis e ses s ses o senaas 34,762 57973 38,513 54222
Receivables, net: i
ACCTUE IMEEIEST. . e ettt 251 266 231 266
TOTAL ASSETS $ 55,013 $ 170,396 $ 170,920 3 54,489
LIABILITIES ;
Due 10 other funds....ocov oo e e % 251 3 266 $ 251 g 266
Due t0 Other ZOVEIMMENIS. .......covviiieiecme e 54,762 54,183 54,722 54223 ]
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 55,013 $ 54,449 $ 34,973 % 54,489 il
MUNICIPAL PENSION AID FUND
ASSETS 7
L0 ) OO O SR % - g 277244 by 277.244 g - It
Temporary investments 121,613 143,449 135,458 125,604 -
Receivables, net: -
ACCIUEE IMEETESL. ..o eeeeeeeeessereemsseemsnesseneseecarsseesseresssernssenren 372 2,989 2,954 607
Due from other funds...........cooeeiieee et 299 318 299 318 L
TOTAL ASSETS $ 122,484 % 424,000 $ 419,955 $ 126,529 .
LIABILITIES |
Dute to OHEr SOVETIIMENLS. ...ovverrerrirrererernreressrorircsreeecessecrsssnsrsress B 122,484 % 141,831. 3 137,786 3 126,529 )
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 122,484 $ 141,831 % 137,786 % 126,329 }
]
MEDICAL PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY -t
CATASTROPHE LOSS FUND .
ASSETS 1
[T O s 309 g 332,711 3 345816 b3 7.404 J
Temporary investments 140,161 275,008 368,832 4635 '
Receivables, net: a
ACCOUIIES. ...t eceec et e cme e e semee e ece s eeces e e e sm et ene e sme e smmcnme s eamen 3,922 1,908 3,922 1.908 : {
ACCIUEA INLETESL, . ..ovueercrereese et et e e eemne e s emee e 617 6,720 7.034 303 .
TOTAL ASSETS % 145,209 % 836,347 $ 925,604 b 55,952 ey
LIABILITIES 7 ;
Accounts pavable and accrued liabilities.....ocoovvivcccccccneicee. 3 9.383 $ 2.258 $ 2,635 $ 8,986
Due 10 other funds.....o.oe e e 79 73 79 73 .
Due 10 Other QOVEIMMENTS.........co.eeceeee oo sne e 8 35 34 g o
Other TAHILIES ....veveviceiee et eeee e e eme e e en e eeme s 135,739 181,933 270,808 46,884 Qi
TOTAL LIABILITIES % 145,209 $ 184319 % 273.576 $ 35,952
i
i
E
i)
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COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Agency Funds (continued)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

(Expressed in Thousands)

INVEST PROGRAM FOR LOCAL GOYERNMENTS
(December 31)

ASSETS

Temnporary IMVeSTIMEIES ... oo oo eeee e eeee e e e e e e e aen
Receivables. net:
ACCIUED IMIETRSL . cveeeireeneeeameeieeseee e eereaene s eem e me oo eee s emeems e e e

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued labilities... ...,

Due to other SOVEIMMERTS. .....oviieincrnrmsemeneseseme s s canaeees

TOTAL LIABILITIES
OTHER FUNDS
ASSETS
Temporary IMVESIMENTS. .....ccooi ettt s
Long-term INVEeSIMENES. .ovvvvierereianie e eeer e et

Receivables, net:

ACCOUNIES. 1evvtraaisssrarrrrrs s ems e e e e e ms e e e e oo e s e e s e e e e
ACCTUES INTELESL. ... ieevecree ettt e e s e eenee e e esense s smas senns s eacnes
Due from other funds.
[0 Tt LT L AP AU UROR

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities... ...
Due t0 other funds.... ..o
Die t0 other SOVEIMIMENTS. .c.ovveiiiics i rer s s re e aenee s ennees
Other labilities. ..ot e

TOTAL LIABILITIES
TOTAL — ALL FUNDS
ASSETS

Cash with fiscal 8geTHS. ..o s
Temporary INVESTIEENTS.....o.o.eia et ee e e sare e
Long-1erm iNVESTMENTS. ....ccov i rcree s
Receivables, net:
TAXES oottt e et s s et e
ACCOUIES ettt cce e e e e rerere s esenceseensess s eeme s eneeresamneneane s
Accrued interest...

Due from other TUndS.. vt et
OBET BSSEIS. o v eereveemee e e eee e e m e remeesrmemree s bmt st raea e rrn e

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Accounts pavable and accrued liabilities.........ccoooeviiiciincniienens
Due t0 other fnds. ..o
DUE 10 OthET GOVEITIMENIS.c.vu oo e
Other TIabIlITES . ...oecviirirorerenee i e et cc e e

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Balance Balance

July 1. 1996 Additions Deductions Jung 36, 1997
% 417.568 $ 1,689,490 £ 1,662,323 $ 444,533
£.276 76 1,276 76
h) 418,844 % 1,689,566 % 1,663,801 5 444 609
5 1,971 3 2,102 $ 1,97t $ 2.102
416,873 1,687,464 1,661,830 442,507
$ 418,844 $ 1.689,566 $ 1,663,801 $ 444 609
$ 4.405 $ 558,987 % 539,732 3 3.640
39,930 463,004 432,606 52,328
280 - 12 268
4,163 2,763 4.163 2,763
18.758 3.178 18,758 3.178
120 639 632 147
23,769 15,428 23,769 15,428
5,877 4,584 3,723 4,738
3 97.302 £ 1,050,603 3 1065413 3 © 82,490
$ 16.460 $ 9,702 3 16,460 $ 9,702
1,707 377 1,792 292
51,752 462,640 464,591 49 801
27.383 32,831 37,519 22,693
% 97.302 3 305,350 3 520,362 $ 82,490
$ 4916 g 2.108.839 S 2.102.708 $ 11.047
14,856 17,891 14,836 17,891
1,213,867 2,812,753 2.893.920 1,132,700
403,233 192,252 131,975 463,512
4,163 2,763 4,163 2.763
216,390 24,890 22.680 218.600

4.889 40,722 40,190 5421
835 163 85 163
24.520 16,014 24,520 16,014
202,106 123,083 3,723 319.466
$ 2,091,025 3 3.339.372 $ 3,240.818 $ 2,189,579
$ 340,404 % 214,982 $ 130,188 3 423198
2,399 934 2.434 849
643,880 2,346,160 2318970 673,070
1,102,342 381.107 392,987 1,090,462

3 2,091,025

3 2,943,183

3 2.844,629

) 2,189,579
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GENERAL FIXED ASSETS ACCOUNT GROUP
DESCRIPTION

The General Fixed Assets Account Group is maintained to account for fixed assets acquired or
constructed for general government puposes. These include all fixed assets except those
accounted for in proprietary and pension trust funds.

SCHEDULES OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

{Expressed in Thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
1996 Additions Retirements 1997
CATEGORY
Land....ccooeicmiierevernennrsiinnneenne. b 244,738 $ 4349 3 352 $ 248,735
: Buildings. ..o 2,907,733 88,435 2,760 2,993,408
; Improvements other than buildings....... 228,565 17,246 410 246,401
: Machinery and equipment..................... 576.901 38.350 67.632 547.619
3,958,937 148,380 71,154 4,036,163
Construction in Progress .....ocoeveeeeees, 363,809 115.069 105.864 373.014
Total General Fixed Assets............... $ 4322746 $ 263,449 $177.018 $ 4409177
INVESTMENT IN GENERAL
FIXED ASSETS BY SOURCE
Acquired before July 1, 1986............... $§ 1,983,223 $ - $ 29815 ‘% 1953408
Acquired after June 30, 1986 from:
General fund ..o 867.131 9.804 7,390 869,545
General obligation bonds.....cccvveee.. 763.205 100,682 130 863,757
Federal grants ..o 31.128 943 26 32,045
Special revenue funds............ 306,163 33,285 33.743 305,707
Local funds ...cccoevvveriicnanes - 31 - 31
Donations. ..o veeeov e 7.841 3.633 - 11,476
Confiscations ...eeveeveee e 244 - 30 194
Total SOUCES...ocvveeierireee e eeeeeceneenes 3,958,937 148,380 71.154 4.036,163
Construction in progress ........coveveeeeeen. 363.809 115.069 105.864 373.014
Total Investment in
General Fixed Assets.....ooocveeeeeee. 54,322 746 $ 263449 $177.018 $_4.409.177

Funding sources for General Fixed Assets acquired before July 1. 1986 are not available.




' E
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION -]
June 30, 1997
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA :
{Expressed in Thousands) o
Improvements Machinery
Other Than and
_Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Total
FUNCTION :
General ZOVEMMENL .........oerreeeeeeeereeeeaeaeieeeenes $ 9617 § 300,102 $ 25233 $ 42,996 $ 377,968 i
Protection of persons and property ..... 9.771 1,233,993 138,806 77.240 1.459.810
Public health and welfare ................. 2,801 320,262 15,059 78.134 616,236 e
Public education ......oc..ceeecveeriecereeenee e, 17,427 606,091 48,415 3,004 674,937 : !
Conservation of natural resources. ..ooeeeeeeeecveeene.n. 205,773 59,585 10,996 24.862 301,216 wd
Economic development and assistance.................. T - - 358 338
TTanSPOrTALION «vexcvee e e ece e s 3,346 73,375 7,872 321,025 403,618 R
Totals Allocated To
Functions ....ocoeeceeveecencemesveceesceiceseeeeeeeeee. b 248735 5§ 2,993 408 $ 246,401 $547,619 4,036,163 .
Construction in Progress.....c.eeeerreererererneens 373,014
Total General Fixed AssSets cvvvernvvvinvnennen $ 4.409,177
1
)
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN GENERAL FIXED ASSETS BY FUNCTION
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 1997 ]
)
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
(Expressed in Thousands) )
i
Balance Balance =!
July 1, Transfers Transfers June 30, ’
1996 Additions Retirements In Qut 1997
General government ... § 534903 5 6,532 % 20115 § 57825 § 1177 3 577.968 )
Protection of persons and property ......... 1,359,699 78,747 4,029 26,775 1,382 1,459,810
Public health and welfare .............c......... 686,063 4,340 12,832 55 61.372 616,256 .
Public education ........cccoeevreecvorecnarenens 667.202 20,022 - - 12,287 674,937 o
Conservation of natural resources........... 294,362 6,301 62 615 - 301,216 i
Economic development and assistance... 358 - - 64 64 358
Transportation .....c..weeerieverisecorsrinnesens 416,348 32,438 34.116 - 9.052 405618 0
3.958.937 148,380 71,154 85,334 85,334 4,036,163 i
o
Construction in progress........cocceveeeene 363.809 115,069 103,864 - - 373,014
Total General Fixed Assets............ $ 4,322,746 $ 263,449 § 177.018 $ 85.334 § 83,334 $ 4,409,177
1
&l
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NET BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA TABLE 2
For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

‘ ]—— {Expressed in Thousands)
: For The ]
Fiscal Year
Ended June 3¢ Net Bonded Debt Population Debt Per Capita

1987 $ 4,558,839 11,812 $ 386
1988 4,698,645 11,847 397
1989 4,705,202 11,866 397
1990 4,633,307 ) 11,895 390
1991 4,787,512 11,946 400
1992 4,873,542 11,989 406
1993 5,040,938 12,033 419
1994 5,100,012 12,058 423
1995 5,040,662 12,060 418
1996 5,061,530 12,056 420

SOURCE: Population Information - U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS TABLE 3
FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT
TO TOTAL GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

]—— (Expressed in Thousands) —|

Debt Service
For The Requirements Budgetary Basis
Fiscal Year Funded by General Fund
Ended June 30 General Fund Expenditures”’ %
‘ 1988 $ 393,907 £ 13,180,073 2.99
Coh 1989 381,617 13,949,111 2.74
1990 450,752 15,137,774 2.98
1991 456,325 16,251,111 2.81
1992 521,875 19,540,459 2.67
1993 497,045 19,986,749 249
1954 512,094 21,060,058 243
1995 525,889 22,467,672 2.34
1996 551,133 23,480,336 235
1997 649,759 23,384,414 2.78

‘" Excludes encumbrances included in “Total Expenditures” in the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Unreserved/Undesignated Fund Balances—Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis).
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COMPUTATION OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN TABLE 4

As of August 31, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Average annual tax revenues deposited in the previous five

FISCAL YEAIS v vttt s sa e e $ 19,590,066,226
Constitutional Tactor. ... ..oocvieiecee e X 1.75
Constitutional debt limit for debt incurred without the

approval of the electors........cooveeviiieceeceieee e, 34,282,615,896
Less outstanding net debt (non-electorate approved)........... 3,674,814,671
Legal debt margin ... $ 30,607,801,225

The formula for the legal debt limit is contained in Article VIII, Section 7(z) of the Pennsylvania Constitution,
which provides:

No debt shall be incurred by or on behalf of the Commonwealth except by law and in accordance with the
provisions of this section.

{1) Debt may be incurred without limit to suppress insurrection, rehabilitate areas affected by man-made or
natural disaster, or to implement unissued authority by the electors prior to the adoption of this article.

(2) The Governor, State Treasurer and Auditor General, acting jointly, may (i) issue tax anticipation notes
having a maturity within the fiscal year of issue and payable exclusively from revenues received in the
same fiscal year, and (ii) incur debt for the purpose of refunding other debt, if such refunding debt matures
within the term of the original debt.

(3) Debt may be incurred without limit for purposes specifically itemized in the law authorizing such debt, if
the question whether the debt shall be incurred has been submitted to the electors and approved by a
majority of those voting on the question.

(4) Debt may be incurred without the approval of the electors for capital projects specifically itemized in a
capital budget if such debt will not cause the amount of all net debt outstanding to exceed one and three-
quarters times the average of the annual tax revenues deposited in the previous five fiscai years as certifled
by the Auditor General. For the purposes of this subsection, debt outstanding shall not include debt
incurred under clauses (1) and (2)(1), or debt incurred under clause (2)(ii) if the original debt would not be
so considered, or debt incurred under subsection (3) unless the General Assembly shall so provide in the
law authorizing such debt.

The figures above are abstracted from a certification of the Auditor General dated August 31, 1997.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND COVERAGE

TABLE 5

For the Last Ten Fiscal Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission ®
{Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue I Debt Service Requirements —
Ended Gross Operating Available for
Mav 31 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1988 $ 221.807 $ 100875 3 120932 3 3,225 $ 56514 $ 39739 2.02
1989 245,192 105,619 139,373 4,070 58,789 62,859 222
1990 252373 113,546 138,827 123,940 73.051 196,991 0.70
1991 246,983 115,103 131,882 64,135 75,811 139,946 0.94
1992 312.079 113,217 198,862 7450 76,628 84.078 237
1993 329452 134,844 164,608 11,595 65,600 77.193 2.52
1994 344617 142,915 201,702 9,405 70,892 80,297 2351
1995 373,754 146,325 229,429 15,715 72.548 88.263 2.60
1996 389.774 162,150 227,624 23,900 73,644 99,544 2.29
1997 398,897 158,705 240,192 22,845 74.462 97,307 247
Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority ®
(Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue Debt Service Requirements
Ended Gross Operating Available for
June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
1988 3 25479 5 1,765 3 23714 i) 8.525 3 [1.257 3 19.782 [.20
1989 29,477 2,223 27,254 8,505 10.584 19.089 [.43
1990 30,422 1,997 28,425 8,900 0,873 18,773 [.51
1921 28963 2,055 26,908 8,440 11.013 19.435 [.38
1992 24.592 1,994 22,598 10,643 18,920 29.563 0.76
1993 25.204 2,368 22,836 10,645 18,593 29.240 0.78
1994 29,802 2.138 27,664 23,083 19,116 42,201 0.66
1995 30,806 2.864 27,942 4,335 20,123 24,458 1.14
19%6 30,487 2.898 27,389 10,695 19,747 30,442 0.91
1997 32,963 2.865 30.098 12,955 22314 33,269 0.85
Pennsylvania Housing Finance Agency ®)
(Expressed in Thousands)
For the
Fiscal
Year Direct Net Revenue Debt Service Requirements
Ended Gross Operating Available for
June 30 Revenues Expenses Debt Service Principal Interest Totai Coverage
1988 $ 162,172 ) 8.363 3 153579 $ 15,960 $ 138.508 3 134468 0.99
1989 182,535 8.402 174,133 20,226 148,527 168,533 1.03
1990 199,101 9.133 189,968 21,568 157.104 178.672 1.06
1991 214,580 9.944 204,636 25173 153,303 178.478 1.13
1692 206,991 8,496 168.495 28,118 172,146 200.264 0.99
1693 200,268 9,803 150,465 27,410 166,480 193.890 0.98
1994 194,025 13,325 180,700 20,426 143,904 173.330 1.05
1993 196,023 16,093 179,928 51.406 139.621 191,027 0.94
1996 208.048 16,979 191.069 40.839 146,452 187,291 1,02
1997 222,136 16,748 205,988 39.463 157,989 197,452 1.04

© Excludes interest on notes payable.

* Discretely Presented Component Unit.
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ANNUAL ESTIMATES OF THE RESIDENT POPULATION TABLE 6 »
PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

'—— {Expressed in Thousands) ———I

Calendar Year United States Pennsylvania %
1987 242 321 11,812 4.90 : E
1988 244,534 11,847 4.80 i
1989 246,820 11,866 4.80 -
1990 249398 11,895 4.80
1991 252,106 11,946 4.70 i
1992 255,011 11,989 4.70 B
1993 257,795 12,033 4.70 B
1994 260,372 12,058 4.60 ,
1995 262,890 12,060 4.60 P
1996 265,284 12,056 4.50 .

SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce, Burean of Censtus

STATE BANKING INSTITUTIONS TABLE 7 5
DEMAND DEPOSITS AND TIME AND SAVINGS DEPOSITS For the Last Ten Calendar Years i

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

,—— {Expressed in Thousands) —! \‘
o

Time and

Calendar Year Demand Depaosits Savings Deposits }
]

1987 5 6,443,804 $ 47,536,165
1988 6,558,607 50,347,975 D
1989 6,481,900 53,565,427 3

1990 6,453,740 50,542,812
1991 6,308,495 52,112,591 -
1992 7,150,024 51,434,858 r

1993 7,620,397 54,334,637
1994 6,952,868 49,674,200 e
1995 7,124,441 51,766,777 Lo

1996 4,233,735 37,254,292

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Banking
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TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME AND PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME TABLE 9
PENNSYLVANIA COMPARED TO THE UNITED STATES
For the Last Ten Calendar Years

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

TOTAL PERSONAL INCOME PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME i
Millions of Dollars . (Dollars
¢ o I a— .
Calendar : ;
Year United States Pennsylvania % United States Pennsylvania %
1
1987 3,874,096 " 186,816 4.80 15,990 15,817 99.90 -
1988 4,171,650 200,836 4.80 - 17,062 16,954 99.30
1989 4,485,191 216,982 4.80 18,172 18,286 100.60
1990 4,786,293 230,894 4.80 19,191 19,410 101.10 i
1991 4,963,545 239478 4.80 19,689 20,047 101.80
1992 5,260,922 252,224 4.80 20,631 21,038 102.00
1993 5,507,622 262,308 4.80 21,365 21,799 102.00
1994 5,774,806 270,969 4.70 22,180 22,471 101.30
1995 6,137,875 284,963 4,70 23,348 23,628 101.20 I
1996 6,479,914 299031 4,60 24,426 24,803 101.50 ';

SOURCE: U.S. Department of Commerce. Bureau of Economic Analysis : ]
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THIRTY LARGEST NONGOVERNMENTAL EMPLOYERS TABLE 10

For the Calendar Year 1996

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

EMPLOYER RANK
Pennsylvania State University ........cccoccoveveieiiveoeeeeeeeceann, 1
Trustees of the University of Pennsylvania ......................... 2
Wal-Mart Stores INC....oovevesciececceeee e 3
K-Mart COrporation .......ccooveeiereevieeiene e 4
US Air, Incorporated........ccocoovvmimieee e 5
United Parcel Service InC.....c.ooveeeieeccnnieiiiccee e, 6
Mellon Bank, NA ... 7
Weis Markets INC .....ccooiivveere e 8
Bell ATlantic . ..ooeeeee oo 9
Sears Roebuck and COMPEny «........ccoeeeveeeeiveieeeeeieeeeceene 10
PNC BanK ..ot 11
CoreStates Bank ..., 12
University of Pittsburgh.........cooveeieiieeioiicieoe 3
The Prudential Insurance Co of America...............coocoo..... 14
Giant Food Stores, INC ..ot 15
JC Penny Company Inc.....ooocoevioieeiiviee e 16
Westinghouse Electric Corp ....ccoovviniieieiicececee, 17
AMP Incorporated .........coooeieniiniiniecieecee e 18
Thomas Jefferson University .....ccooeececeieeoeoceceeeeeee e 19
Penn Traffic Company . ......oooeoeeeeeeiiiiiiieeeeeeeceeeee 20
Temple University ..., 21
Acme MarketS INC ..o 22
Strawbridge & Clothier...........cooiieiiieiee 23
Hershey Foods Corporation ........coeeeeeceeeieieeeoeieeeeeeeen 24
Presbyterian University Hospital .......c..cooeuiieeeeeeceinene 25
Boscov’s Department Store Inc ....ooeevei oo 26
Lucent Technologies InC......cccovoreciecieiiceeeeee 27
May Department Stores Company ...........cooeveeerevveceeeneennnn. 28
Thrift Drug, InC. ..ot 29
Merck & COTRC oo 30

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Labor and industry, Office of Employment Security



LIST OF MAJOR CORPORATIONS THAT MAINTAIN TABLE 11
THEIR CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS IN THE COMMONWEALTH

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Advanta Corporation

Alr Products and Chemicals, Inc.
Airgas

Alco Standard Corporation
Allegheny Teledyne

Aluminum Company of America
AMP Incorporated

Amerisource Health

Aramark

ARCQ Chemical

Armstrong World Industries, Inc.
Arrow International

Bell Atlantic Corporation
Bethlehem Steel Corporation
Betz Laboratories

Centocor

Cigna Corporation

Comcast Corporation
Consolidated Natural Gas Co.
Consolidated Rail Corporation
Conrail

CoreStates Financial Corporation
Crown Cork and Seal Company
Dauphin Deposit Corporation
Dentsply International

DQE Corporation

Equitable Resources

Fore Systems

General Nutrition

Glatfelter (P.H.) Company

SOURCE: Fortune, April 1997.

H.J. Heinz Company

Harsco Corporation

Hershey Foods Corporation
Ikon Office Solutions

Integra Financial Corporation
Inteiligent Electronics

Jones Apparel Group

Mellon Bank Corp.

Meridian Bancorp, Inc.
Mylan Laboratories

PNC Financial Corporation
PPG Industries, Inc.

PECO Energy

Pennsylvania Power & Light Co.
Pep Boys

Quaker State Corporation
Rhone—Poulenc Rorer

Rite Aid Corporation

Rohm and Haas Company
Sun Company, Inc.

Sungard Data Systems

UGt Corporation

Union Pacific Corporation
UNISYS Corporation

U.S. Healthcare

USX Corporation

VF Corporation

Weis Markets, Incorporated
Westinghouse Electric Corporation

York International
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MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

TABLE 12

June 30, 1997

COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

Date of Ratification of U.S. Constitution
Form of Government

Miles of State Highway

Land Area — in square miles

State Police Protection:
Number of Stations
Number of State Police

Higher Education (Universities, Colleges and
Community Colleges):

Number of campuses in state

Number of educators

Number of students

Recreation:

Number of State Parks
Area of State Parks
Area of State Forests

December 12, 1787
Legislative-Executive-Judicial
40,327

44,888

50
4,066

233
22,063
630,058

116
282,500 Acres
2,100,113 Acres

SOURCE: Pennsylvania Department of Transportation, Bureau of Strategic Planning
Pennsylvania State Police, Bureau of Research and Development
Pennsvlvania Department of Education, Division of Data Services
Pennsylvania Department of Conservation and Natural Resources, Bureau of F orestry
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